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“Cook at the birds of the air, that they do not sow, nor reap nor
gather into barns, and yet your heavenly Father feeds them. Are
you not worth much more than they? And who of you by being

worried can add a single hour to his [ife?”

Matthew 6:26-27
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
WEEL  WWEEL BWEEL BWEEL BY%EER
Consolidated income statement LA R
for the year ended 31 March BE3IH31HIEE
Revenues A 2,705.6 3,330.9 3,647.2 3,891.6 3,940.8
Profit for the year A B A 131.5 250.9 233.5 172.2 92.1
Interim dividend paid Bk HRE 11.4 33.3 37.7 37.7 20.9
Final dividend proposed BRAHIR S 22.8 42.8 33.5 38.7 10.5
Special dividend proposed BEIREER IR B - 9.5 5.2 - -
Consolidated balance sheet HREEARE
as at 31 March 3A31A&E
Assets EE 1,884.0 2,330.5 2,761.5 2,965.8 3,091.4
Less: Liabilities and W AR
non-controlling interests Rl g 902.5 1,157.7 1,364.5 1,507.5 1,644.9
Shareholders’ funds R B 4 981.5 1,172.8 1,397.0 1,458.3 1,446.5
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
i ST VST iR T i T BET
Per share data fFE R
Earnings (restated) B () 0.126 0.239 0.223 0.164 0.088
Interim dividend paid EIRPIIALE 0.012 0.035 0.036 0.036 0.02
Final dividend proposed BERAHIR S 0.024 0.045 0.032 0.037 0.01
Special dividend proposed BRI IR B - 0.010 0.005 - -
Net assets (restated) B (FF) 0.938 1.121 1.335 1.394 1.382

Note: Earnings per share and net assets per share of 2011-2012 are restated to take up the effect of the bonus issue of shares during the
year ended 31 March 2013.

BEE : 2011 4F 2 2012 4EAY A BB R Je 49 I V(BT 48 5 81 - AR AR 2013 4F 3 A 31 H AR FEEAL G AT R 28 o
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HIGHLIGHTS
BH

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

BE-Z-OHF=ZA=1+—HLEE

HIGHLIGHTS

Revenue up 1.3% to HK$3,940.8 million
Gross profit up 1.6% to HK$2,416.4 million
Gross profit margin stable at 61.3%
Group operating expenses up 3.3%

Profit attributable to shareholders of
HK$91.8 million

Excluding non-cash impact from convertible
bonds (HK$55.4 million) and exchange loss
(HK$15.9 million), a profit attributable to
shareholders of HK$163.1 million

Basic earnings per share, HK8.77 cents
Proposed final dividend, HK$0.01 per share

E
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

The directors of the Company (the “Board”) submit their report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the

financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by operating
segment is set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 40.

Interim dividend of HK$0.02 (2014: HK$0.036) per ordinary share
totalling HK$20,929,000 was paid during the year.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.01
(2014: HK$0.037) per ordinary share totalling HK$10,465,000.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable donations of HK$5,316,000.
SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the shares issued in the year ended 31 March 2015 are
set out in notes 21 to the financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 1 of this
annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2015, the distributable reserves of the Company
available for distribution as dividends to shareholders amounted
to HK$61,309,000 (2014: HK$78,383,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s

Bye-laws although there is no restriction against such rights under
the laws in Bermuda.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgnREE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Joseph C. C. Wong E £3%
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

R RATEAR R

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the year under review, the Group operated under challenging
conditions as weak fundamentals persisted. Group costs remained
well contained with total Group operating expenses rising 3.3%
due to stepped up cost discipline (front line staff costs and shop
rentals rising respectively by 1.2% and 3.2%). Group gross profit
margin stood at 61.3% (2014: 61.1%).

The Group reported a y-o-y increase in turnover of 5.6% in the
first half year (“1H”) but the sudden downturn in sentiment seen
in Hong Kong and Macau in the second half year (“2H") wiped
out most gains. For the year under review, the Group posted an
increase in turnover of 1.3% to HK$3.94 billion (2014: HK$3.89
billion) and a Profit Attributable to Shareholders of HK$91.8
million (2014: HK$171.7 million).

EEENRR DN

FBEE
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

If excluding:

(i)  a non-cash impact from convertible bonds of HK$55.4
million (2014: HK$20.2 million) due to an increase in the
liability component of convertible bonds; and

(i) a larger exchange loss of HK$15.9 million (2014: Loss of
HK$3.6 million),

the Group posted a Profit Attributable to Shareholders of
HK$163.1 million (2014: HK$195.5 million), a decline of 16.6%
from the previous year.

BECOMING A GREATER CHINA RETAILER

In line with our vision to become a major retailer in Greater China,
increased resources were deployed in Mainland China during
the year. Our Greater China business segment which covers
CITY CHAIN, OPTICAL 88, and eGG in Mainland China, Hong
Kong and Macau (accounting for around 75% of Group turnover)
stayed resilient given the economic malaise, with all three chains
reporting turnover growth.

Specifically in Mainland China:

CITY CHAIN Mainland China achieved a y-o-y turnover growth of
23.2%.

OPTICAL 88 Mainland China achieved a y-o-y turnover growth of
4.7%.

eGG Mainland China achieved a y-o-y turnover growth of
178.8%.

FINAL DIVIDEND

Facing uncertainty in Hong Kong, the Board is of the view that
a cautious approach should continue to be adopted and as such
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.01 (2014:
HK$0.037) which together with the interim dividend payment
represents a payout of 34.2% for the fiscal year (2014: 44.5%).

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

CITY CHAIN GROUP
City Chain Group turnover up 1.5%

City Chain Group EBIT down 12.1% to HK$189.4 million

City Chain Group Gross Profit Margin 60.1%

For the period under review, the City Chain Group, a fashion
lifestyle watch chain with online (http://citychain.tmall.com/)
and http://titus.tmall.com/) and offline business operations
recorded a rise in turnover of 1.5% to HK$2,212.5 million (2014:
HK$2,180.2 million) and a fall in EBIT of 12.1% to HK$189.4
million. As at 31 March 2015, the City Chain Group operates 388
stores (2014: 392 stores). Store breakdown by geographical region
is shown below:

EEEME DN ()
[ B (& JBr | 5515
[ e | SR SE%H LT 1.5% »

BSR4 1 s RS, R BT T A (TEBIT)) MR
12.1% 2 HK$189.4fH H -

[REFHER | S B A F 5 60.1% °

[l R HA P > S B IR 0 AT T SR SH L [ IRR DR Bk
B LT 1.5%EHKS2,212.514 # (2014 :
HK$2,180.214 &) > M EBITZE A B F F12.1%
FHK$189.41F # (£ 45 & B 49 b 2E 75 (http://
citychain.tmall.com/) & http://titus.tmall.com/) &
BREEZERS) o 2015453 A 31 H » [REMIET ] 4
[ 49 388 [H] K 4 (2014 = 392 MK B o et [
By Z WA

2015 2014 Change
Hong Kong & Macau U S 106 110 -4
Mainland China B A 104 96 +8
Southeast Asia g 178 186 -8
Total A 388 392 -4

CITY CHAIN - Hong Kong and Macau

In the TH, our operations in Hong Kong and Macau outperformed
the general retail market recording a y-o-y turnover growth of
6.4%. However, the sudden downturn in sentiment in the 2H
led to turnover falling by 0.6% to HK$1,467.4 million for the full
fiscal year (2014: HK$1,477 million). Gross margin came under
pressure in the 2H, falling 1.3% to 61.7% and, consequently,
EBIT declined by 12.6% to HK$244.3 million (2014: HK$279.5
million). Operating costs rose mildly by 3.2%.

A cautious approach undertaken on store leasing such as,
remapping of stores in key tourist areas and resetting key
parameters on store rental affordability contributed to a mild rise
in store rentals of 1.7% (2014: 16.9%).

[BFERB | — & B R EFT

T R0 E R LA R RN BT
5o Bk BT R 416.4% » (H P42
VRSN E R R NI O B A R
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

With external conditions in Hong Kong and Macau remaining
largely unfavourable and, particularly, in Hong Kong less certain,
the foremost task is to maintain top line performance and to
achieve a better stock turn. Hence immediate measures have been
adopted or are in the pipeline to reduce the adverse impact on our
business.

CITY CHAIN - Mainland China

Our Mainland operations achieved a strong top line growth of
23.2% to HK$230.9 million (2014: HK$187.5 million) with
same store growth up by around 12%. A wider loss of HK$55.1
million was sustained (2014: HK$46.7 million) due to start-
up costs from expansion into second and third tier cities, in
Guangdong and Fujian (Southern China); Jiangsu and Zhejiang
(Eastern China); Sichuan and Chonggqing (Southwestern China).
But ongoing operational initiatives implemented since FY12/13
led to a narrowing of store level losses and better store productivity
compared to the previous year. Specifically, our Guangdong
operations have turned the corner to report store level profits.

With the external operating environment in Hong Kong and
Macau remaining bleak and uncertain, plans were implemented
in the 2H of the year to fasten the pace of expansion of the retail
network in Greater China.

Therefore, in the coming year, accelerating turnover growth
will be a key objective. Plans are underway to open new stores
in Southern, Eastern and Southwestern China and to focus
more resources on growing our online business. To support
this, advertising savings from CITY CHAIN Hong Kong will be
redeployed to this business segment to increase advertising
spending, and reallocated to digital and social media.

CITY CHAIN - South East Asia

The performance of our CITY CHAIN business in SEA was mixed,
with Singapore and Malaysia posting much improved results
but Thailand lagging. For the fiscal year, turnover remained flat
despite a 7.2% decline in number of shop months. For Singapore
and Malaysia, the positive effects from restructuring efforts are
beginning to be seen. An EBIT of HK$0.3 million was reported
(2014: loss of HK$17.4 million) and on an exchange neutral basis,
EBIT would have improved substantially to HK$10.9 million
(2014: loss of HK$13.0 million). Gross profit improved for all three
regions in the 2H of the year. Operating costs and shop rentals
respectively fell 6.4% and 8% compared to last year, whilst gross
margin was stable at 55%.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

CITY CHAIN Malaysia recorded a y-o-y 156% improvement in
EBIT to around HK$20 million and a turnover increase of 11.7%.

CITY CHAIN Singapore reported a significant narrowing of losses
to HK$11.2 million this year against HK$25.7 million the previous
year as an accelerated improvement in the 2H resulted in an EBIT
of HK$1.3 million against a loss of HK$12.5 million in the TH.

CITY CHAIN Thailand reported a loss of HK$8.4 million as fragile
sentiment continued to weigh down performance. In the 2H, we
turned to focus on restructuring these operations. While operating
costs have fallen 4%, intense competition shaved gross margin.
Non-performing stores will be closed. Similar policies adopted in
Singapore and Malaysia to enhance operational efficiencies are
being implemented. Improvements are expected to be seen.

EEEFWE D (&)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

OPTICAL 88 GROUP
Optical 88 Group turnover up 1.0%

Optical 88 Group EBIT up 12.8% to HK$61.2 million

Optical 88 Group Gross Profit Margin 62.5%

For the period under review, the Optical 88 Group, which
operates stores in Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China,
Singapore, Thailand and Malaysia saw turnover rise marginally
by 1.0% to HK$1,218.1 million (2014: HK$1,206.1 million) and
an increase in EBIT of 12.8% to HK$61.2 million (2014: HK$54.3
million) due to improved performances reported by our Hong
Kong and Mainland China operations.

As at 31 March 2015, the Optical 88 Group has 227 stores (2014:
234 stores). Store breakdown by geographical region is shown

EEEwE DN (&)
[R5 88 £ 5
[HR&% 88 ] L& EFHE LT 1% o

[ R85 88 I4E I EBIT & 4] £ T 12.8% £ HK$61.2
{Fi e o

[IR%% 88 | £ HH BHHRE 62.5% °
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B0 At ZE S B R B A S BEHEMH 1% 2
HK$1,218.118 & (2014 : HK$1,206.114 & ) -
EBITZ A B 1R 12.8% £ HK$61.21A # (2014 :
BRI HKS54 316 &) -

A20154E3 H31H - [HR$588 ] FL455E 227 MK
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2015 2014 Change
Hong Kong & Macau s KB 97 95 +2
Mainland China r R A 42 48 -6
Southeast Asia RE A 88 91 -3
Total HaBy 227 234 -7

OPTICAL 88 - Hong Kong and Macau

The very soft economy in Macau together with the accelerated
slowdown in Hong Kong in the 2H (erasing a y-o-y 9.4% increase
in turnover and a y-o-y 30% increase in EBIT in the TH) led to
Optical 88 Hong Kong and Macau reporting a 3.9% increase in
turnover to HK$835.6 million (2014: HK$804.5 million). Hence,
for the full fiscal year, EBIT improvement was comparatively less
robust increasing by 19.5% to HK$95.4 million (2014: HK$79.8
million). Gross margin improved slightly to 64.2%; operational
costs edged up by 1.6% and shop rentals increased by 5.2%.

Though less affected by the decline in Mainland tourist spending,
a cautious approach has nonetheless been adopted to review our
store portfolio in key tourist locations.

With a strong emphasis on delivering high quality professional
services and products, the Optical 88 Group continues to
distinguish by focusing on high value added products such
as progressive and functional lenses to cater for the ageing
demography and children.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

OPTICAL 88 — Mainland China

Our OPTICAL 88 operations in Mainland China achieved a
moderate rise in turnover of 4.7% given a reduced number of shop
months. Compared to the previous year, losses narrowed by 10%
to HK$27.5 million (2014: HK$30.7 million).

In line with our Greater China strategy, resources have been
strengthened to accelerate shop opening in Southern and
Southwestern China as we have relocated out from expensive
cities, like Shanghai. In addition, as we increasingly cater for
the ageing demography and children, sales in progressive and
functional lenses have improved whilst myopia control lenses
have also been introduced.

OPTICAL 88 - South East Asia

Our SE Asian OPTICAL 88 operations sustained a loss of HK$6.7
million (2014: EBIT of HK$5.1 million) and on an exchange
neutral basis, the loss was reduced to HK$1.4 million. Operating
costs declined 2.2%, with shop rentals falling 3.8%.

In the 2H of the year, a Hong Kong team was parachuted in to
strengthen operational management and to improve operational
efficiencies in all three regions. Initiatives were introduced to
increase store productivity, improve gross margin and tighten
procurement control. We will continue to see progressive
improvements as a result of the above measures in the next year.

Our Singapore operations reported improved sales per shop
month as we focused on strengthening our customer base; and the
loss incurred in the 2H of the year has narrowed.

Our Malaysian operations reported an EBIT of around HK$1.8
million. However, if excluding an exchange loss of HK$3 million,
our Malaysian operations returned an EBIT of HK$4.8 million
(2014: HK$5.4 million) whilst a higher gross margin was seen in
the 2H of the year. In the medium term, we will be opening new
stores to increase market coverage and to grow business scale.

Our Thai operations recorded a drop in EBIT to HK$8.6 million
(2014: HK$13.8 million). Given the poor economy and the
unstable political situation, a cautious approach will be adopted
towards shop leasing.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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eGG - Hong Kong and Mainland China

eGG Optical Boutique, a fast fashion optical retailer, achieved
a strong performance on the back of soft sentiment successfully
capturing consumer preference for trendy and fancy optical eye
wear.

For the period under review, eGG Hong Kong with 15 stores as
of 31 March 2015 (2014: 10 stores) continued to outperform the
general retail market with turnover increasing 52.4% to HK$71.4
million. The increase was driven by the opening of new stores and
same store growth which was around 40%. As such, eGG Hong
Kong came very close to break even, incurring a small loss of
HK$0.7 million (2014: loss of HK$7.3 million).

Driven largely by new store openings, our eGG operations on
the Mainland saw turnover rise by 178% to HK$42 million
(2014: HK$15.1 million). Same store growth was 27%. Despite
the continual rollout of new stores, losses narrowed slightly to
HK$15.3 million (2014: loss of HK$16 million) but store level
profit was achieved by our operations in April and May 2015.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

As of 31 March 2015, there were 24 eGG stores (2014: 17 stores)
located in Hangzhou, Suzhou, Wuxi (Eastern China); Chongging,
Sichuan (Southwestern China); and Beijing, Tianjin, Shenyang,
Dalian (Northern China).

From the positive performance seen this year, expansion plans will
be accelerated and in the next year, more than 30 stores will be
opened.

We expect to see a good performance from eGG Hong Kong and
eGG Mainland China in the coming fiscal year, as encouraging
momentum has been carried through into the first quarter of
FY15/16.

Further to tap into new markets, our eGG concept will be
introduced in Singapore, Malaysia and Thailand in the next year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT AND WHOLESALE TRADING

This business segment covers the Group’s watch Supply Chain
Management Unit and its Wholesale Business Unit. Our Supply
Chain Management Unit is responsible for design, procurement
and other ancillary services for the Group’s watch house brands.
The Wholesale Business Unit engages in watch and optical
wholesale trading, for SEIKO and ALBA watches and clocks (as
sole distributor for Hong Kong, Singapore and Malaysia) and
Suunto watches (exclusive distributor for Hong Kong).

During the fiscal year, turnover fell by 10.5% to HK$396.9 million
(2014: HK$ 443.3 million) due to a drop in order placements as
retailers generally adopted a cautious approach because of the
soft underlying environment. EBIT decreased by 9.5% to HK$85.1
million (2014: HK$94.0 million), partly due to a provision for
stocks of HK$15.2 million made for Swiss made watch movements
in view of a slowdown in demand for Swiss made watches (2014:
write back income of HK$3.5 million).

With the acquisition of Catena S.A., the Group has added Swiss
made watch movement and watch assembly production facilities
to its existing supply chain capabilities. We intend to make this
facility our Swiss production base for our Swiss house brands
Cyma, Titus, Pronto and Catena.

SHORT TERM OUTLOOK

Faced with uncertainty surrounding Hong Kong and the prolonged
and widespread slowdown in Mainland China, the Group's
immediate priority in the next year is to drive top line growth in
Mainland China and maintain a healthy inventory level.

Through various initiatives implemented in the 2H of the year,
such as tightened stock replenishment and marketing campaigns
to accelerate stock turn, Group inventory levels in the 2H of the
year fell by 7%; further decreasing 1.5% in May 2015 against
March 2015. The situation will be closely monitored to ensure that
initiatives in place set an appropriate balance between increasing
stock turn and maintaining a stable gross margin.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

THE FUTURE

Despite the recent slowdown in the retail market in Mainland
China, the Group has every confidence that China will gradually
become one of the most important retail markets in the world.

With the quickened pace of transformation, Mainland China will
be the Group’s new growth engine in terms of revenue and profit
in the mid-long term. Currently, Mainland China accounts for
10% of Group turnover but this is expected to increase to around
15% in the next fiscal year. In the coming year, we are targeting to
open more than 80 stores across China. Social media and digital
marketing platforms will be used to increase market penetration
and to boost e-commerce turnover.

FINANCE

The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 March 2015 was 38%
(2014: 28%). Group gearing ratio was calculated based on the
Group’s net debt of HK$553 million (2014: HK$408 million)
and shareholders’ funds of HK$1,446 million (2014: HK$1,458
million). The Group’s net debt was calculated based on the
Group’s borrowings of HK$632 million (2014: HK$535 million)
and convertible bonds of HK$381 million (2014: HK$331 million)
less the Group’s bank balances and cash of HK$460 million
(2014: HK$458 million).

The increase in Group gearing was due to an increase in Group
inventory following the sudden slowdown of the business in the
2H of the year and the increase in the liability component of the
convertible bonds.

The Group’s policy is to uphold a sound balance sheet and
liquidity for future business development. Capital expenditures
have been reduced to HK$95.8 million from HK$121.5 million
in 2013/14, representing a decrease of 21.2%. The Group will
continue to be prudent in treasury and inventory management in
2015/16 to reduce inventory so as to improve operational cash
inflow and the Group’s balance sheet.

Of the Group’s borrowings at balance sheet date, HK$580 million
(2014: HK$464 million) were repayable within 12 months.

Of the Group’s borrowings, 3% (2014: 5%) were denominated in
foreign currencies. The Group’s bank borrowings denominated
in Hong Kong Dollars were on a floating rate basis at either bank
prime lending rates or short term inter-bank offer rates.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

The Group does not engage in speculative derivative trading.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group does not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

On 29 November 2012, the Company issued unlisted and
unsecured convertible bonds with a principal amount of
HK$371,022,600 (“Bonds”) to Sapphire llluminatus Holdings
Limited, an independent third party and an indirect subsidiary of
Boyu Capital Holdings Ltd (“Boyu”).

The bonds are convertible at the option of the bondholders into
fully paid ordinary shares 18 months after the issue of bonds up
to fifth anniversary of the issue date of the bonds, 190,268,000
conversion shares will be issued upon full conversion of the

bonds.

The new funding through the issue of the Bonds combined with
the Company’s leading position and strong management team as
well as Boyu’s in-depth retail industry experience will assist the
Group to strengthen its position in the Greater China region and
bring unparalleled experiences and expertise in expanding the
Group's presence in Mainland China in order to achieve profitable
long term growth.

The proceeds from the issue of the Bonds is used for further
expansion of the Group’s store networks, promotion of in-house
brands, potential business expansion opportunities, and/or other
general corporate purposes.

STAFF

The Group’s remuneration policies are reviewed on a regular
basis and remuneration packages are in line with market practices
in the relevant countries where the Group operates. As of 31
March 2015, the Group had 3,876 (2014: 3,812) employees. The
Group offers KPI related bonuses to eligible employees based on
the performance of the Group and the individual employee. The
Group also provides related training programmes to improve the
quality, competence and skills of its employees.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report is set out on
pages 163 to 178.

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Joseph C. C. Wong
Vincent Lau Tak Bui
Wallace Kwan Chi Kin
Sakorn Kanjanapas
Mary Ma Xuezheng
Alex Wong Yu Tsang
Nelson Wu Chun Sang  (independent non-executive)
Lawrence Wu Chi Man  (independent non-executive)
Agnes Kwong Yi Hang  (independent non-executive)

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(retirement effective from 1 July 2015)

In accordance with Bye-law 110(A), Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang,
Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin and Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
(“AGM”) and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui resigned on 1 July 2015 as executive
director of the Company due to retirement. Mr. Lau has confirmed
that he has no disagreement with the Board and nothing relating to
the affairs of the Company needed to be brought to the attention
of the shareholders of the Company.

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr. Joseph C. C.
Wong, Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas, Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui and Mr.
Wallace Kwan Chi Kin are also directors in certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Other directors of the Company’s subsidiaries in
Hong Kong during the year and up to the date of this report: Mr.
William Hui Kin Wai, Mr. Cheng Hok Yuk, Ms. Stella Chow Yin
Oi, Mr. Lancelot Lo Kwun Fung, Mr. Wong Kai Kwong, Ms. Emily
Choy Pik Yin, Ms. Leung Sze Mun and Mr. Johnny Chan Koon Kiu.

No director has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The Company’s directors have formal letters of appointment
setting out the key terms and conditions of their appointment.
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During the year, Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong, Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui
and Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin were each eligible to an annual
bonus determinable under the terms of a KPI based executive
bonus scheme with respect to their management of the Group.
Provision for the bonuses in respect of the directors eligible under
the executive bonus scheme for the year ended 31 March 2015
amounted to HK$16,945,000 (2014: HK$12,293,000).

Apart from the foregoing, no other transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s businesses to
which the Company's subsidiaries or its holding company was a party
and in which a director of the Company and the director's connected
party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Joseph C. C. WONG, aged 55, was appointed executive director
of the Company in 1986. Mr. Wong undertook his tertiary
studies in the United Kingdom. He graduated from the University
of Bradford with a B.Sc. in Industrial Engineering (First Class
Honours). Mr. Wong also holds a M.Sc. (with Distinction) in
Operational Research from the University of Southampton. Mr.
Wong is the Founding Honorary Patron of the HKU Foundation
for Education Development and Research and has been serving
the Board of Directors of the Foundation for over 15 years. He is
also a member of the Court of the University of Hong Kong. He
was awarded an Honorary Fellowship by the University of Hong
Kong in 2013. He is a brother of Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas, a non-
executive director of the Company.

Directors

Vincent LAU Tak Bui (retirement effective on 1 July 2015), aged
57, was appointed executive director of the Company in 2006.
Mr. Lau was CEO of the Thong Sia Group of Companies (“Thong
Sia Group”) (acquired by the Company in September 2005)
between 2002 and 2012. He was appointed Vice-Chairman of
Thong Sia Group in 2012. He is an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Up till Mr. Lau's
retirement, he was Group Chief Operating Officer.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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Wallace KWAN Chi Kin, aged 45, joined the Group in November
2011 as Group Finance Director and was appointed an executive
director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company in July
2013. Mr. Kwan holds a Bachelor of Social Science Degree
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He also holds a
Master of Business Administration Degree from the University of
Manchester and a Master of Laws in Corporate & Financial Law
from The University of Hong Kong. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and also a fellow
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Kwan
has over 20 years of experience in financial management having
worked at an international audit firm and listed companies.

Sakorn KANJANAPAS, aged 65, was appointed a non-executive
director of the Company in 1987. He is a director of publicly listed
Bangkok Land Public Company Limited (Thailand). He is a brother
of the Chairman.

Mary MA Xuezheng, aged 63, was appointed a non-executive
director of the Company in December 2012. Ms. Ma graduated
from Capital Normal University. She was appointed a non-
executive director of the Securities and Futures Commission
on 15 November 2013. She is a Managing Partner of Boyu
Capital Advisory Co. Ltd., the adviser to the investment fund
which ultimately owns Sapphire Illuminatus Holdings Limited.
Prior to Boyu Capital, Ms. Ma was a Partner of TPG Capital and
co-Chairman of TPG China where she primarily focused on
investments in the Greater China region. Before joining TPG,
Ms. Ma was a Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
of Lenovo Group Ltd. Ms. Ma has been a member of the Lenovo
board since 1997 and currently serves as non-executive Vice
Chairman, a role she has served since 2007. She is also a non-
executive director of Wumart Stores, Inc. and a non-executive
director of Unilever N.V. and Unilever PLC. Between 2009
and 2011, Ms. Ma was a non-executive director of Daphne
International Holdings Ltd. Between 2009 and 2013, Ms. Ma
was a member of the Listing Committee of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and between 2004 and 2013, was an independent
non-executive director of Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong)
Limited. Ms. Ma has been a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors since 2000. Ms. Ma worked for The Chinese Academy
of Sciences before joining Lenovo.
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Alex WONG Yu Tsang, aged 37, was appointed a non-executive
director of the Company in December 2012. Mr. Wong holds
a Bachelor of Business Administration degree (First Class
Honours) from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Wong
is an executive director of Boyu Capital Advisory Co. Ltd., the
adviser to the investment fund which ultimately owns Sapphire
[lluminatus Holdings Limited. Prior to Boyu Capital, Mr. Wong
was an executive director at Goldman Sachs’ Principal Investment
Area. Prior to this, Mr. Wong was a consultant in McKinsey &
Company’s Corporate Finance Practice.

WU Chun Sang, aged 58, was appointed an independent non-
executive director of the Company in 2004. He is a Macau
Registered Auditor. He is also a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, UK and an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Lawrence WU Chi Man, aged 57, was appointed an independent
non-executive director of the Company in 2005. He graduated
from Bristol University, UK with a BSc(Eng) and PhD in
Aeronautical Engineering. He is a Professor at the Department of
Physics and Material Science at the City University of Hong Kong.
He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers (HKIE). He
is also a Council Member of the HKIE. He received the Taishan (%%
1122 Scholar award from the Shandong Provincial Government
in 2012.

Agnes KWONG Yi Hang, aged 56, holds a PhD in Molecular
Immunology from the University of Hong Kong. She was
appointed an independent non-executive director of the Company
in 2006. She is a director of TEMP Limited and Health Wisdom
Limited, both of these companies are health consultancies.

Chief Counsel and Company Secretary

Caroline CHONG, aged 53, joined the Group in 1997. She
graduated from the University of Kent, United Kingdom with a
Bachelor of Arts (Law) (Hons) degree. She is admitted as a Barrister
in England and Wales, and, Hong Kong. She is responsible for the
Group’s legal and corporate secretarial matters. Ms. Chong was
awarded with the “Managing IP In-House Award” organised by
the Euromoney Legal Media Group in 2012.
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SHARE OPTIONS

On 9 March 2005, a new share option scheme, replacing the
previous scheme which was approved by the shareholders on
25 June 1997, for the employees, officers and directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
approved and adopted by the shareholders pursuant to which the
Board was authorised to grant options to the employees, officers
and directors of the Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe
for shares of the Company for a fixed period. The option period
refers to a period which the Board may in its absolute discretion
determine and specify, save that (a) for ease of administration,
in the absence of a separate Board resolution at the time of
grant specifying otherwise, such period should be seven years
from the commencement date of the share option and (b) in any
event such period shall expire not later than 10 years from the
commencement date of the share option. The total number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes
must not in aggregate exceed 95,134,002 shares. The limit on
the number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other schemes must not exceed
30% of the shares in issue from time to time. No options may be
granted under any schemes of the Company if this will result in
the limit being exceeded. An offer of the grant of options must
be accepted within 28 days from the commencement date of
the relevant option period. The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to attract and retain the best quality personnel for the
development of the Company’s business; to provide additional
incentives to the employees, officers and directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries and to promote the long term financial success
of the Company by aligning the interests of Option Holder (any
employee or a director of the Company or any subsidiary who
accepts an offer of the grant of an Option in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme or their legal personal
representatives) to shareholders. The consideration payable on
acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1. The
subscription price is determined by the Board at the time of grant
of the relevant option and shall not be less than whichever is
the higher of the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”) on the commencement date of the share
option, which must be a business day; the average closing prices
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
commencement date of the share option; and the nominal value
of a share. No option had been granted during the year. The Share
Option Scheme expired before 31 March 2015.

BB
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With the exception of the Share Option Scheme of the Company,
at no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries or
its holding company a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2015, the interests and short positions of the
directors, and the Company’s chief executive in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies were as follows:

(@)  The Company - Ordinary shares

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Number of shares

BRAS LY WA MEIORE RT3 5 - AR NAS A ]~ R
28 R BCHARE A IR RT AR AT 2R BfEA L
) T T R WSO AR 2 ) BT At 2k B A B B
s -

EEo ks

201543 H31 H » $8A Al RIS L &k
) (T 38 M B A6 1) 565 352 Mt B 2 Bt
Frac sk > EH RARNT Z @7 BN B IAA T
BHAT AT B 05 [ (e o B N BRI XV 2
TEFE) Z ey - MBIy M A 5 R A 2 BE 2R
WA R E W T AER TR S 2
WS HI T 2B 06 AR 2 ) A2 i 2 RERS B R &
T

(@ ARNFE -
TR L F] Z R R B0 2 4T

Approximate
percentage of

REE issued share
Corporate/ capital
Personal Family trust interest Other HE 8T
Name of Director interest interest =B interest Total Bz
EENSE PN REER ErtER HihigEz= Hwy B EIL
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 607,109,892 11,000 1,195,100 ~ 608,315,992 58.13
HOAHE SR (Note 1) (Note 2)
(Ktat 1) (Bit7E2)
Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui 10,024,920 - - - 10,024,920 0.96
BIFEARSE A
Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin - - - - - -
Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas 67,221,078 - 1,195,100 - 68,416,178 6.54
HANTIEAE (Note 2)
(Bit7E2)
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Short

These interests include Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong’s interest in the
67,221,078 shares of the Company (which are beneficially owned
by Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas) under unlisted physically settled equity
derivatives arising from options granted by Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas
to Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong to purchase such shares within a period
of 3 years from 27 August 2012.

Yee Hing Company Limited, directly and indirectly through
its subsidiary including Active Lights Company Limited, held
1,195,100 shares of the Company as at 31 March 2015. 55% of the
total issued ordinary shares of Yee Hing Company Limited is held by
Klayze Holdings Limited, which is the trustee of a discretionary trust
(the “Trust”). Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong and Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas
are the beneficiaries of the Trust and were therefore deemed to be
interested in 1,195,100 shares of the Company through the Trust’s
interest in Yee Hing Company Limited.

position in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas has a short position in 67,221,078

shares of the Company under unlisted physically settled equity

derivatives arising from options granted by Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas

to Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong to purchase such shares within a period
of 3 years from 27 August 2012.

(1) S RERR LG T A o AR A 7] 67,221,078 i
ety (BRI SE AR AR ) 2 HE2S > WS
Ty AT 3 e A R 2012 4E8 H 27
H R 5] 3 47 30 i 0 0 e 3 2 6 JBe A e v AE A 9 1
T EE A8 o e 22 A A T IE T ey o

(2)  JA20154F3 H31 H » ZEBAT PR ) B el i £
ML E 2 F Active Lights Company Limited
FEAA 1,195,100 LA © Klayze Holdings
Limited AYE 2 —JHII S5 5T ([{5 60 ) 2 5t A&
e FE A R A 230 E 3 T AL 2 55% HE
i o ARG e RE AL A BEEZZ M A
BB, 2 5 RE R e B PR W) 2 RE AR T A
AR5 ) 1,195,100 BB RESS ©

TS L AR RAA B 07 1

BV HEAT AN T 67,221,078 EIEA B9 R
B RRE B T AL S A 1] B A G S A AR R
20124F8 7 27 H AL FE 3 4F H [ I 550 I 1 2 1 i
MERTREAE R IE DT E R A 5 B e i A LRI Bk

i o

(b)  Subsidiaries (b)  BEAT

Approximate

percentage

of the total

preference

shares in issue

as at

31 March

2015

Number of shares 72015 F

RO BE 3A31H

Personal Family Corporate HEHE

interests interest interests Total BITEER

EARERE RERERE EE R By BRED T

(i) City Chain (Thailand) Company Limited — Preference shares'
City Chain (Thailand) Company Limited — B5c/8&’

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 200 - 208,800 209,000 99.52
A e

Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas 200 - 208,800 209,000 99.52
HANLEA

B () A RA A
2015 4F4FH)
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Approximate
percentage
of the total
preference

shares in issue
as at
31 March
2015
Number of shares #2015 F
B A 3A31H
Personal Family Corporate HEHE
interests interest interests Total BITEER
B ARz XEER EERER B BOBEDL
(i) Stelux Watch (Thailand) Company Limited — Preference shares?
Stelux Watch (Thailand) Company Limited — 45/ 2
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 600 - - 600 16.67
AN e
Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas 600 - - 600 16.67
BRI
(iii)  Optical 88 (Thailand) Company Limited — Preference shares®
Optical 88 (Thailand) Company Limited — {8 /i3
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 5,000 - 225,000 230,000 90.20
AN A
Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas 5,000 - 225,000 230,000 90.20
BRI
(iv)  Stelux (Thailand) Limited — Preference shares*
Stelux (Thailand) Limited — #5¢/& *
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 5,100 - - 5,100 100
FAIN
Notes: ftzt -
(1) City Chain (Thailand) Company Limited is a subsidiary of the (1) City Chain (Thailand) Company Limited £ 742\
Company. Each preference share carries a right to vote and a right A B A A o B3 BB S A SR AR
to an annual fixed dividend but not to any other profit sharing. The W] IS LT M 2 AT oAb 2 ) - A
corporate interests of each of Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong and Mr. Sakorn RSt s B SE A & B LAk A SRR R Y
Kanjanapas in 208,800 preference shares duplicate with each 208,800 BB e Sy AT o
other.
(2)  Stelux Watch (Thailand) Company Limited is a subsidiary of the (2)  Stelux Watch (Thailand) Company Limited 2 42
Company. Each preference share carries a right to vote and a right Al B A A o B B I A B AR Y
to an annual fixed dividend but not to any other profit sharing. [ 2 JR, - (B G 23 B o HoA 22 ) o
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3) Optical 88 (Thailand) Company Limited is a subsidiary of the
Company. Each preference share carries a right to vote and a right
to an annual fixed dividend but not to any other profit sharing. The
corporate interests of each of Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong and Mr. Sakorn
Kanjanapas in 225,000 preference shares duplicate with each
other.

(4)  Stelux (Thailand) Limited is a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Joseph
C. C. Wong is entitled to approximately 8.6% of the voting power of
such subsidiary and an annual fixed dividend by virtue of the 5,100
preference shares held by him but not to any other profit sharing.

Save as disclosed above, no directors, chief executive of the
Company or their associates have any interest or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies.

INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE PURSUANT
TO THE SFO

As at 31 March 2015, the following persons had interests in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of

(3)  Optical 88 (Thailand) Company Limited % 4</A
FIA B A T o IR e A PR AR Y
I 7 FER o AL SEAE 23 AT AT LA ) o B 48
Jet REANLAEAE & B DAL 4 S 1A 1Y
225,000 S e/ EAR R o

(4)  Stelux (Thailand) Limited Z£57%S ] 1 B & A 7 o
T 4 e AR A R P JE A | T REAE Y 5,100 BCHER S
5 % B TR A ) KA 8.6 % F5 S A R g A 1Y [
TE ML o ARSI AR 7 BUAT o] LAt 281 ) o

bR ESCRTHER AL AREAS A AR IR R TR B
A9 265 352 Mo i B A7 6w M Jr i ok A 2 ) L M
SRR b 2% ) AT R 5 5 By (AR e T A
PR - AN FAEE - AT B B 85
F1 Bt B8 N L A A 2 ) ECHCAE o] A ) (3%
it 75 B BRI 2R XV AR IR E 28) (19 FB 1 A I ke
3 A AL AT R 4 BR A -

REBHZRPEROATURE 2 RRES

MR B 65 W B G056 336 16 1M B 77 2 B we
ok > DU AR 20154F3 A 31 HRARA & 2 it
153 BUAH B B0y R A i 25 SR A -

the SFO:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Number of shares

TN F] Z et R 2 A7 T

Approximate
percentage of

R EE issued share

Corporate/ capital

Personal Family  trust interest Other HE BT

Name of Director interest interest =8/ interest Total RA&Z

EEnE BARER REER SR HipfEs Fokd BABSH

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 607,109,892 11,000 1,195,100 - 608,315,992 58.13
HAIE (Note 1) (Note 2)
(7t 1) (Wit 2)

Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas 67,221,078 - 1,195,100 - 68,443,178 6.54
#HANTEE (Note 2)
(7t 2)

Boyu Capital Holdings Ltd. - - 190,268,000 - 190,268,000 18.18
(Note 3)
(M 3)

NTAsian Discovery Master Fund 54,250,000 - - - 54,250,000 5.18

B () A RA A
2015 4F4FH)
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These interests include Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong’s interest in the
67,221,078 shares of the Company (which are beneficially owned
by Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas) under unlisted physically settled equity
derivatives arising from options granted by Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas
to Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong to purchase such shares within a period
of 3 years from 27 August 2012.

Yee Hing Company Limited, directly and indirectly through
its subsidiary including Active Lights Company Limited, held
1,195,100 shares of the Company as at 31 March 2015. 55% of the
total issued ordinary shares of Yee Hing Company Limited is held by
Klayze Holdings Limited, which is the trustee of a discretionary trust
(the “Trust”). Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong and Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas
are the beneficiaries of the Trust and were therefore deemed to be
interested in 1,195,100 shares of the Company through the Trust’s
interest in Yee Hing Company Limited.

The Company has issued convertible bonds in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$371,022,600 to Sapphire Illuminatus
Holdings Limited (the “Convertible Bonds”), all of which were
outstanding as at 31 March 2015. The Convertible Bonds are
convertible into shares of the Company at the initial conversion
price of HK$1.95 per new share. Assuming the exercise in full
of the conversion right attaching to the Convertible Bonds at the
initial conversion price, a total of 190,268,000 new shares of the
Company will be issued. Sapphire Illuminatus Holdings Limited is
wholly-owned by Boyu Capital Fund I, L.P., which is wholly-owned
by Boyu Capital General Partner I, L.P., which is wholly-owned by
Boyu Capital General Partner |, Ltd., which is in turn wholly-owned
by Boyu Capital Holdings Ltd.

Save as disclosed above, the directors are not aware of any person

(other than a director or chief executive of the Company or his/

her respective associate(s)), who had an interest or short position

in the

shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in

the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO as at
31 March 2015.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or
sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

STELUX

Holdings International Limited
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier

— five largest suppliers combined
Sales

— the largest customer

— five largest customers combined

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
to the best knowledge of the directors of the Company, at least
25% of issued share capital of the Company was held by public
members as at the date of this report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE BY INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received confirmations of independence from
its independent non-executive directors, who have confirmed
their independence as of 1 April 2014 up to and including 31
March 2015. The Company considers its independent non-
executive directors to be independent.

Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang was appointed an independent
non-executive director of the Company in 2006 and by the
forthcoming AGM will have served for 9 years. Dr. Kwong has
confirmed her independence as regards each of the factors
referred to in Rule 3.13(1) to (8) of the Listing Rules; she does not
have any past or present financial or other interest in the business
of the Company or its subsidiaries or any connection with any
connected person (as defined under the Listing Rules); and there
are no other factors that may affect her independence. Therefore,
the Board believes that Dr. Kwong is independent and proposes
her re-election as an independent non-executive director of the
Company at the forthcoming AGM.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following continuing connected transactions are based on
normal commercial terms agreed after arms’ length negotiations
between the parties and are in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Company. The continuing connected transactions
are subject to the annual review, reporting and announcement
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and
exempt from independent shareholders’ approval.

Continuing Connected Transactions of the Group for the
Financial Year Ended 31 March 2015

The following continuing connected transactions under the
heading above have been reviewed by the directors (including
the independent non-executive directors) of the Company. The
independent non-executive directors of the Company have
confirmed that during the year all these transactions were entered
into:

(@) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b) either (i) on normal commercial terms or (ii) where there was
no available comparison on terms no less favourable to or
from the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and

(c)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions on terms that were fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The Company’s auditor has issued
an unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group below in accordance with paragraph 14A.56 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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Summary of the continuing connected transactions:

FRAE B 2 oy 2
Income/
Connected persons Nature of transactions (expenses) Annual Caps Notes
BEAL REME KA (XH) FELR By aE
HK$'000 HK$’000
AT AT
International Optical Manufacturing Manufacture & supply of (1,032) (5,800) (i)&(xi)
Company Limited and its subsidiaries optical products and purchase
(“10M”) of optical products
PRIR G B A PR P B HE M A /] SRS R (R R G e ) %
(T1OMJ) H RS At
Mengiwa Property Investment Limited Leasing of properties (13,430) (16,455) (i) to
(“MPIL") as Landlord Y (Vi) &(xi)
MY B A IR (TR ])
((FFEE =2
Active Lights Company Limited (“ALCL”)  Leasing of properties (1,970) (1,975) (vii) to
and Thong Sia Company Limited HEYE (ix)&(xi)
(“TSCL"), each of them as Landlord
Active Lights Company Limited (I ALCLJ)
S Thong Sia Company Limited
(ITSCL) » %45 AfE AT
MPIL as Principal Provision of management and 2,340 2,574  (x)&(xi)
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property agency liaison
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Notes:

Manufacture & supply of optical products and purchase of optical
products

(i) The Group announced on 22 March 2013 (“Announcement”),
that on 21 March 2013, the Group, through certain of its wholly-
owned subsidiaries, entered into the Manufacturing and Supply
Agreements 2013 with IOM with effect from 1 April 2013 to 31
March 2016 to renew the Manufacturing and Supply Agreements.
All definitions in this note have the same meaning as referred to in
the Announcement.

The Group has continued to engage IOM to design, manufacture
and supply house-brand and licensed-brand optical products to the
Group typically for cash with payment terms ranging from 30 days
to 90 days, upon receipt of invoice. The terms of purchases have
been determined on an individual purchase order basis based on
prevailing industry conditions and the purchases have been made
on normal commercial terms.

The annual cap for the year ended 31 March 2015 was set at
HK$5,200,000 based on the Group’s past experience and best
estimation of the maximum amount of future purchases.

In order for the Group to continue to make purchases of optical
products for the Group's retail operations from the IOM Group after
the expiry of the Renewal Retail Purchase Agreement on 31 March
2013, on 21 March 2013, the Group and IOM Group, through
their respective subsidiaries, entered into a Further Renewal Retail
Purchase Agreement with effect from 1 April 2013 to 31 March
2016.

The annual cap for the year ended 31 March 2015 was set at
HK$600,000 based on the Group’s past experience and best
estimation of the maximum amount of future purchases. Based on
the above, the maximum aggregate annual values of purchases
of optical products by the Group from the IOM Group under
the Manufacturing and Supply Agreements 2013 and the Further
Renewal Retail Purchase Agreement in aggregate for the year ended
31 March 2015 were set at HK$5,800,000.

The Group is satisfied with the business relationship with IOM
over the previous years, and IOM’s market knowledge and trend
perception in certain major markets, as evidenced by its success
in being a supplier to various internationally renowned brands of
optical products.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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The directors (including all independent non-executive directors)
of the Company are of the view that the Manufacturing and
Supply Agreements 2013 and the Further Renewal Retail Purchase
Agreement were entered into in the usual and ordinary course of
business of the Group on normal commercial terms which were
agreed after arm’s length negotiations between the parties, and that
the terms of the above-mentioned agreements and the maximum
aggregate annual values of purchases of optical products by the
Group from IOM Group are fair and reasonable and are in the
interests of the Group and the Shareholders as a whole.

Leasing of office premises and carparking spaces

(ii)

The Group announced on 10 December 2012 (“Announcement”),
that on 10 December 2012, Stelux Holdings Limited (“SHL"),
Thong Sia Watch Company Limited (“TSWCL”) and Thong Sia
Optics (Hong Kong) Company Limited (“TSOHK”), wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, each individually as tenant, entered
into the Stelux House Renewal Tenancy Agreements 2013 with
Mengiwa Property Investment Limited (“MPIL”) in respect of the
following properties:

Premises A: whole of 27th floor and portion of 28th floor
(including 12 carparking spaces) at Stelux House

Premises B: whole of 21st floor (including 3 carparking spaces)
at Stelux House

Premises C: office unit numbers 502, 503, 505 and 506 on the
5th floor at Stelux House

Premises D: office unit numbers 1901, 1902 and 1903 with two
storerooms numbers 1A and 1B on the 19th floor at
Stelux House

Premises E: office unit numbers 1702 and 1703 on the 17th
floor at Stelux House

Premises F: storeroom no. 6A on 18th floor at Stelux House

Premises G: portion of office unit numbers 1905 and 1906 with
storeroom no. 6A on 19th floor at Stelux House

Premises H: office unit numbers 2201, 2202 and 2206 with

storeroom numbers 1A, 1B, 6A and 6B on the 22nd
Floor of Stelux House

All definitions in this note have the same meaning as referred to in
the Announcement.

The lease term of the above premises is from 1 April 2013 up to and
including 31 March 2016 with no rent-free period.

The total monthly rental is HK$881,700 comprising HK$830,000
per calendar month for the office premises (Premises A, B, C, D,
E, G and H (exclusive of rates, government rent and management
charges) and HK$51,700 per calendar month for the 15 carparking
spaces and a storeroom (Premises F) (inclusive of rates, government
rent and management charges), both payable monthly in advance
in cash by the tenant on the first day of each and every calendar
month.
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On 21 March 2013, the renewed tenancy agreement in respect
of Premises G above was surrendered (“Surrendered Tenancy
Agreement”) and SHL (as tenant) entered into a new tenancy
agreement with MPIL (as landlord) to rent a larger portion of office
unit numbers 1905 and 1906 with storeroom no. 6A on 19th floor
and an additional 6 carparking spaces at Stelux House for the
same rental period as that for the Surrendered Tenancy Agreement
(“Tenancy Agreement”).

The monthly rental for the Tenancy Agreement is HK$70,762.90
comprising HK$51,862.90 per calendar month for the portion of
the office units with a storeroom (exclusive of rates, government
rent and management charges) and HK$18,900 per calendar month
for the 6 carparking spaces (inclusive of rates, government rent
and management charges), both payable in advance in cash by the
tenant on the first day of each and every calendar month.

With respect to Premises B, the lease of one of the car parking
spaces with monthly rental of HK$3,350 was early terminated with
effect from 1 June 2014.

SHL, as tenant, has been granted the naming right of Stelux House
and each of SHL, TSWCL and TSOHK has been granted an option
for the Premises A, B, C, D, E, H and the Tenancy Agreement, but
not an obligation, to renew the relevant tenancy agreement with the
landlord every three years for three more years for a maximum of
15 years commencing from 1 April 2016 at the then prevailing open
market rent.

The monthly rents of all the above-mentioned office premises
were determined on an arm’s length basis taking into account the
valuations conducted by an independent property valuer dated
2 November 2012, which indicate that the renewal rental rates
under the Stelux House Tenancy Renewal Agreements 2013 and
the Tenancy Agreement were favourable to the Group as compared
with the prevailing market rental values of the subject premises,
while the rental rates for carparking spaces were determined
with reference to the prevailing market rental rates. Accordingly,
the Directors considered the Stelux House Renewal Tenancy
Agreements 2013 and the Tenancy Agreement were on normal
commercial terms and were fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Group has been using the subject office premises (including the
carparking spaces) primarily for office, administrative and storage
purposes over a long period of time. In order to avoid possible
disruption to its business due to relocation, the Group intends to
continue to lease/licence the subject office premises (including
the carparking spaces) following the expiration of the relevant
leases/licences. The directors consider it to be in the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole for the Group to
continue to use the subject premises as long as the relevant rental/
licence fee and other terms are favourable to the Group so as to
avoid relocation and refurbishment costs which otherwise the
Group will have to incur.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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(iii)

(iv)

The Group announced on 22 May 2013 (“Announcement”), that on
22 May 2013, SHL (as tenant) entered into two tenancy agreements
with MPIL (as landlord) as summarized below. All definitions in this
note have the same meaning as referred to in the Announcement.

(@) to rent office unit number 2205 on 22nd floor at Stelux
House for a term of two years ten months and nine days
commencing on 23 May 2013 and expiring on 31 March
2016 (“Tenancy Agreement A). The monthly rental of
HK$23,850 (exclusive of rates, government rent and
management charges) is payable in advance in cash by the
tenant on the first day of each and every calendar month; and

(b)  to rent storeroom number 1B on 20th floor at Stelux House
for a term of two years eight months and nineteen days from
13 July 2013 up to and including 31 March 2016 (“Tenancy
Agreement B). The monthly rental of HK$5,000 (inclusive of
rates, government rent and management charges) is payable
in advance in cash by the tenant on the first day of each and
every calendar month.

The above monthly rents were determined on an arm’s length basis
taking into account the prevailing market rental rates at Stelux
House. Accordingly, the directors considered that the terms of the
Tenancy Agreements A and B reflected normal commercial terms
and were fair and reasonable, and the entering into of Tenancy
Agreements A and B were in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

With respect to the Tenancy Agreement A, SHL was granted an
option, but not an obligation, to renew the tenancy every three years
for three more years for a maximum of 15 years commencing from
1 April 2016 at the then prevailing open market rent.

The Group announced on 28 November 2013 (“Announcement”),
that on 28 November 2013, SHL (as tenant) entered into a tenancy
agreement with MPIL (as landlord) to rent office unit number 601
and storeroom numbers 1A and 1B on 6th floor at Stelux House for a
term of two years and three months commencing on 1 January 2014
and expiring on 31 March 2016. All definitions in this note have the
same meaning as referred to in the Announcement.

The monthly rental of HK$42,500 (exclusive of rates, government
rent and management charges) is payable in advance in cash by the
tenant on the first day of each and every calendar month.

The monthly rental was determined on an arm’s length basis taking
into account the valuation on the office unit with two storerooms
conducted by an independent property valuer dated 22 November
2013. Accordingly, the directors considered that the terms of the
tenancy agreement reflected normal commercial terms and were
fair and reasonable, and the entering into of tenancy agreement was
in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

(iii)

(iv)
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(vi)

In addition, SHL was granted an option, but not an obligation,
to renew the tenancy every three years for three more years for a
maximum of 15 years commencing from 1 April 2016 at the then
prevailing open market rent.

The Group announced on 9 April 2014, that on 9 April 2014, SHL
(as tenant) entered into a tenancy agreement with MPIL (as landlord)
to rent storeroom number 6A on 17th floor at Stelux House for a
term commencing from 16 April 2014 and expiring on 31 March
2016 (i.e. one year eleven months and sixteen days).

The monthly rental of HK$4,570 (inclusive of rates, government
rent and management charges) is payable in advance in cash by the
tenant on the first day of each and every calendar month.

The monthly rental was determined on an arm’s length basis
taking into account prevailing market rental rates at Stelux House.
Accordingly, the Directors consider that the terms of the tenancy
agreement reflect normal commercial terms and to be fair and
reasonable, and the entering into this tenancy agreement is in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

In addition, SHL was granted an option, but not an obligation,
to renew the tenancy every three years for three more years for a
maximum of 15 years commencing from 1 April 2016 at the then
prevailing open market rent.

The Group requires more space to meet its operational needs and
leasing this additional space at Stelux House (where the Group’s
headquarter is located) is more convenient than at other locations
and will also help to improve operational efficiency.

The Group announced on 9 October 2014, that on 9 October 2014,
SHL (as tenant) entered into the following tenancy agreements with
MPIL (as landlord) to rent office premises and storerooms:

Premises I: whole of 26th floor with storeroom numbers. 1A,
1B, 6A and 6B on 26th floor at Stelux House

Premises J: office unit 2203 on 22nd floor at Stelux House

Premises K: office unit 1501 with storeroom number 1A on

15th floor at Stelux House

The lease term of the above premises is from 9 October 2014 and
expiring on 31 March 2016 (i.e. one year five months and twenty
three days).

The total monthly rental is HK$352,540 (exclusive of rates,
government rent and management charges) and is payable in
advance in cash by the tenant on the first day of each and every
calendar month.

STELUX Holdings International Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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The monthly rents for all the above-mentioned office premises
were determined on an arm’s length basis taking into account the
respective rental valuations conducted by an independent property
valuer dated 30 September 2014, which indicate that the rental
rates of these office premises are at market rates. Accordingly, the
Directors considered that the terms of these tenancy agreements
reflect normal commercial terms and were fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

In addition, SHL was granted an option, but not an obligation,
to renew the tenancy every three years for three more years for a
maximum of 15 years commencing from 1 April 2016 at the then
prevailing open market rent.

The Group requires more space to meet its operational needs and
leasing the additional space at Stelux House (where the Group’s
headquarter is located) is more convenient than at other locations
and will also help to improve operational efficiency and reduce
overall rental costs.

Leasing of warehouses and vehicle parking spaces

(vii)

The Group announced on 10 December 2012 (“Announcement”),
that on 10 December 2012, the Group, through certain of its wholly
owned subsidiaries, each individually as tenant/licensee, entered
into the Warehouse Leasing and Licence Renewal Agreements 2013
with TSCL and ALCL, each individually as landlord/licensor, to
renew the term of the leases/licences of 4 existing warehouse spaces
in Hong Kong for terms of three years commencing on 1 April 2013
and expiring on 31 March 2016. All definitions in this note have the
same meaning as referred to in the Announcement.

Monthly rental totaled HK$155,920 comprising HK$146,420
per calendar month (exclusive of rates, government rent and
management charges) for 3 warehouse spaces and HK$9,500
per calendar month (inclusive of rates, government rent and
management charges) for the remaining 1 warehouse space, both
payable monthly in advance in cash by the tenants on the first day
of each and every calendar month.

The monthly rentals/licence fees were determined on an arm’s
length basis after having taken into account the valuations on
the warehouses conducted by an independent property valuer
on 23 November 2012, which indicate that the renewal rentals/
licence fees under the Warehouse Leasing and Licence Renewal
Agreements 2013 were favourable to the Group as compared
with the prevailing market rental/licence fee values of the subject
warehouses. Accordingly, the Directors considered the Warehouse
Leasing and Licence Renewal Agreements 2013 were on normal
commercial terms and were fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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(viii)

(ix)

The Group announced on 9 April 2014 (“Announcement”), that
on 9 April 2014, the lease of the warehouse under the Renewal
Tenancy Agreement has been surrendered and the warehouse
was relocated within the same building for logistic efficiency. A
new tenancy agreement was entered into between the existing
tenant and the landlord (i.e. TSCL) for a term commencing from 16
April 2014 and expiring on 31 March 2016 (i.e. one year eleven
months and sixteen days) and for a monthly rental of HK$9,500. All
definitions in this note have the same meaning as referred to in the
Announcement.

The monthly rental was determined on an arm’s length basis taking
into account prevailing market rental rates in the vicinity. The
Directors consider that the terms of the tenancy agreement reflect
normal commercial terms and to be fair and reasonable, and the
entering into of this tenancy agreement is in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Group announced on 9 April 2014, that on 9 April 2014, the
Company through two of its wholly-owned subsidiaries entered into
two license agreements with ALCL to license two vehicle parking
spaces for a term of one year eleven months and sixteen days
commencing on 16 April 2014 and expiring on 31 March 2016. The
total monthly license fee is HK$8,600 (inclusive of management
charges but exclusive of rates and government rent).

The monthly license fees were determined on an arm’s length basis
taking into account prevailing market rates for the vehicle parking
spaces in the vicinity. The Directors consider that the terms of the
License Agreements reflect normal commercial terms and to be fair
and reasonable, and the entering into of License Agreements are in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The continuing connected transactions as set out in (ii) to (ix) above, in
relation to the leasing of properties from connected parties, have been
aggregated for the purpose of classification in accordance Rule 14A.81
of the Listing Rules, and the aggregate annual caps for the financial year
ended 31 March 2015 was approximately HK$18,430,000.

Provision of management and property agency liaison services

(x)

The Group announced on 10 December 2012 (“Announcement”),
that on 10 December 2012, Stelux Properties Agency Limited
(“SPAL”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as agent,
renewed the management and property agency liaison services
agreement (“Service Agreement 2013”) with MPIL for a term of three
years up to and including 31 March 2016 for the provision of the
following services (“Services”):

(@) contract administration with respect to contracts entered into
between MPIL and third parties from time to time;

(b)  property agency liaison and tenancy management;

(c)  management of the property manager of Stelux House; and

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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(viii)

(ix)

ek (i) =
E*Eﬁ%iﬁi%ﬁﬁ H14A81 & HF

ALEEB2014FE4HOHANETZAED B
201444 H 9 H » WIEHEY EHL R T
MAFEC TEUE |, & R 4R i AR A4 ik
o Iﬁﬁiﬂ}fﬁﬁi%E B TSCL) £ 5T 57 58 FiL & o
W% H201444 16 HEZE 201643 A31 HE
WE—ETANMAZNE) B A A
9,500 7t ° ARtk T A7 G FE 5L R% N 15 Ir dl # FLAH
] 25

ARG T NI EE - S F R P BT
WA o ERERA > BT — R K
FISL 0 A > 5T IL T B A A A A )
R 2 B 45

ALEEB2014F4HOHANETZAED B
201444 H 9 H » A% w75 itk JH i [ 2 g 2
A B ALCLET 7 W 48 & o] A p o > ZE Rl fi
AMEEL > B8 —F T+ —MAZTRH > A
201444 A 16 HELE 2016453 A 31 HIE - &
H A 2 A 3L 8,600 JC (L4545 B 28 (0 A L5
FE i S BN HAR) o

(SN (AR RE VAR DLV} - PR 4 W4 X
BTG E o FERRRR > BP0 ok T5 % —
e ST CIRVARE: VAL eI R RV Srigu N
Wik AF & AL 7] R 2 BB A 2 o

(i) JEA B Pl 2L R 0 2 R R AR B T 2 5
FEAMESER

MAZE 201543 H 31 H 1k B BUE 94 B T BR A8 A4
Fy k518,430,000 JC ©

BHE

B Rk YRR R A

ALEPB 2012412 H10 HASE (TZAED > 7
20124512 A 10 H » A ) 22 ¥ [ A ) B et
FEACHIA FRA R (TEErE ) (A R - B
e o 48 I ) AR AR AR S Wk (1201 34 AR
k) > £20164E3 31 H (A4FZH) 14
AR SRS AR (TR D)

(@) AFHITERLYS = AT SLI A A

(b)  WIEAEI A R

(©  EHEDLHETONYSEE AT



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

(d) other miscellaneous administrative services.

All definitions in this note have the same meaning as referred to in
the Announcement.

SPAL has been providing the Services with respect to Stelux
House since 1998 and has accumulated relevant knowledge and
experience. MPIL is satisfied so far with the Services provided by the
Group, whilst the remuneration received by the Group under the
Service Agreement is more than enough to cover the relevant costs
incurred by the Group in providing the Services. As such, SPAL
continued to provide the Services to MPIL following the expiration
of the preceding service agreement on 31 March 2013.

Monthly remuneration was set at HK$195,000 per calendar month
(in the first year up to and including 31 March 2014) payable in
advance in cash on the first day of each and every calendar month.
Parties to the Service Agreement 2013 shall negotiate and agree in
good faith to increase the remuneration on an annual basis for the
second year and the third year by not more than 10% over that in
the preceding year with reference to the actual increase in costs
(including but not limited to the related staff salaries) incurred by
the Group with respect to the provision of the Services. In the event
that no agreement is reached between the parties in negotiating
the remuneration for the next year, the remuneration shall remain
unchanged.

The monthly remuneration received by the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2015 was the same as that under the preceding
service agreement for the three years ended 31 March 2013.
The remuneration was arrived at after arm’s length negotiations
between the parties and with reference to the estimate of the costs
to be incurred by the Company with respect to the provision of the
Services in the financial year ended 31 March 2013. The directors
considered the terms of the Service Agreement 2013 were on
normal commercial terms and were fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

With reference to the monthly remuneration under the Service
Agreement 2013, the Annual Cap Amount for this continuing
connected transaction was set at HK$2,574,000 for the financial
year ended 31 March 2015.

Relationships between counterparties

(xi)

With respect to transactions (i) to (x) above, each of IOM, MPIL,
TSCL and ALCL is a subsidiary of Yee Hing Company Limited (“Yee
Hing”). Yee Hing, directly and indirectly through its subsidiary, held
0.11% of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 March 2015. The
Trust, of which Mr. Joseph C.C.Wong and Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas,
being directors of the Company, are beneficiaries, holds 55% of
the total issued shares of Yee Hing. Therefore, each of IOM, MPIL,
TSCL and ALCL is an associate of the aforesaid directors and hence
is a connected person of the Company. Therefore, transactions (i)
to (x) above constitute continuing connected transactions for the
Company.
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The above continuing connected transactions also constitute related
party transactions and are disclosed in note 30 to the financial
statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

As permitted by the Bye-laws of the Company, a director of the
Company may be indemnified out of the Company’s assets against
any liability incurred by the director, to the extent permitted by
Bermuda law. Such permitted indemnity provision has been in
force throughout the financial year and is currently in force at the
time of approval of this report.

The Company has also taken out and maintained directors” and
officers’ liability insurance throughout the year, which provides
appropriate cover for certain legal actions brought against its
directors and officers.

As permitted by the articles of association of the Company’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong (“Hong Kong Subsidiaries”), a director
or a former director of the Hong Kong Subsidiaries may be
indemnified out of the Hong Kong Subsidiaries’ assets against
any liability incurred by the director to a person other than the
Hong Kong Subsidiaries or an associated company of the Hong
Kong Subsidiaries, to the extent permitted by law. Such permitted
indemnity provision is currently in force at the time of approval of
this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

Last but not least, | express my most sincere thanks and gratitude
to colleagues and staff members for their commitment, hard work
and loyalty to the Group during the year.

On behalf of the Board

Joseph C. C. Wong
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 June 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B3 BT 3R

_E
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF STELUX HOLDINGS
INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Stelux Holdings International Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries set out on pages 40 to 139, which comprise
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2015, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
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T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

Mt : +852 2289 8888 » fHE : +852 2810 9888 » www.pwchk.com
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2015, and of their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 June 2015

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

meWwamk

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #% 201543 31 H IL4FJE
-

2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
FtEE BETT BT
Revenues A 5 3,940,849 3,891,572
Cost of sales P A 8 (1,524,407) (1,512,885)
Gross profit B 2,416,442 2,378,687
Other losses, net HAtbesi8 > 6 (16,557) (4,400)
Other income HAth g A 7 25,318 25,717
Selling expenses FHEE ST 8 (1,740,051) (1,720,009)
General and administrative expenses — PR B ATEC 8 (413,857) (384,249)
Other operating expenses HAEE S 8 (53,344) (33,416)
Operating profit B A 217,951 262,330
Finance costs S A 10 (72,141) (37,139)
Share of (loss)/profit of an associate JEAGEE AT (R, EF 16 (5,302) 1,267
Profit before income tax 5 BT 50 i Vi ) 140,508 226,458
Income tax expense JrigA 3 11 (48,449) (54,285)
Profit for the year RN 92,059 172,173
Attributable to: DLR AL -
Equity holders of the Company ARAFRER TR A 91,756 171,712
Non-controlling interests TEHE IR 7 303 461
92,059 172,173
HK cents HK cents
B il
Earnings per share attributable to AN T RERR R N HELG
the equity holders of the Company B A
— Basic — Bk 12 8.77 16.41
- Diluted — 12 8.77 15.98

The notes on pages 46 to 139 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #% 201543 31 H IL4EJE

2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BtEE BT AT
Profit for the year AT 7R i A1) 92,059 172,173
Other comprehensive income: HoAtb AT 4
ltems that may be reclassified to HAAFT HESFE
profit or loss: HIEH -
Exchange differences T8 5227 (41,622) (34,417)
Revaluation of available-for-sale ALY
financial assets WS e E A 17 (2,679) (286)
Other comprehensive income for the year, FRNFNBLR 2 HAth
net of tax EE (44,301) (34,703)
Total comprehensive income for the year 4 [N 2 i it £ 44 47 47,758 137,470
Attributable to: DU HEAG -
Equity holders of the Company E/NGILHE SRS DN 47,791 137,738
Non-controlling interests JE P IS A 25 (33) (268)
Total comprehensive income for the year  4F A4 it # 4848 47,758 137,470

The notes on pages 46 to 139 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

5546 2139 FAY BN RE S M4 PB5 HGR A9 A AT Bl 2 o

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2015



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mEEEAEX
As at 31 March 2015 4201543 A 31 H

Note 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BteE BT BT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FE LT
Property, plant and equipment LUERR 1Y T 13 460,463 493,473
Prepayment of lease premium TEASHAH B A 14 40,242 47,256
Investment in an associate i k- NE g <y 16 61,329 54,989
Intangible assets HIL G 15 60,664 63,197
Deferred tax assets IR ALl TE B 27 70,692 63,775
Available-for-sale financial assets ATk A Y AT 17 12,652 15,331
Debtors, deposits and prepayments JREWCRR ~ e )
FEAT IR 19 166,752 152,521
872,794 890,542
Current assets W) E
Stocks PNy 18 1,327,732 1,194,031
Debtors, deposits and prepayments MENORR - e &
TEAT A 19 430,743 423,494
Bank balances and cash SRATHE R B 20 460,143 457,683
2,218,618 2,075,208
Total assets AR 3,091,412 2,965,750
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable to A mIMERS FR A A REAL
the equity holders of the Company JBA K fiti A
Share capital JieAs 21 104,647 104,647
Reserves it 22 1,341,833 1,353,691
Shareholders’ funds R 4 1,446,480 1,458,338
Non-controlling interests T £ 7,350 7,483
Total equity ik 1,453,830 1,465,821

B () A RA A
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mEEERER

As at 31 March 2015 4201543 A 31 H

Note 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BteE BT AT
LIABILITIES =V
Non-current liabilities FmE AR’
Deferred tax liabilities PR AR IE A & 27 2,299 2,126
Borrowings B 25 52,068 70,464
Convertible bonds EE s 26 380,753 331,456
435,120 404,046
Current liabilities ) A fE
Creditors and accruals JiE AT R B e e 24 601,488 595,839
Income tax payable JREAT A5 21,249 35,921
Borrowings B 25 579,725 464,123
1,202,462 1,095,883
Total liabilities BB 1,637,582 1,499,929
Total equity and liabilities JBOHE I A A A 3,091,412 2,965,750

Joseph C.C. Wong Wallace Kwan Chi Kin
=AIG AER
Chairman and Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
T RATIE A %% T H R
B I B B A

The notes on pages 46 to 139 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 40 to 139 were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2015 and were signed
on its behalf.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REREEER
For the year ended 31 March 2015 #% 201543 31 H IL4FJE
-

Attributable to the equity holders

of the Company
FRARBHEAELS
Non-
Share Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  reserves  earnings Total interests equity

BA  Hitis RERA @t FERER  ERAE
(Note 21)  (Note22)  (Note 22)
(Mtak21)  (E22)  (HfsE22)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ik STV T 5 VR 1 - 4 - 0 TV - A

At 1 April 2013 201344 41 H 104,647 141,361 1,150,984 1,396,992 8,179 1,405,171
Profit for the year SRR - - 7712 171,712 461 172,173
Other comprehensive income:  HA AT -
Revaluation of available- AT I B A

for-sale financial assets - (286) - (286) - (286)
Exchange differences HE 0. 2535 - (33,688 - (33,688) (729)  (34,417)
Total other comprehensive income  FAth 2 i it & 4 At - (33,974) - (33,974) (729)  (34,703)
Total comprehensive income Eaiflenkit - (33974 171,712 137,738 (268) 137,470
Dividends paid (Note 23) EATIRE (FH3E23) - - (76392  (76,392) (428)  (76,820)
At31 March 2014 201443 031 H 104,647 107,387 1,246,304 1,458,338 7,483 1,465,821
At 1 April 2014 201454 71H 104,647 107,387 1,246,304 1,458,338 7,483 1,465,821
Profit for the year SE A T A - - 91,756 91,756 303 92,059
Other comprehensive income: ~ H A2 i
Revaluation of available-for-sale AT it f Y BT Y e

financial assets - (2,679) - (2,679) - (2,679)
Exchange differences M 5 2% - (41,286) - (41,286) (336) (41,622
Total other comprehensive income  FAl 4 i it 4 44 4 - (43,965) - (43,965) (336)  (44,301)
Total comprehensive income el Ek i - (43965) 91,756 47,791 (33) 47,758
Dividends paid (Note 23) TR (HH3E23) - - (59,649)  (59,649) (100)  (59,749)
At 31 March 2015 201543 A31H 104,647 63,422 1,278,411 1,446,480 7,350 1,453,830

The notes on pages 46 to 139 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #% 201543 31 H IL4EJE
-

2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
FifaE BT BT
Cash flows from operating activities EEIE M B
Cash generated from operations BRI E & 28 161,371 328,358
Interest paid EATFLE 9,311) (8,959)
Hong Kong profits tax paid AT RS A ﬁ (48,620) (21,132)
Overseas profits tax paid ARSI (22,880) (27,128)
Overseas profits tax refunded E?E[E]?’@%*'H%ﬁ 454 235
Net cash generated from operating activities BE B TR B A 81,014 271,374
Cash flows from investing activities BEEE BB
Purchase of property, plant and equipment AW - BES Rkt (95,572) (118,193)
Proceeds from sale of property, B - B R
plant and equipment PGS 1,029 1,723
Investment in an associate NEE A FEE (17,448) (38,368)
Acquisition of trademark N - (1,553)
Interest received R 1,342 1,123
Dividends received BB 2,052 3,175
Net cash used in investing activities PO WY B ] A9 B T A (108,597) (152,093)
Cash flows from financing activities Tl T O B 4
Drawdown of bank loans FEIERA T 557,765 644,513
Repayment of bank loans fEARRAT R (457,697) (602,079)
Capital element of finance lease payments R Em A S (129) (555)
Dividends paid to the Company’s shareholders — CLA A2 A IR B, (59,649) (76,392)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests B R I RE 2R R (100) (428)
Interest paid on convertible bonds O A AT 4RI fi 2 1L (13,533) (12,939)
Net cash generated from/(used in) e E B S (5T )
financing activities Y B A 26,657 (47,880)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and e RHEZEY 2 () /s
cash equivalents (926) 71,401
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year — F4) {15 & KB 4 %18 457,683 388,330
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes e e S ) ) 3 20 3,386 (2,048)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year AR B BB Y 460,143 457,683
Analysis of balances of cash and Bl Bl S EY AR BRI AT
cash equivalents:
Cash and bank balances B ORI T4 B 460,143 457,683

The notes on pages 46 to 139 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

GENERAL INFORMATION

The principal activity of Stelux Holdings International
Limited (“the Company”) is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are shown in Note 34
to the financial statements.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated. These financial
statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on
25 June 2015.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(@ Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Stelux
Holdings International Limited and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of available-for-sale financial assets, and certain
financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments), which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Adoption of new standards, amendments to standards
and interpretation

The following new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretation are mandatory for the first
time for the financial year beginning 1 April 2014 and
are adopted by the Group:
HKAS 32 (Amendment)  Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities
HKAS 36 (Amendment) ~ Recoverable amounts
disclosures for
non-financial assets
HKAS 39 (Amendment)  Novation of derivatives
and continuation of
hedge accounting
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Investment entities
and HKAS 27 (2011)

(Amendment)

K (IFRIC) 21 Levies

The adoption of the above amendments to standards
has no significant impact on the results and financial
position of the Group.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)

In addition, the Group early adopted the disclosure
requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
during the financial year, as a result, there are changes
to presentation and disclosures of certain information
in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTBERE(H)
(Continued)
(@) Basis of preparation (Continued) (@ wREE )

HERY - HERERT Kt

New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretation that are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group

DA B BB A HZERY 2015454 A1 H
o2 4% B bR 2 v A i el H A% A i A
LR )+ b A S [ ST I T R A 3 B
FHER 2Rl - MERIMETT KR

The following new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretation to existing standards have
been published and are mandatory for the Group’s
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2015
or later periods, but the Group has not early adopted
them:

Effective for the Group s
annual financial periods
beginning on or after

URIRTNER e v Gl

LB

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Disclosure initiative 1 April 2016
e b AUHES R 20165411 H
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (Amendment) Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation 1 April 2016
FGTHERS 16 SR FE GatEN R B R 2 T 201644 A 1H

A8 (BiTA)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 (Amendment) Agriculture: Bearer plants 1 April 2016
B ETHRAE 160 SR A ATHEN R R 2016541 1H

H415E (BaTA)
HKAS 19 (2011) (Amendment) Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions 1 April 2015
B GRS 199 (2011 ) eI - RAMK 201554 A 1H
HKAS 27 (Amendment) Equity method in separate financial statements 1 April 2016
B G RHERIA 27 5% (BT B A e o 201654 A 10
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 April 2018
BB AR 9 5 MR 201854711
HKFRS 10 and HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Investment entities: Applying the consolidation exception 1 April 2016

(Amendment) BT « BRA R Z ARBIMER 20164F411H
BB REEE 105 - FEMHRE

A1 RAEGTHENR 285 (BT A
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendment) Sale or contribution of assets between an investor 1 April 2016
BT EAIS 1098 and its associate or joint venture 201654 TH

FIEATHERS 28 58 (BT 4) BEAEABRR ARG AR N BE B R
HKFRS 11 (Amendment) Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations 1 April 2016
G AU RN Wl & R R 2 g 201654 A 1H
HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts 1 April 2016
BB AR 145 EERIERR 201654711
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 April 2017
BB RAER A 15 5 HEFTLAHZIA 20174 A1 H
Annual improvements project Annual improvements 2010-2012 cycle 1 April 2015
FEUERA 2010 % 2012 2 B B 2015411
Annual improvements project Annual improvements 2011-2013 cycle 1 April 2015
EREE R 2011 E2013 FRMZFRE 2015647101
Annual improvements project Annual improvements 2012-2014 cycle 1 April 2016
FREER 2012 F 20144 BH 2 FEEUE 20165411 H

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTERME ()

(Continued)

(@) Basis of preparation (Continued) (@ wBEE )
New standards, amendments to standards and [ A B T AR LE [ T JEF2 AR A 1
interpretation that are not yet effective and have not HEQY ~ SERNERT R i FE ()

been early adopted by the Group (Continued)

The expected impacts from the adoption of the 7 A [ B LE A DR A LA S vE Y~ e
above standards, amendments and interpretation to AMETT e ke 2 Ta 2 28 > MEBT P B
existing standards are still being assessed in details ARLUESE R HER - HERERT K iR
by management, and is not yet in a position to state 0 S A B ) 8 S A S S R LA L
whether they would have a significant impact on the HRFH -

Group's results of operations and financial position.

(b) Subsidiaries b KBLAA
(i) Consolidation (i) EHAHH
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured R Jo8 2 B 6 A 4 [ 3 L AL A P
entity) over which the Group has control. The i HE 19 i A B (60458 %
Group controls an entity when the Group is ) o EAEMNE S 2 M H
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns HE T 7 A T 83 [ i Y Jal By o =
from its involvement with the entity and has the A s R AR - AR
ability to affect those returns through its power 75 LR A2 E R O HE D S B
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated S ] $RIGE o A AR ) B A 2R
from the date on which control is transferred to o BHE A A ZHR B PR
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the R T AEE 2 HREATHmEE A
date that control ceases. AN - I B Rz iEmI A L2 1

EIkgRERIARKRH -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EEEWBRESE A
(Continued)
(b) Subsidiaries (Continued) b) MEBRRE )
(i) Consolidation (Continued) (i)  AAIEH ()
(1) Business combinations (1) ZEBEH
The Group applies the acquisition method A5 T BRI o SE

to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of
any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of
the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair
value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their
acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R Y EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

Consolidation (Continued)

(1)

Business combinations (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured
to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-
measurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value
of the contingent consideration that
is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39
either in profit or loss or as a change to
other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHERME ()
(Continued)
(b) Subsidiaries (Continued) b) KEBATE ()
(i) Consolidation (Continued) (i)  AAIEH ()

(1)

Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is
less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired in the case
of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the income
statement (note 2(g)).

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
When necessary, amounts reported
by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting
policies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R Y EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

Consolidation (Continued)

2)

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions-
that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as
an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

()

Subsidiaries (Continued)
(i) Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the company
on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the
date of acquisition. The Group’s investments in
associates include goodwill identified on acquisition.
Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in
an associate, any difference between the cost of the
associate and the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

Associates (Continued)

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to ‘share of profit of an associate’ in the income
statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in
associates are recognised in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d

(e)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Strategy
Committee members that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (HK$), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

(ii)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuations where items are remeasured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except when
deferred in other comprehensive income as
qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets, such as equities classified
as available for sale, are included in other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R Y EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ifi)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

- income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iv)

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the
equity holders of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are reattributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that
is, reductions in the group’s ownership interest
in associate that do not result in the group
losing significant influence), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange difference is
reclassified to profit or loss.

(f)  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at

historical cost less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost

includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced parts is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest
becomes available for its intended use. Amortisation
on leasehold land classified as finance lease and
depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Leasehold land classified
as finance lease

Shorter of remaining
lease term or
useful life

Lesser of the unexpired
lease term or 20 to

Buildings

50 years
Equipment (including 3 to 10 years or over
the lease term
3 to 15 years

4 to 5 years

leasehold improvements)
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

No depreciation is provided on freehold land.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (note 2(h)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHERBE(F)
(Continued)
(f)  Property, plant and equipment (Continued) ¥ - BBRERE (A

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by

comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and

are recognised in the income statement.

H B 2 48 g 4 L P 45 A TR BRI 1
fEE - AFtAIEER o

(2 Intangible assets (@ BREE
(i) Goodwill (i) P

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of
subsidiaries represents the excess of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value
of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"),
or groups of CGUSs, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill
is allocated represents the lowest level within
the entity at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes. Goodwill is
monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of CGU
containing goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher
of value in use and the fair value less costs
of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g

(h)

@

Intangible assets (Continued)
(ii)  Trademarks

Trademarks have an indefinite useful life and
the carrying amount brought forward are not
amortised but tested annually for impairment.
Trademarks are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation up to 31 March 2005 and
accumulated impairment losses.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

Available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets as available-
for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

@

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to dispose of it within
12 months of the end of the reporting period.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date-the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently carried at fair value.

Changes in the fair value of non-monetary securities
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in the
consolidated income statement.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in the consolidated income statement
when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0]

()

(k)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the
case of equity securities classified as available-for-
sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the security below its cost is an evidence that the
assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists the
cumulative loss-measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in the profit or loss-is removed from equity
and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in the consolidated income statement
on equity instruments are not reversed through the
consolidated income statement.

Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost includes the cost of direct labour, materials
and appropriate proportion of production overhead
expenditure, and is calculated on the weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is the anticipated
sales proceeds less selling expenses in the ordinary
course of business.

Debtors

Debtors are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of debtors
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Debtors are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

U]

(m)

Debtors (Continued)

A provision for impairment of debtors is established
when there is objective evidence that the Group will
not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of the receivables. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and
default or delinquency in payments are considered
indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The
amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the
assets is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement. When a trade
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for debtors. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited in the
consolidated income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, and bank overdrafts.
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(0)

Creditors

Creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Creditors are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Creditors are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is
no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Financial liabilities

The Group determines the classification of its financial
liabilities at initial recognition. All financial liabilities
are recognised initially at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs.

Compound financial instruments issued by the Group
comprise convertible notes that can be converted
to share capital at the option of the holder, and the
number of shares to be issued does not vary with
changes in their fair value.

The liability component of a compound financial
instrument is recognised initially at the fair value
of a similar liability that does not have an equity
conversion option. The equity component is
recognised initially at the difference between the
fair value of the compound financial instrument as a
whole and the fair value of the liability component,
which is included in shareholders’ equity in other
reserves. Any directly attributable transaction costs
are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability
component of a compound financial instrument is
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The equity component of a compound
financial instrument is not re-measured subsequent to
initial recognition except on conversion or expiry.

The liability component of a convertible instrument
is classified as current unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

(G))

(r)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

2

FEETHEEREE 4

(p)

(q)

(r)

B EE ()

il S THEL AT A B B el ] — 5 07 DA
RA[F 2 o7 — g A @ gL
A AR B BORIRERT - Rl
Bt B T LR A LR R A A
e — VR LA T A 5 B T
Z R B4 T o

BHEMBETLA

S S M B RO AT ik R T AR
B O 8 B A S A B T (B IR TR A 5
B[] IRF 1 S o A B T fE A R R T A
3 > MARFHENEEABERNE
e o 5 R ARSI AN AT PR A R AR
> HZHWA] R H RSB AR FhAE 2 )
B o T A - B A BB g
FE Y1 DU 5 AT

A RIESE PS5

YA B A5 B 2 B3 A P A B R
JEFTRBL - BRELTA ARG i as % A e Rl
B A A A R B JH E M B (FE %
T8 UL IR I3 IS i 5 WA A 2 7R e
A HE A AR ) S IR BN AR A
W it R



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTHERBE (&)
(Continued)
() Current and deferred income tax (Continued) (r AERIELERESS ()
(i) Current income tax i) KRR

(i)

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company, its subsidiaries
and its associate operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R Y RE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(i)

Deferred income tax (Continued)
Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associate, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associate only
to the extent that it is probable the temporary
difference will reverse in the future and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Pension obligations

Group companies operate various pension
schemes. The schemes are generally funded
through payments to insurance companies or
trustee-administered funds. The Group mainly
has defined contribution plans.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior
periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a
formula that takes into consideration the profit
attributable to the Company’s shareholders
after certain adjustments. The Group recognises
a provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R Y RE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ifi)

(iv)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises
costs for a restructuring that is within the
scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to their present value.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISR R MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()  Share-based payment transactions

(i)

Issue of convertible bonds as share-based
payment transactions

If the identifiable consideration received by the
Company appears to be less than the fair value
of the convertible bonds issued, the Company
measures the unidentifiable services received (to
be received) as the difference between the fair
value of the convertible bonds issued and that
of the identifiable consideration received, and
the difference is recognised in the profit or loss
immediately unless qualified for capitalisation.

The liability component (i.e. the bondholder’s
right to demand payment in cash) of the
convertible bond will be accounted for
as a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction while the equity component (i.e.
the bondholder’s right to demand settlement
in the Company’s shares) of the convertible
bond will be accounted for as an equity-settled
share-based payment transaction. The entity
first measures the fair value of the liability
component, and then measure the fair value of
the equity component by taking into account
that the bondholder must forfeit the right to
receive cash in order to receive the equity
instrument. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the liability component of the convertible bond
is stated at fair value, with changes recorded
in the income statement under finance cost.
The equity component is not re-measured
subsequent to initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and the
amounts has been reliably estimated. Restructuring
provisions comprise lease termination penalties and
employee termination payments. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses. Provision for an
onerous contract is recognised when the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the contract
exceed the economic benefits expected to be
received.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)

Recognition of revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net of
discounts, returns and value added taxes. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customers, the type of
transactions and the specifics of each arrangement.

(i) Sales of goods — retail
Sales of goods are recognised when a group
entity sells a product to the customer. Retail
sales are usually in cash or by credit card.

(i) Sales of goods — wholesale and trading
Sales of goods are recognised when the Group
has delivered products to the customer,
the customer has accepted the product and
collectability of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.

(i) Building management fee income

Building management fee income is recognised
when the services are rendered.

(iv) Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

(w)

Recognition of revenue (Continued)
(v) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

(vi) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment
where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
borrowings. The interest element of the finance cost is
charged to the income statement over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
The property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the
useful life of the asset and the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

(y)

(2)

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and
Company’s financial statements in the year in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Financial guarantee

A financial guarantee (a kind of insurance contract) is
a contract that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments
when due in accordance with the original or
modified terms of a debt instrument. The Group does
not recognise liabilities for financial guarantees at
inception, but perform a liability adequacy test at each
reporting date by comparing the carrying amount of
the net liability regarding the financial guarantee with
its present legal or constructive obligation amount.
If the carrying amount of the net liability is less than
its present legal or constructive obligation amount,
the entire difference is recognised in the consolidated
income statement immediately.

Comparative figures
Certain comparative figures in the Note 5 segment

information have been reclassified to conform to the
current year presentation.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(@

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FA RS ERaR B o

77

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MEEREE (4)
(@ Financial risk factors (Continued) (@ HHEREBEZE )
(i) Foreign exchange risk (i) ArEEEEE

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong,
China and a number of countries in South
East Asia. Retail sales transactions are mostly
denominated in the functional currencies of
the group entities. The Group’s exposure to
foreign exchange risk mainly arise from future
purchase transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the group entities
to which they relate. The Group considers its
foreign currency exposure as mainly arising
from the exposure of the Singapore dollar,
Malaysian ringgit, Thai baht and Renminbi
against the Hong Kong dollar. The Group
regularly monitors its exposures to foreign
currency transactions.

The details of the currencies in which the
Group’s bank loans are denominated are set
out in Note 25 to the financial statements. The
Group’s bank loans are principally denominated
in the functional currency of the relevant group
entity. Management does not anticipate any
significant foreign exchange risk associated with
the Group’s borrowings.

The approximate impact to the Group’s profit
before tax that might be resulted from the
reasonable possible changes in the foreign
exchange rates against the Hong Kong dollar to
which the Group has significant exposure at 31
March 2015 is summarised below. The analysis
includes balances between group companies
where the balances are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currencies of
the lending or the borrowing entities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BRRBER ()

(@ Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@ MHEBEZE A

(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (i) ShEEmR G ()
2015 2014
Increase Increase Increase Increase
in foreign in profit  in foreign in profit
exchange before  exchange before
rate income tax rate income tax
SMNEER  BRBIADE  SMEMER  BRBUATE
HiEin  FIA9IE Bk AR n
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Singapore dollar HrmoT 5% 3,297 5% 6,728
Malaysian ringgit L5Y Y EHRCG 5% 4,121 5% 4,037
Thai baht ES 7S 5% 293 5% 304
Renminbi N 5% 3,042 5% 3,277
Decrease in the above foreign exchange rates o A BE BE 2R 5 D 5% (2014
by 5% (2014: 5%) would affect the profit before 1 5%) A% B BR B AT i A A A
income tax by the same amount but in the AR < BRAEAR S5 1) 1) 32 2 o
opposite direction.
(i) Interest rate risk (i) FYF

The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates as the Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets other than
bank balances, details of which have been
disclosed in Note 20. The Group’s exposure to
changes in interest rates is mainly attributable
to its bank loans. Bank loans at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate
risk. Details of the Group’s bank borrowings
are disclosed in Note 25(a) to the financial
statements. The Group is exposed to fair value
interest rate risk arising from the convertible
bonds bearing interest at fixed rate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R Y RE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(@ Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps
to hedge its exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk.

At 31 March 2015, if interest rates had been
50 basis points (2014: 50) higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, profit for the
year would have been HK$2,915,000 (2014:
HK$2,571,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result
of higher/lower interest expense.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to perform an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial
assets (mainly include deposits with banks and
debtors) as stated in the consolidated balance
sheet.

Bank balances are deposited in banks with
sound credit ratings to mitigate the risk arising
from banks. The Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk with any single
counterparty or group of counterparties. The
Group also has policies in place to assess
the credit worthiness of customers to ensure
that sales of products are made to wholesale
customers with an appropriate credit history.
Besides, management of the Group monitors its
credit risk on an ongoing basis by reviewing the
debtors’ aging to minimise its exposure to credit
risk.

Sales to retail customers are made in cash or via
major credit cards.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BRRBER ()
(@ Financial risk factors (Continued) (@ HHEREBEZE G

(iii)

(iv)

Credit risk (Continued)

Rental deposits are mainly placed with various
landlords in countries where the Group operates
and are due to refund upon the expiry of the
tenancy agreements and handover of the leased
premises. During the year, the Group did not
experience any defaults by the landlords.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of
banking facilities. Due to the dynamic nature of
the underlying businesses, management aims to
maintain flexibility in funding by keeping credit
lines available.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet
to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

(iii) 17 B (4E)

Meke ERA TAEEAK
BEGHEENZLET I
P REL B 1wl i 0 e SR A B
SEWRF A TR o AN ALEH
Slf A 3 R S IR A

(iv) RENEE 5
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,ré °
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PR SRS RITBI B & -

Between Between
Within 1and 2 2and 3 Over
1 year years years 3 years
180T 1Z2FR 2E3FR 3EME
HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000
BT BT BT BT
At 31 March 2015 R201543 31 H
Bank borrowings FATEK 589,777 13,552 10,901 29,983
Finance lease [E3-giih- 60 60 60 119
Convertible bonds (note a) AT HM &% (IffEa) 12,986 12,986 380,308 -
Creditors and accruals — JEFTHRE K ERTE M 598,715 - - -
At 31 March 2014 #201443 31 H
Bank borrowings FATE 473,299 18,255 16,378 39,278
Finance lease MEHE 124 - - -
Convertible bonds (note a) AT #M % (IffEa) 12,986 12,986 12,986 380,308
Creditors and accruals — JEFTIRZR K R4 595,603 - - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M o

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBRRER )
(@ Financial risk factors (Continued) (@ HMERBEZEGHE)
(iv)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) REE B ()
Note: F&E -
(@) The analysis on the convertible bonds above (@) bl ] AR 5 1 o A T B
assumes the bond holder’s option has not been R B RS SR A A2
exercised and has not been converted to shares RE Iz S AT fek FL NI 4 00 1l I
at the time of maturity (Note 26). 1y (Bt 26) -
Should the bond holder exercises the option & 25 1 A A B Bl 7 1R
at the earliest possible time, the maturity AT - g EAfR
groupings of the convertible bonds from the A0 T #8025 3 0 Ao
balance sheet date would be as follows: AT
Between Between
Within 1 and 2 2and 3 Over
1 year years years 3 years
15T 122858 2E3FR 3FENE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BB BT RET BB
At31 March 2015 JA201543 131 H 12,986 124,293 380,308 -
At 31 March 2014 W201443 H31H 12,986 12,986 124,293 380,308
(b) Capital risk management b)) BXREREE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to A5 B By G A A T R A A [
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going 8 4 4% 488 1) TS B4 00 [ S A ey L
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders M RE2S e ANRAEFI 25 > [R] W43 B
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an FE 1) G A 45 4 DLIE B 4 AR 2 fig
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. F o
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the B T HERR B R G AR R s AR E ]
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to Bl R 4 S AT R B L BAE A
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new TR EAR ~ BEAT IR B D
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. BAREL -
Consistent with others in the industry, the Group B 3 R At N R VR — 3 > A4 L
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This A L 2R A oy B S G AR ) L o [ A
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. H R R AR B DL EAR B o TR
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including BRI SAAE (AIGGEE Al
current and non-current borrowings as shown in the KR 2 B R IF B L % T e
consolidated balance sheet) less bank balances and RS RIS R eSS - &
cash. Total capital is calculated as ‘shareholders’ AR B hn A W AR TR
funds’ as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. (G4 ] o
81 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

(b)

(9]

Capital risk management (Continued)

The gearing ratios at 31 March 2015 and 2014 were as

follows:

B EE ()

(b)

BEXREBRERE (H)

R 20144 K 201543 H 31 H Z £
LRI -

2015 2014

HK$/000 HK$’000

BT WA
Total borrowings (Note 25) BEAEAR (F 5 25) 631,793 534,587
Convertible bonds (Note 26) T?ﬁ%ﬂxﬁ# FitiE 26) 380,753 331,456
Less: Bank balances and cash ¥k : $R1T45 R K BL4 (58 20) (460,143) (457,683)

(Note 20)

Net debt TFAEHS 552,403 408,360
Shareholders’ funds TR 4 1,446,480 1,458,338
Gearing ratio fEE % 38% 28%

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group’s financial

instruments carried at fair value by valuation method.
The different levels have been defined as follows:

¢ Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included

within level 1 that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or

indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

J Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based

on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs) (level 3).

The Group’s available-for-sale financial assets

and liability components of convertible bonds are

measured at fair value by discounting the estimated

future cash flows. Their fair value measurement is

classified as level 3. Changes in level 3 instruments for
the year ended 31 March 2015 are set out in Note 17

and Note 26 respectively.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BBEBRERE ()
(c) Fair value estimation (Continued) (00 DAFEFME )

There was no transfer of financial instruments into or A TR SIf7 e A ml B S AR R 4
out of level 3 during the year. Al TH o

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets HUA B H OB > ACERE B BB
including cash and cash equivalents, deposits in (3G B & K B & 258 Y ~ A s8al Bt
approved financial institutions and debtors, and BN 2 A7 MEWCIR AR T B B
financial liabilities including creditors and short-term 7 (L35 T8 Ao MR AR B S B k) 2 MR i
borrowings, approximate their fair values due to their B HLNEAR S ©

short maturities.

(d) Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities d EHEWBEERVYBEE
The following financial assets are subject to offsetting, PUT 5 7 O B4 ~ TR AT Y
enforceable master netting arrangements and similar TR SO B -
agreements.

Gross amount of
recognised  Net amount of
Gross amount of financial liabilities  financial assets

recognised set off in the  presented in the
financial assets balance sheet balance sheet
REESER REESEXR
R PERHEZERR SR
BREEATE HRaEAE MBEEFE
HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000
BEAT BT BT T
As at 31 March 2015 #20154E3 H31H
Trade receivables JRE W A 253,898 6 253,892
As at 31 March 2014 JA2014%F3 H31H
Trade receivables JRE W A 225,410 30 225,380
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBRRERE )
(d) Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (d) EHEUBEERVUBEE (4
(Continued)
The following financial liabilities are subject to DUR BB AR RS - R AT Y
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements TRRRAS A B2 B -

and similar agreements.

Gross amount of
recognised  Net amount of
Gross amount of  financial assets financial liabilities

recognised set off in the  presented in the
financial liabilities balance sheet balance sheet
REE&FRY  REERRR
BRR EHzERR HFIRE
MREERE UKEESE UKEETE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT BT BT
As at 31 March 2015 #201543 A31H
Trade payables JEAT IR 321,789 258 321,531
Asat31 March 2014 8201443 131
Trade payables JEAT IR 314,691 1,131 313,560
For the financial assets and liabilities subject to WL B2 BT RV AR AN T R
enforceable master netting arrangements or similar YRR A5 B S o A
arrangements above, each agreement between 5 ) BT 7 2 THY B 2% T e 70 AR
the Company and the counterparty allows for IR A B I B RS B R I
net settlement of the relevant financial assets and LRGN B RFH R B AS 5T o AWl BOEEAT
liabilities when both elect to settle on a net basis. In A RS > WHES W M B AR e AR
the absence of such an election, financial assets and R MEST— IR RE LS A R BB
liabilities will be settled on a gross basis, however, A AR — T EAIEN N A
each party to the master netting agreement or similar HHE 798 458 $c 1 RE L VR B 5T BT A AT BR K
agreement will have the option to settle all such JH o

amounts on a net basis in the event of default of the
other party.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 ARSI T R HE

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and i st R A T S I 4 e A 8 B B HC A TR 3R R
are based on historical experience and other factors, AN DA 2 HETE > 6048 FE AR S R A B
including expectations of future events that are believed to DU S B H ARSI -

be reasonable under the circumstances.

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M o

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(i) Net realisable value of stocks

Net realisable value of stocks is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition
and the historical experience of manufacturing and
selling products of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management will reassess the estimations at
the balance sheet date.

(i) Impairment of debtors

The Group’s management determines the provision
for impairment of debtors receivable. This estimate is
based on the credit history of its customers and the
current market condition. Management reassesses the
provision at each balance sheet date.

(iii) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses annually whether property, plant
and equipment exhibit any indications of impairment.
The recoverable amounts are determined based on
value-in-use calculation. The value-in-use calculation
involves estimating the future cash inflows and
outflows to be derived from continuing use of the
asset and applying the appropriate discount rate to
those future cash flows. The estimation of future cash
flows and selection of discount rate require the use of
judgements and estimates. Management believes that
any reasonably foreseeable change in any of the above
key elements in the value-in-use calculation would
not result in material additional impairment charges.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Impairment of intangible assets and goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill and
trademarks have suffered any impairment, in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note
2(h). The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates (Note 15).

Deferred income tax

The Group’s management determines the amount
of deferred tax asset to be recognised by estimating
the amount of future profit available to utilise the
tax losses in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.
The estimate is based on the projected profit in
respective jurisdiction and entity and the Group uses
its judgement to make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing on balance sheet
date. It could change as a result of the uncertainties in
the market conditions.

Fair value of convertible bonds

The fair value of convertible bonds are determined
using valuation techniques including reference to
other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing
model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this
is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values.
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87

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-makers have been identified
as the executive directors. The executive directors review
the Group’s financial information mainly from product
and geographical perspectives. From a geographical
perspective, management assesses the performance of
watch and optical operations in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China and rest of Asia.

During the year, management decided to remove “other
segment” from segment reporting as the performance of
this segment was no longer separately assessed due to its
minimal impact to the Group’s results. To conform to the
current year presentation, the comparatives have been
reclassified accordingly.

Revenue represents sales of goods. Sales between operating
segments are carried out on terms equivalent to those
prevailing in arm’s length transactions. The executive
directors assess the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of adjusted earnings before interest and
tax (EBIT). This measurement basis excludes unallocated
income and net corporate expenses.

Unallocated income represents dividend income from
investment. Net corporate expenses mainly represent
staff costs and provision for senior management bonus.
Unallocated assets represent equipment and debtors at
corporate level, investment in an associate, available-for-
sale financial assets, deferred tax assets and bank balances
and cash. Unallocated liabilities represent creditors and
accruals at corporate level, borrowings, convertible bonds,
deferred tax liabilities and income tax payable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISR R MR

5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

5 oBER )

For the year ended 31 March 2015

BENGEIANALEE
Watch retail Optical retail
BRIE REZTE

Hong Kong, Hong Kong,

Macau and Macau and
Mainland Rest ~ Mainland Rest ~ Wholesale Group
China of Asia China of Asia trading Total

N N
AR L)) AR L) i g

TEAE  HHEME  PEAE  HEHE ] fazt
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ARt ERffr  EMffr ERfRn BB ERfn

Revenues
(ross segment
Inter-segment

Segment results

Unallocated income
Net corporate expenses

Operating profit
Finance costs
Share of loss of an associate

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

WA
JhEbAE

JhibiH

GiEE

E 1N
SEETECR
ERA

BB R
Ll vl 5

BB HBL AT
BBl
A REA

1,698,368 514,088 1,054,789 276,716 964,153 4,508,114
- - - - (567,265)  (567,265)

1698368 514088 1054789 276716 396,888 3,940,849

189,173 269 51,866 (6,715) 85,103 319,696

2,052
(103,797)

217,951
(72,141)
(5,302)

140,508
(48,449)

92,059
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5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

5 oBEN G

For the year ended 31 March 2015

BENF3A31ALFE
Watch retail Optical retail
HHTE RETE
Hong Kong, Hong Kong,
Macau and Macau and
Mainland Rest ~ Mainland Restof ~ Wholesale Group
China of Asia China Asia trading  Unallocated Total
BMR L) AR L)) #E &8
hEAE  HBRE  hEAE HHRBE % AR @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR ERfR  EMffn BMffn BMffr  BEfr  ERfn
Capital expenditures BAMER L (30,2000 (14,628)  (34,613) (5,532) (1,289) (9,580)  (95,842)
Investment in an associate B A AL & - - - - - (7448 (17,448)
Depreciation i (29,106) (21,701) (35,475) (12,992) (1,914) (12,440)  (113,629)
Amortisation of s AT R
prepayment of
lease premium - (3,639 - (3,212) - - (6,851)
(Provision)/write back of  f£ & () /M
provision for stocks (4,270) 2,808 (1,364 (3,420) (13,299 - (19,540)
Impairment of property, Y13 + #38 Rt Bl e
plant and equipment (2,210) (1,126) (1,197) (1,033) - - (5,566)
Provision for onerous HERRB GO
contracts (48) - (130) - - - (178)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 DEER ()

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE201453 J131 AL

Watch retail Optical retail
e REFE
Hong Kong, Hong Kong,
Macau and Macau and
Mainland Rest  Mainland Restof ~ Wholesale Group
China of Asia China Asia trading Total
PR L] LIED3 i it &

HECKEE  HERE PEKE HERE ] st
HKS'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
L DTS A DI A [P/ A (DI 3 A D 4 A b

Revenues LN
Gross segment piEiE 1,664,493 515720 967513 300,514 874,072 4322312
Inter-segment 7 biH - - - - (4307400 (430,740)
1,604,493 515,720 967,513 300,514 443332 3,891,572
Segment results MRS 232,797 (17,396) 25,778 5,149 94,042 340,370
Unallocated income FAEIA 3,175
Net corporate expenses MBI (81,215)
Operating profit gl 262,330
Finance costs PR (37,139)
Share of profit of an associate A2 /A i A 1,267
Profit before income tax R 753 i s 226,458
Income tax expense P B (54,285)
Profit for the year R F 172,173
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5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 DEER ()

For the year ended 31 March 2014

HE201453 31 HILFRE
Watch retail Optical retail
EETE ST

Hong Kong, Hong Kong,

Macau and Macau and
Mainland Rest  Mainland Rest  Wholesale Group
China of Asia China of Asia trading  Unallocated Total
PR A WK L] iy &H

HECKEE  HERBE PRKEE HEEpE *% Ao At
HK§'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK§'000
ki X A AT - L - v - LT L

Capital expenditures EAMES (26,172) (15,410) (44,472) (11,345) (3,127) (20,947)  (121,473)
Investment in an associate B A FH & - - - - - (51,493) (51,493
Depreciation I (30,744) (27,869) (32,940 (17,726) (1,797) (9,316) (120,392)
Amortisation of BaEAHEE

prepayment of

lease premium - (3,817) - (3,307) - - (7,124)
Write back of provision/ £ EH[H /()

(provision) for stocks 234 (2,823) (1,263) (1,297) 4,854 - (295)
Impairment of property,  #13 » Hd Rk i

plant and equipment (1,620) (1,062) (564) (214) - - (3,460)
Write back of provision — HIERRH AL

for onerous contracts 1,930 - 2,703 - - - 4,633

As at 31 March 2015
R201553A31R

Watch retail Optical retail
HREE RAFE

Hong Kong, Hong Kong,

Macau and Macau and
Mainland Rest  Mainland Rest ~ Wholesale Group
China of Asia China of Asia trading Total

N N
RFIR T AR EM #% &H

TEAR  HEME  PEAE  HEBME S st
HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
AR BRffn  AMfn  BRfR BRffn  ARfR

Segment assets PR 984,203 281,030 364,807 143,711 460,885 2,234,636

Unallocated assets FAREE 856,776

Total assets BERE 3,091,412

Segment liabilities iEia=U 272,781 47,184 157,045 25,777 67,842 570,629

Unallocated liabilities FomafE 1,066,953

Total liabilities AR 1,637,582
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PR ER AR B

5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 DEER (4H)

As at 31 March 2014
201443 H31H

Watch retail Optical retail
e REFE
Hong Kong, Hong Kong,
Macau and Macau and
Mainland Rest  Mainland Rest ~ Wholesale Group
China of Asia China of Asia trading Total
PR L] LIED3 i it &

HECKEE  HERE PEKE HERE ] st
HKS'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
L DTS A DI A [P/ A (DI 3 A D 4 A b

Segment assets b EE 827,255 333,769 360,866 172357 421,230 2,115,477
Unallocated assets FAEERE 850,273
Total assets Wi 2,965,750
Segment liabilities piria=U 252,075 53,280 151,737 33,131 86,924 577,147
Unallocated liabilities FniafE 922,782
Total liabilities e 1,499,929
An analysis of the Group's revenue by geographical area is e AT E ER AT
as follows:
2015 2014
HK$/000 HK$'000
BT AT
Hong Kong s 2,273,122 2,231,728
Macau e 270,335 284,913
Mainland China PR [R]  [E 397,102 334,445
Rest of Asia EHYIRER 7301 999,914 1,039,422
Europe el 376 1,064
3,940,849 3,891,572
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R AR Y RE

5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2EHER 4
An analysis of the Group’s segments results by geographical 2 3 [ 73 AT AR B B Y 0 TR SERAN R -
area is as follows:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Hong Kong itk 326,480 341,093
Macau L 78,759 87,069
Mainland China Hp K (98,107) (102,725)
Rest of Asia UL R [ 15,511 17,327
Europe BRI (2,947) (2,394)
319,696 340,370
An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other 2 b i o3 A7 6 1 I U B (< R KR
than financial instruments and deferred tax assets) by SEFLIE & FEBRAN) Wi F
geographical area is as follows:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Hong Kong ik 272,587 272,673
Macau T 168,863 165,667
Mainland China F K 59,530 61,386
Rest of Asia T LR 192,306 220,613
Europe [P 96,164 91,097
789,450 811,436
6  OTHER LOSSES, NET 6  Hftfsis  BHE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Loss on disposal of property, YIS ~ 1A RS
plant and equipment, net K548 > 1A (688) (794)
Exchange loss, net TSGR o AR (15,869) (3,606)
(16,557) (4,400)
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OTHER INCOME 7 EftlA
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Building management fee income MFE A LA 2,340 2,340
Dividend income from investments HE B E A 2,052 3,175
Interest income BN 1,342 1,123
Sundries AT 19,584 19,079
25,318 25,717
EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 BRMEITHNEMR
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Cost of stocks sold and A7 B A KM B AR
raw materials consumed 1,524,407 1,512,885
Amortisation of prepayment of S LA AL AR
lease premium 6,851 7,124
Depreciation of property, WI3E ~ B SR T
plant and equipment
- Owned —A% 113,623 120,045
— Leased —HE 5 347
Impairment of property, LYE Y &L R =]
plant and equipment 5,566 3,460
Provision/(write back of provision) A LT A K ()
for onerous contracts 178 (4,633)
Auditor’s remuneration A2 B <
— Audit services — RS 5,539 5,536
— Non-audit services — IR 3,300 1,867
Operating leases on buildings M E T 698,840 686,057
Provision for stocks 17 B e 19,540 295
Impairment of debtors JRE ISR T 9 (B 116 44
Write back of bad debts provision 135 1] S HRVE (40) (197)
Donations L 5,316 10,256
Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) 1§ B & F1I 3C H (Ff5E9) 717,586 693,155
Others HoAh, 630,832 614,318
Total cost of sales, selling expenses, R - S - — R
general and administrative expenses 1713 H R A 7 52 H AR
and other operating expenses 3,731,659 3,650,559
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9  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9 REEREAXH
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT WA
Salaries and allowances M B RS 646,450 633,231
Pension contributions less RAREGALK (FOBR B E 1Y
forfeiture utilised (Note a) BUHER) (FifEEa) 33,155 31,804
Termination benefits eIyl 1,669 1,191
Unutilised annual leave A F AR 4 (595)
Social security costs *EEr ORI S 31,990 24,427
Other allowances HoAth 4 B 4,318 3,097
717,586 693,155
(@) Pensions-defined contribution plans (@) ERE-—EHEMEZHE

The Group operated a retirement scheme under
Occupation Retirement Scheme Ordinance (“ORSO
scheme”) up to 30 November 2000 for employees
in Hong Kong. With effect from 1 December 2000,
a mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) scheme is set
up which is available to eligible employees of the
Group, including executive directors. Contributions
to the MPF scheme by the Group and employees
are calculated at rates specified in the rules of
the MPF scheme. The assets of the MPF scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.

For subsidiaries outside Hong Kong, contributions to
the local pension schemes are made by the Group and
employee, which are calculated at rates specified in
the rules of the local pension schemes. The assets of
the pension schemes are held separately from those of
the Group in independently administered funds.

Forfeited contributions totalling HK$1,178,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: HK$1,830,000)
arising from employees leaving the ORSO scheme,
were utilised to offset contributions during the year.
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g s b

9  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 9 EEEFXE )
(b)  Five highest paid individuals b HEEUESHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the VNGNS N N s R
highest in the Group for the year include three (2014: =4 (201448« =4)#EF > HEEE
three) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the 1% B A EEE 33 4 Hr R Sk o

analysis shown in Note 33.

The emoluments payable to the remaining two (2014: FAE R EAT T H i — 4 (20144 —
two) individuals during the year are as follows: Z)NTZBEIT
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000

b 3 AT

Basic salaries, allowance and A A > R R EY A5

benefits in kind 2,615 2,497
Performance bonus FIHEAL 2,827 3,844
Contributions to pension plans B {R&FH# 19 L% 153 149

5,595 6,490
The emoluments fell within the following bands: v i E 2l /NG (1 I

Number of individuals

A
2015 2014
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) &7 4H Al
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 ## 2 000,001 7T £ # % 2,500,000 JC 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 #% 3,000,001 7T £ # % 3,500,000 JC 1 2
2 2

B () A RA A 926
2015 4F4FH)



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

9  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 9 EERAZE #)
(c) Senior management emoluments (0 SREEAEMNSE
The emoluments fell within the following bands: A THI AR AT

Number of individuals

A
2015 2014
Emolument bands (in HK dollar)  F#EH4E5I
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 #&i 2,000,001 75 £ # 2,500,000 7C 1 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 #& 2,500,001 76 % # ¥ 3,000,000 G - 1
1 1
10  FINANCE COSTS 10 BAFEMA
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T Fiokix i
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts — $R4TEE & % SR B 9,212 8,807
Borrowing cost on convertible bonds R4 B i fi B 2 62,830 28,180
Interest on other financial liabilities HoAh A 75 AR 82 121
Interest on finance leases Rl A B A 17 31
72,141 37,139
11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11 FisHixH
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of #WAE 201543 A 31 HIRFEF BB
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits for the year ended AR T v B8 T By B0 T AR 2 1 £ R B
31 March 2015 (2014: 16.5%) less relief for available tax Ui FIHEF %16.5% (20144F © 16.5%) 515 ©
losses. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated T SRS B 5 AR AF T Ak T B SAUBE s ) 4%
on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates A B [ AR [k ) 208 PR B RO o
of taxation prevailing in the territories in which the Group
operates.
97 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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g s b

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11 FfBBikH (%)

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated E Rt AZR S It R AT B A -
income statement represents:

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Current income tax AT ABE
— Hong Kong profits tax — AR EL 34,668 39,601
— Overseas profits tax — AR 20,796 21,198
— Under/(over) provisions in —RAAEEBARD S RZ)
respect of prior years 48 (1,058)
55,512 59,741
Deferred income tax (Note 27) TEHE AL (K5t 27) (7,063) (5,456)
Income tax expense PRI 48,449 54,285
The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs 2 A ) e D T AR R R s R T S B
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the TH > Bz L 45 A 4 M I 10 9 R SR (T
applicable tax rate, being the weighted average of tax rates SRR Wi E A PR RLE A 2R > BRI
prevailing in the territories in which the Group operates, is T
as follows:

B () A RA A 98
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11 BBl (4
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Profit before income tax B BT A B i Vs Al 140,508 226,458
Add/less: share of loss/(profit) W REA R Rl SR G )
of an associate 5,302 (1,267)
145,810 225,191
Theoretical tax at weighted average & IIHEF-44 2% 7.56% (2014 4F -
rate of 7.56% (2014: 11.55%) 11.55%) Tt 5 0y 3 Em Rl I 11,028 26,017
Income not subject to tax EEeE LN (13,203) (9,560)
Expenses not deductible for AT OB B 5
tax purpose 22,368 16,216
Recognition of temporary differences FRAEAF A SR I B IR P 25 3
not previously recognised 4,179) 598
Utilisation of previously il AR A A HERR Y B I i 1
unrecognised tax losses (5,466) (6,913)
Tax losses not recognised AR BB TE 1R 36,431 30,621
Effect of change in tax rates o 24 5 ) 1) 2 2B 227 -
Under/(over) provisions in iﬂ{i@f?ﬁ’ﬂﬁ
respect of prior years iRy bi] 48 (1,058)
Others HAth 1,195 (1,636)
Income tax expense JRARBL S 48,449 54,285
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 7.56% I HE - 34 938 B B R 5 7.56%% (2014 4F
(2014: 11.55%). The decrease is caused by a change in the 11.55%) o Y820 T3 py i A 45 [ 4% 126 % 1)
distribution of profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in the I 28 2 ) 14 Y5 ) 4 I 5k o T G o

respective countries.
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g s b

12

EARNINGS PER SHARE 12
Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the

profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during

BREF
X
B B AR B R DUAR I AR 24 R HE i 5 A B

i 1 B DA 8 A7 35 3 B0 A 32 Bl
o

the year.
2015 2014
Weighted average number of C BT 2 BT 1
ordinary shares in issue (thousands) (DM 1,046,474 1,046,474
Profit attributable to equity holders AN R RE SR A5 I AL 1 )
of the Company (HK$'000) (HW#ATIT) 91,756 171,712
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) i AR R (L) 8.77 16.41

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
The Group’s dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence
represent convertible bonds. The convertible bonds are
assumed to have been converted into ordinary shares, and
the net profit is adjusted to eliminate the expense relating to
the convertible bonds less the tax effect.

wE

A PR A ) 7 {1 2 T L T A v 5
19 3 S R AR R UL T > R R R B AT
TE A1 788 i 1) IR - 2 et 5 o A SR M B
A VA B B T IR B R o R
T R fe o Mgt 0 A M S L R R A
DA A7 ] T R 0 2 P OB s R 2

B () A RA A
2015 4F4FH)
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 12 BRERNHE)

Diluted (Continued) E ()

ME20154E3 A 31 H > A 26 %0
BEREEEAZL R > TR A 5i 4 ] £ 5 i

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March
2015 equals basic earnings per share as the conversion of

101

convertible bonds would be anti-dilutive.

S AT EL

2015 2014
Number of ordinary shares in issue RECEATEEREE (DTS

throughout the year (thousands) 1,046,474 1,046,474
Effect of conversion of convertible St IR IR R IR 2 (DTG

bonds (thousands) - 190,268
Weighted average number of LA v BRI R A A

ordinary shares adjusted for TRV 8 (AR IR

effect of dilution (thousands) 1,046,474 1,236,742
Profit attributable to equity holders AN FRER R AN

of the Company (HK$’000) i I (s AT T) 91,756 171,712
Borrowing cost on convertible bonds W& FH B2 ] (WS ¥ o0)

(HK$’000) - 28,180
Tax relief thereon (HK$'000) HBUAIE S QBT D) - (2,233)
Adjusted profit attributable to A0\ T RERR R A EA

equity holders of KET R A (BT oT)

the Company (HK$'000) 91,756 197,659
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) 4 B4t 2 F (A1) 8.77 15.98
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13 W% HBERRKRE

Equipment
Land and and
buildings others Total
sl
-4t AT J HoAh HAH
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
fiaki X e I WA WA
Year ended 31 March 2014 BZE2014F3 831 HILFE
Opening net book amount  4F4) AR 1 #H 333,596 177,820 511,416
Additions wE - 118,193 118,193
Disposals/write off HE IR - (2,517) (2,517)
Depreciation iy (9,246) (111,146) (120,392)
Impairment (note d) WAE (FsEd) - (3,460) (3,460)
Exchange differences [ifE 50,25 %8 (5,113) (4,654) (9,767)
Closing net book amount  4F#ARTH {540 319,237 174,236 493,473
At 31 March 2014 MA2014F3A31H
Cost A 456,859 739,603 1,196,462
Accumulated depreciation  RF T8 K E
and impairment (137,622) (565,367) (702,989)
Net book amount W T 4R 319,237 174,236 493,473

B () A RA A
2015 4F4FH)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

13 W3~ M RRE (A

Equipment

Land and and
buildings others Total

B3
T RAEF R EAM HmE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BT b 3 BT

Year ended 31 March 2015 BZ2015F3 831 ALLEE
Opening net book amount  4F 4] R T {5 4

Additions WHE
Disposals/write off iR
Depreciation s
Impairment (note d) WA (FEEd)
Exchange differences HEE 5, 7= BH

Closing net book amount  4F# AR TH {5 4

At 31 March 2015 M2015%F3 A31H
Cost AR

Accumulated depreciation 24T 8 B (H

and impairment

Net book amount M AT AR

Notes:

(@  Certain property, plant and equipment of the Group have
been pledged for bank borrowings. The carrying value
of these property, plant and equipment as at 31 March
2015 were approximately HK$293,842,000 (2014:
HK$306,944,000).

(b) At 31 March 2015, the net book value of motor vehicles
held under finance leases amounted to HK$265,000 (2014:
HK$813,000).

(c) Depreciation expense of HK$96,583,000 (2014:
HK$107,849,000) has been charged in selling expenses
and of HK$17,045,000 (2014: HK$12,543,000) has been
charged in general and administrative expenses.

(d)  The Group regards its individual retail stores as separately
identifiable CGUs. It assessed the recoverable amounts of
the CGUs with reference to their value-in-use since their
carrying values are not expected to be fully recoverable by
the value-in-use. An impairment provision of HK$5,566,000
(2014: HK$3,460,000) was made as their carrying values are
not expected to be fully recoverable. Impairment loss was
included in other operating expenses in the consolidated
income statement.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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319,237 174,236 493,473

- 95,842 95,842

_ 1,717) (1,717)

(8,291) (105,337) (113,628)

- (5,566) (5,566)

(3,789) @,152) (7,941)

307,157 153,306 460,463

452,799 737,846 1,190,645

(145,642) (584,540) (730,182)

307,157 153,306 460,463
B 5E

(a)

AR T - WA G O e AT
B HE e R20154E3 31 H > &%
S B SRkt Y AR T (E A B s
293,842,0007G(20144F : # 306,944,000
JG) °

201543 A31 H » FEREHE T s
2 BT A8 A 265,000 76 (2014 4F
#H813,00070) ©

P 2% 1 96,583,000 7T (2014 4F «
#107,849,000 7C) ELH A8 3 Kkt
17,045,000 7C (2014 4 = #5 ¥ 12,543,000
Jt) ERFA— M ZATEC S -

7% 45 [ A LA 90 2B O A 25 8 57 ] ek Y B
S EE A A o T ERAG T i [ 2 B A e A
7S 56 27 5T W 3 A I i A
R 7 0 4 12 2 0 i e HLBR T > Ok LA
H e 5 5,566,000 76 (2014 4F
3,460,000 70) ° W (E KGR AL AR
T HAEE L -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

14 PREPAYMENT OF LEASE PREMIUM 14 FENLHEHEHE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
At 1 April w4aA1TH 47,256 60,079
Amortisation (note b) BEEY (FfHiEDb) (6,851) (7,124)
Exchange differences e 8, 26 86 (163) (5,699)
At 31 March W3H31TH 40,242 47,256
Notes: B &E
(@) No prepayment of lease premium for premises of the Group (@)  JA20154E3 A31 H » G METEA L E HE T

A RAT > DIEBURTT S B Q014 4F © 3
5,624,000 7C) ©

has been pledged for bank borrowings as at 31 March 2015
(2014: HK$5,624,000).

(b)  Amortisation of prepayment of lease premium for premises (b) W SETEAT AR b B B A B Al s R A
was included in selling expenses in the consolidated income RIASE S -
statement.
15  INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15 BEEEE
Goodwill Trademarks Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
Year ended 31 March 2014 BZ20145F3 31 HLEFE
Opening net book amount 4] iR TH {F{H 10,182 50,315 60,497
Additions INE - 1,553 1,553
Exchange differences [ifE 50,25 % 84 1,063 1,147
Closing net book amount  4F 48R ] 1 4f 10,266 52,931 63,197
At 31 March 2014 H2014F3A31H
Cost A 10,266 82,564 92,830
Accumulated amortisation  ZFHEESY - (29,633) (29,633)
Net book amount W AT V5 AE 10,266 52,931 63,197
Year ended 31 March 2015 BE2015F3 A31 HILFE
Opening net book amount 447 iR i 1 10,266 52,931 63,197
Exchange differences [ifE 50, 2= %8 (1,260) (1,273) (2,533)
Closing net book amount 4 #¢HR 1 5 41 9,006 51,658 60,664
At 31 March 2015 ®20155%3831H
Cost A 9,006 81,291 90,297
Accumulated amortisation 2 S - (29,633) (29,633)
Net book amount R TAT V4R 9,006 51,658 60,664

OB () A RA TR

2015 4F4FH)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

15

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Impairment test for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified
according to business segment. The goodwill is attributable
to the watch wholesale trading operations.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax
cash flow projections based on financial budgets performed
by management covering a five-year period. Management
determined the financial budgets based on past performance
and its expectations for the market development. Cash
flows beyond the five year period are extrapolated using the
estimated growth rate stated below.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are
as follows:

1. Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond
the budget period of 0% (2014: 0%) which does not
exceed historical growth rate.

2. Pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flows projections
of 8% (2014: 8%). The discount rate used is pre-tax
and reflects specific risks related to the Group.

Management believes that any reasonably foreseeable
change in any of the above key assumptions would not
cause the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed the
recoverable amount significantly.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, there was no
impairment on the CGUs containing goodwill with
indefinite useful lives (2014: nil).

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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BIVEE (4)
AERERR

7R AR SE 55 70 0 T 2 A 2 R T s Y
bk A Re B VLGRS kT 7SR SR S
¥ o

B 7 A A Y ] [ < AR AR o8 T A M
FE 5 o w3 T ORI B i B B i R T
MRAB A L LA 1) AR S B B o A
i A 2 8 T 3 B0 % HL S T 30 % i 1Y A0 A
SE PA TS o R T AR A B i B 4R
FALATR PRt a9 Al 5 H-R AR A

RO (R SR RS

1. DA S5 A TE O 09 0 B 4 O T i
FIRIER 25 0% (2014 4 0%) > 3if7
IR R o

2. HRBI& R ETER BT R 5 8%
(2014 4F : 8%) o ZHEHL R A BT
S 5z B B AN A 9 R P e g

R Sy > LT SRR AR T
MR R o RN R AR (E
R A0 AT A ] 4 o

HME20154E3 31 HIREER - HEeEE
B T LA FR A 1Y PR I A R ( (2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 15 \|EEE (4)
Impairment test for trademarks BRRE R
The valuation of the trademarks is determined by estimating ﬁ.ﬁ%ﬁ{ﬁl}]\ﬁ%%&ﬁ% [ N A % 5 Féﬁ?l?,j;ﬁ‘ﬁ
the value of royalties which the Group is exempted from M G SCAT 2 R T R R (BT A o O

S5 5 P L 3SR DA TR ol P A A 2
T FHEREPTE T Z B E AL -

by virtue of the fact that it owns the trademarks. A net
sales royalty rate is multiplied by the net sales expected to
be generated by the trademarks and then capitalised at a
discount rate at which the trademarks operates.

No impairment provision on trademarks was made during B 2015453 31 H 4R » 3 45k e 4
the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: nil). Ve HBUE R AE (2014 4F © BE) o
16 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 16 REEQFTRE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
At 1 April w4aA1TH 54,989 -
Acquisition of additional W BT O )RS R £
interest in an associate 17,448 51,493
Share of (loss)/profit FEAL k1R T (5,302) 1,267
Exchange differences [ifE 5, 2250 (5,806) 2,229
At 31 March W3H31H 61,329 54,989

s

Details of the associate as at 31 March 2015 are as follows:

WA AN TR 2015453 A 31 HAYFER T -

i

Place of

business/country of % of
Name of entity incorporation ownership interest Principal activities
ERER EENY BMRIEAR FrsERas TEER
CATENA SA Switzerland 40% Manufacture of

it watch movements

T RE

On 13 May 2014, the Group acquired an additional R201445 A 13 B » AEFIECATENA
10% equity interest in CATENA SA for a consideration of SAH M 0% By RERS > 1018 A5 2,000,000 3+
CHF2,000,000. After this transaction, the Group held a 40% B - FEMLIAAS 1% AREBIFEA CATENA
equity interest in CATENA SA. SA 40% M4 o

B () A RA A
2015 4F4FH) 106



107

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

16

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
associate is set out below:

REERRRE (4)

ARG 2 R B AR BB B S A T

2015 2014
HK$/000 HK$'000
BEAT T WA
Assets oy 69,966 58,801
Liabilities =i (10,957) (14,840)
Income A 36,421 37,847
(Loss)/profit after tax BBitE (ks18) s Al (9,158) 4,222

The associate has a December year-end and the above
unaudited financial information has been adjusted to
conform to the Group’s financial year-end.

Included in the balance is a goodwill arising from the initial
investment and from the additional investment in CATENA
SA. The recoverable amount of the investment in CATENA
SA is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on
financial budgets performed by management covering a
nine-year period. The key assumptions applied to the cash
flow projections include i) pre-tax discount rate of 12%,
which reflects specific risks related to CATENA SA, and ii)
growth rate of 2% used to extrapolate cash flows beyond
the budget period. Based on the impairment assessment,
the recoverable amount of the investment in CATENA
SA exceeded its carrying value as at 31 March 2015, and
thus, no impairment provision is required as at 31 March
2015. Increasing the pre-tax discount rate by 1% would
not cause the carrying amount of CATENA SA to exceed its
recoverable amount.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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BHEARIRAES H 12 31 H - BrliRE
W INH ER O IR B A S AR R A
H o

CATENA SA WG BB N & a5 s -
PGS CATENA SA 2 R Ui [ 4 %8 4% NEfif
B (B RN 2 o 5T 7 R B AT B 4
i e TR o AR B LA 0 JUAT 0 B
AR - BHRE SR EENN E SRR
5 i) BUATRGBLER 5 12% (U BLEE CATENA
SAAHBH 2 5 JmB ) 5 K ii) F DA R T
BRI A A T R R A 2% o R
PEWEREA, > A CATENA SA Z Al i |q]
S H R 201543 A 31 H 2 IRmi{HE
RIL A 201543 H 31 H A VR I (E T -
H TR HT R B3 %0 AN B B CATENA SA
TR AT (B s S m i [ 42 o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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17 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 17 AHHENMEEE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
At 1 April wraA1H 15,331 15,617
Revaluation deficit transfer AR AR 1 E AL 1R
to equity (Note 22) (F$5E22) (2,679) (286)
At 31 March W3H31H 12,652 15,331
Available-for-sale financial assets as at 31 March A20154F3 H 31 H > o] {8 1) B4 75
2015 represent unlisted equity investment in an entity T4 LA B ik B w9 — RIAE 91 3t
incorporated in Liechtenstein and are denominated in Swiss BN A R IE BT R E -
Francs.
The valuation of available-for-sale financial assets was A B Y B S T A (L 2 A e R B B
determined using discounted cash flow projections and are Rl 1D A ) D DI /N S
within level 3 of fair value hierarchy. The more significant TN & N NTE E S PN = D K
unobservable input is the rate of return on the investment. B0 ] R o ] AU > AT S
The lower the rate of return, the higher the fair value of the B B THE R

available-for-sale financial assets.

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R Y EE

18  STOCKS 18 #E&
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Raw materials J AR 111,432 86,454
Work-in-progress 1R i 13,087 3,926
Finished goods R h 1,203,213 1,103,651
1,327,732 1,194,031

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in cost of sales amounted to HK$1,524,407,000 (2014:

HK$1,512,885,000).

O 52 5 B S0 3T st A B 45 RS T A 77 B AR
ABHENET,524,407,000 7 (2014 4F © #EHE

1,512,885,000 JC) °

19 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 19 BYWER - RERBEMNKE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Trade debtors, gross JRES ' B Rk > AR 253,892 225,380
Less: provision for impairment of B RN 5 R
trade debtors (note b) A A (HEED) (472) (445)
Trade debtors, net (note a) JEWCE 5y ik > {B5E (st a) 253,420 224,935
Deposits, prepayments and e~ FATHOE K
other debtors (notes ¢ and d) Ho At BENCR I (B3t c & d) 344,075 351,080
597,495 576,015
Less: non-current portion W IR
deposits and prepayments 4 e AT EOA (166,752) (152,521)
Current portion DR 430,743 423,494
Trade debtors analysed by EEE H T
invoice date: JRENS B ) B
Below 60 days 60 HLIT 82,561 73,930
Over 60 days 60 HLI L 171,331 151,450
253,892 225,380

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

19

DEBT

Notes:

(a)

ORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

The Group engages designated import and export agents for
the importation of products from the subsidiaries in Hong
Kong to the subsidiaries in the Mainland China. The balances
due from and due to the import and export agents are settled
on a back-to-back basis, and hence, there are no fixed terms
of settlement for such balances. The Group’s trade debtors
and trade creditors include balances due from and due to
the import and export agents of HK$144,128,000 (2014:
HK$115,541,000).

Other than the balances due from the import and export
agents, the Group allows an average credit period of 60 days
from the invoice date to its trade debtors.

Balances that are neither past due nor impaired relate to
a number of independent customers whom there was no
relevant history of default.

Included in the Group’s trade debtors were debtors with a
carrying amount of HK$25,678,000 (2014: HK$42,916,000)
which were past due but not impaired. The ageing analysis of
these trade debtors based on due dates is as follows:

19

YRR « B RFANFIE (4)

(a)

AN A S E 0 A
6 B8 2 ) 014 S 3 A TR b ) R A D o
JRE Wi B AT 3 T AR B A & R Y 4 [ 4
BB ES B > NI ZEER2
AL SN e [ AR o AR A [T R AR R %
A5F R TR 6L 95 B Wi S B A 3 1 QO Y &
% Wk 15 144,128,000 7C (2014 4F © 5 K
115,541,000 JC) °

o3 MR i I JRE A o iy AR BR A S R AN > AR4E
4G T H U 5 IR b 88 5 H R
60 KM & -

07 A 0 s L9 255 5 09 R A 2 44 0 A
BRI B o

7 AR (] 14 JRE AT B2 S R A O T {1 7 A
25,678,000 G (2014 4F = #5 ¥ 42,916,000
JG) Y M S TE > A B R TE L A ) H e o
AR o SZE RN 5 MR R I A 2 RS
SR -

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT LT

Overdue: i
Within 1 year 14F 25,456 42,577
1-2 years 1-2 4 182 287
2-3 years 2-34F 9 42
Over 3 years A 3 4F 31 10
25,678 42,916

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers for whom there
is no recent history of default. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully receivable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

As at 31 March 2015, debtors of HK$472,000 (2014:
HK$445,000) aged over 3 years were fully impaired.

A L () R M 2 5 MR B 22 42 T
B AR AT N e R AR RT B
MR ALES - BRI A B EUOIR T G 5 4%
LRI AT RS o RERATI A T DL 4
SOl [RGB AR SRS A o el 48
i o 7% S 10 908 A 5% 4 O RRCRE A AT (T K
EiIN

201543 H31H > IREEE M = F 19
JRE W B FTE 5 472,000 TC (2014 4F © HE
445,000 70) CL 2 HRURAE -

B () A RA A
2015 4F4FH)
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19

111

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Notes (Continued):

(b)

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade debtors
are as follows:

19

YRR « RS RFANFIE (4)

MtE (AF) -

(b)

JREMACEE oy RN I (LA O S B A T

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT AT T

At 1 April w4HTH 445 630

Provision for impairment ORIk L] 116 44
Receivables written off JAAE N i 2 Al

during the year as uncollectible Wiz Il %) JE AT 2R E - (10)

Provision written back T (LA A 938 [ (40) (197)

Exchange differences BfE 58, 2 B 49 (22)

At 31 March MW3H31H 472 445

The creation and release of provision for impaired
receivables have been included in ‘other operating expenses’
in the consolidated income statement. Amounts charged to
the allowance account are generally written off when there is
no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The balance included amounts due from related companies
of HK$5,150,000 (2014: HK$3,974,000).

The balances due from related companies are unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

As at 31 March 2015, the balance included prepayment
for services arising from the issue of convertible bonds of
HK$14,906,000 (2014: HK$20,510,000) (Note 26).

T B AR (] 2 MR MCRR I Y (BB 2 A
FRO R R [ HABEE ST | o FEASRE
R 1R B A RO T RS W] el A B
SRS o

MY P TR T B 4 R i I 2 ) Y T S i
5,150,0007G(2014%4F : #5%3,974,0007C) -

JRE A B2 2 W) 45 0 240 70 A - S B
T MEBLRABE -

201543 A31 H » I 2 3 H [ 35 8
A7 #0555 7 2B 19 IR S 78 A5 3K JE i
14,906,000 JC (2014 4F = #% % 20,510,000
Jt) (B3t 26)

An analysis of debtors, deposits and prepayments by (e)  MEUHEZK ~ 44 Te TEAT 3R TE Fi & W4 At
currency is as follows: T
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Hong Kong dollars W 369,872 358,855
Renminbi NG 91,188 80,418
Singapore dollars EDIIE & 37,826 42,396
Malaysian ringgit BRI 54,625 57,620
Thai bahts F bk 23,051 24,246
Swiss Francs Fii 1% BB 683 833
Others Fips 20,250 11,647
597,495 576,015

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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20 BANK BALANCES AND CASH 20 BITEHRERE
An analysis of bank balances and cash by currency is as SRATEE R R S BT T
follows:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Hong Kong dollars I 109,870 128,600
Renminbi NERY 107,193 69,703
Singapore dollars HrmsgoT 41,772 62,888
Malaysian ringgit L5y i EHRC 92,424 84,177
Thai bahts ESTS 83,622 64,637
Swiss Francs Fi AR 4,719 854
Others HAth, 20,543 46,824
460,143 457,683
The conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies and 0N L W b ey A R e AR R Y]
remittance of Renminbi out of the PRC is subject to the rules SE % v B T R LA 0 1 T A 2 B B A% 4 1)
and regulations of exchange controls promulgated by the HIFR o

PRC government.

21 SHARE CAPITAL 21 KA

Number of shares
of HK$0.1 each
BREEBRE HK$’000
0.1 THRBH B BT

Authorised: BRI
At31 March 2014 and 2015 A 20144 J 2015 4F

3H31H 1,600,000,000 160,000
Issued and fully paid: OB AT MAR A
At 31 March 2014 and 2015 20144 % 2015 4F

3H31H 1,046,474,025 104,647
On 9 March 2005, the share option scheme for the 2200543 HOH » ICAUsA 2w K T
employees, officers and directors of the Company and its AR ZAEE - AR B K T K ER A
subsidiaries (the “Share Option Scheme”) was approved and — JE B RE ST B ([ RS IS0 ) > Bk
adopted by the shareholders pursuant to which the Board T O A8 M ) AN ) A S T 2 AR
was authorised to grant options to the employees, officers B AR B R R AT R 4 E R
and directors of the Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe WA R LAy 2 B PR o
for shares of the Company for a fixed period.
No share option was granted during the year. No share A NG S5 AT AT PR © TR 2014483 A
option was outstanding as at 31 March 2014. The Share 31 H o Sl AT AR i R AT 2 W HCHE > I
Option Scheme expired before 31 March 2015. HEFHEA 2015 4F 3 1 31 H AT

B () A RA A
2015 4F4FH) 112
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22 RESERVES 22 f#fE
Convertible
Share  Revaluation Exchange honds Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
TR

BB Efifk  EXGR  REER REEN #E
HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

ERffn  ERffn ERffr  RRfr BRfR BRfR

At T April 2013 2013F4 A1 H 1977 13,366 48,928 7700  1,150984 1,292,345
Exchange differences i 58,76 8 - - (33,688) - - (33,689)
Revaluation of available-for-sale AT it £ B 7 i e
financial assets (Note 17) Al (f3E17) - (286) - - - (286)
Profit for the year AR - - - - 171,712 171,712
Dividends paid (Note 23) EATIRE (HE23) - - - - (76,392) (76,392)
At 31 March 2014 201443 A31H 1977 13,080 15,240 7700  1,46304 1,353,691
A1 April 2014 20144E4 A1 A 1977 13,080 15,240 77,09 1,246304 1,353,691
Exchange differences i 58,76 8 - - (41,286) - - (41,286)
Revaluation of available-for-sale A [ 8 BHHS &
financial assets (Note 17) Ak (HE17) - (2,679) - - - 2,679)
Profit for the year A Py ] - - - - 91,756 91,756
Dividends paid (Note 23) EAFAEE (FiE23) - - - - (59,649) (59,649)
At 31 March 2015 201543 A31H 1977 10,401 (26,046) 7709 1278411 1,341,833
23 DIVIDENDS 23 KR
2015 2014
HK$/000 HK$'000
BT WA
Interim, paid, of HK$0.02 (2014: IR EE 178 Ik HK$0.02
HK$0.036) per ordinary share (2014 : HK$0.036) 1 S 20,929 37,673
Final, proposed, of HK$0.01 (2014:  #ak IR %54 % 48 I HK$0.01
HK$0.037) per ordinary share (2014 : HK$0.037) HA M B 10,465 38,719
31,394 76,392
The dividends paid in 2014 and 2015 were HK$76,392,000 22014 4F 1 2015 4F IR 55 19 12 43 Al 2
(HK$0.073 per share) and HK$59,649,000 (HK$0.057 per 76,392,000 70 (5 A 0.073 7)) S ds
share) respectively. A dividend in respect of the year ended 59,649,000 7T (£ B # 0.057 7C) © B E
31 March 2015 of HK$0.01 per share, amounting to a 201543 A 31 H IE4F B R ¥ 0.01 T HY
total dividend of HK$ 10,465,000, is to be proposed at the B > A 3L 8 A %E 510,465,000 JC >
annual general meeting on 17 August 2015. These financial HEHY 2015458 A 17 H BR4T 19 B 5 4F K&
statements do not reflect this dividend payable. AR o ASBATE RN M S B EAT AR
1 .l 3 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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24

CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS

24 ERRIRREER

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T

Trade creditors analysed R H AT

by invoice date: JEAT & T IR

Below 60 days 60 HUAF 298,550 264,563
Over 60 days 60 HELE 22,981 48,997
321,531 313,560

Other creditors and HoAth AT BR K K
accruals (note a) MESHE R (Ftsta) 279,957 282,279
601,488 595,839

Notes:

(@) Included in other creditors and accruals are amounts due to
related companies of HK$1,413,000 (2014: HK$1,648,000),
which are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

(b)  An analysis of creditors and accruals by currency is as

follows:

R

(@) A A RE AT R K % R T A KR
J5% AT B L 2 ) % 3K TEL A 89 1,413,000 00
(2014 4F : #%1,648,00070) > FKIH A
JEAH G S ME R A o

(b)  FECTIRFR R MERT B W AT T

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT AT T

Hong Kong dollars HHE 415,595 355,766
Renminbi NG 55,402 72,149
Singapore dollars Brmgoe 21,745 27,082
Malaysian ringgit L5 R 25,883 30,733
Thai bahts B3 26,821 34,219
Swiss Francs iy 7% BB 13,443 13,493
United States dollars ESH 30,722 44,961
Others HoAy 11,877 17,436
601,488 595,839

B () A RA A
2015 4F4FH)
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25 BORROWINGS 25 B
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Bank borrowings (note a) ATEK (Mt a) 631,528 534,463
Obligations under finance leases Al e A BRI (MERED)
(note b) 265 124
631,793 534,587
Amount repayable within one year R — N R
included in current liabilities T E) A (579,725) (464,123)
52,068 70,464
(@ Bank borrowings (@ RITEX

The Group’s bank borrowings are repayable as

AR ARAT SR ZH AR T DL T

follows:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT biokice s
Within 1 year 12N 579,671 463,999
Between 1 and 2 years 1224 12,722 17,029
Between 2 and 5 years 2 B 54E 20,762 40,865
Over 5 years 5P, 18,373 12,570
631,528 534,463

Included in bank borrowings as at 31 March 2015 are
secured borrowings amounted to HK$546,186,000
(2014: HK$374,239,000), which are secured by land
and buildings and prepayment of lease premium of the
Group (Notes 13 and 14).

A20154F3 H31 H ZSBATERNA
A 2 B 546,186,000 7T (2014
A0 ¥ 374,239,0000C) 5 DL AR EE
B ) i~ A R R AT AL b A A
(M3E13 Mo 14) o

1 .l 5 STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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25 BORROWINGS (Continued) 25 B (#H)
(@ Bank borrowings (Continued) (@ WMITERHE)
An analysis of the carrying amount of the Group's A B $RAT R T (4 B 40 A A
bank borrowings by currency is as follows: T
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Hong Kong dollars i 610,154 508,128
Malaysia ringgit L5Y L EHRC 21,374 25,737
Thai bahts eSS - 598
631,528 534,463
The weighted average effective interest rate per R AT R 20 N RE T 34 B R AE F R A
annum for bank borrowings was 1.60% (2014: 1.60JH (20144 : 1.74)F) o
1.74%).
As at 31 March 2015, the carrying amounts of bank TA20154E3 A 31 H » 4RATE K IR AT
borrowings approximate their fair values. B BN SR AR o
As at 31 March 2015, the Company had given FA20154E3 A31H > AN AT
guarantees to various banks to secure general banking P B N ] Y — AR AT R 1) R[]
facilities granted to certain subsidiaries amounting SRAT AR ¥ 7 2L s 0 1,561,087,000
to HK$1,561,087,000 (2014: HK$1,391,770,000). IC(20144F = #£¥1,391,770,0007C) °
As at 31 March 2015, the utilised amount of such R20154F3 A 31 H > 35 AN e
facilities covered by the Company’s guarantees was B RNE T8 2 458 s 631,526,000
HK$631,526,000 (2014: HK$534,463,000). I (20144F © #s#534,463,000 7T) ©

B () A RA A
2015 4F4FH) 116
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25 BORROWINGS (Continued) 25 B
(b) Obligations under finance leases (b) FEHERRE

R BRI AR UL

The obligations under finance leases are payable as

follows:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Within 1 year 142N 60 132
Between 1 and 2 years 1E 24 60 -
Between 2 and 5 years 2B 54 179 -
299 132
Future finance charges Pl L 0 R A 5 S
on finance leases (34) (8)
Present value of finance e B A R BUE
lease liabilities 265 124

The present value of finance lease liabilities is

analysed as follows:

AEA B A AR BUE ST

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT

Within 1 year THZR 53 124
Between 1 and 2 years 1E 24 53 -
Between 2 and 5 years 2 E 54 159 -
265 124

The carrying amount of obligations under finance

il REL R A 1) R TR L LA I3 e

leases is denominated in Singapore dollars. FHE -

1 1 7 STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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26

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 29 November 2012, the Company issued unlisted and
unsecured convertible bonds with a principal amount of
HK$371,022,600 to Sapphire llluminatus Holdings Limited
(“Sapphire”), an independent third party.

The terms of the convertible bonds are summarised below:

- the bonds bear interest at 3.5% per annum if the
bonds are held by Sapphire or its affiliates, or 2.75%
per annum if otherwise, on the principal amounts of
the convertible bonds outstanding from time to time,
payable semi-annually in arrears;

—  the bonds are convertible at the option of the
bondholders into fully paid ordinary shares 18 months
after the issue of bonds up to fifth anniversary of
the issue date of the bonds at a conversion price of
HK$1.95 per share, subject to certain adjustments
pursuant to the terms of the agreement entered with
the bondholders;

- 190,268,000 conversion shares will be issued upon
full conversion of the bonds based on the initial
conversion price of HK$1.95 per share;

—  Sapphire has the option to require the Company to

early redeem 30% of the outstanding principal (the
“Option”) if i) the consolidated net income of the
Company (without taking into account any expenses
arising from accounting treatment of the bonds) is less
than HK$400 million in more than one out of the three
financial years ended/ending 31 March 2015 to 2017;
or ii) the aggregate consolidated net income of the
Company (without taking into account any expenses
arising from accounting treatment of the bonds) is less
than HK$1 billion for three financial years ended/
ending 31 March 2015 to 2017. The remainder of the
bonds shall remain to be convertible, and such the
bonds which have not been previously converted,
redeemed, or purchased and cancelled and remain
outstanding on the maturity shall be redeemed. The
Company shall also pay an amount in cash to Sapphire
equal to 3/7th of the outstanding principal amount
of such remaining bonds held by Sapphire upon
maturity; and

26

AR ES

JR20124E11 A 29 H > A Rl 1l — 24 ML
=J5 Sapphire Illuminatus Holdings Limited
(I Sapphire |) BT A G 4841 371,022,600
T I T B S AT B e

AR IR A e

- RREERER M RAT O AR A SR A

S8 > M SR i Sapphire s B A
TREA o HAERIERS.5%EHE S
FA N LHEA > BHRAFER 2 2.75% w5
B BRI

- URARGURRA ARV R 5

7 185 SR 5987 FR 5
L S R W 1,95 T2 B4 2
EUBUR AR R - S0 R
R BLUREA AT S 0 B
i T ;

— 190,268,000 B i, 46 B 43 3 i 5 25 AR

B SR B s 1 1.95 TR
AT

—  Sapphire AR E UL AT ZORAA AR

LI ) 30% A B A 4 (T HARE ) »
) 4% 28 W &5 A i A CRFE B AR
ol S AR AT BA 52 ) R E
20154FF 201743 A 31 B 1k = (A8
A v — {18 B 22 B B4R IR s
¥ 400,000,000 7€ 5 Bii) B FE 20154
201743 A 31 H 1E =8 BB A
N T AR S TR B85 CR B R 5
i HE A AT AR B ) IR i
1,000,000,000 JG ° ik T & 75 JE £ 7]
ok SR T N = T e S &
i L B M IR o A 2R 0 AR ol T R
JE ] o A3 W JRE ] Sapphire AT AH
B O B IRE R AT 1 0 R (E R 1Y B
TEFEASFH LR MBS s &

B () A RA A
2015 4F4FH)
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26

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

- Sapphire would be compensated by the difference
between the accrued interest and cash dividend
(calculated on as-converted basis) (the “Additional
Interest”), if the former is less than the latter.

The convertible bonds consist of a liability component,
comprising the 5-year 3.5% straight debt, other redemption
features and additional interest liabilities, and an equity
component, representing the convertible option of HK$1.95
per share. At the issuance of the bonds, the liability
component and the equity component were recognised at
fair value, determined based on the valuations performed
by an independent professional valuer using the binominal
model with the major following assumptions:

- Risk-free interest rate of 0.261%;
- Volatility of 25.07%;

- Borrowing rate of 8.29%;

- Dividend yield of 6.0%

The liability component and equity component of the
convertible bonds recognised at initial recognition as at 29
November 2012 are as follows:

26

AR &S (A7)

- MRERALE DR B RE (R iR
I EMERHSL) > Sapphire AR ERT
) S5 BB 4 A S 2 [ ) 25 2 (AR
) e

] R LA AR (345 4 3.5% Rt
114 A 2 A S R H At ] A ) L B BE SR
HE ) LR (BB 1.95 T8 Lt
HE) o W ERATAE IRy > BUE IR SoRE AR Ay
e BT RD. > AR R 7 S S Al T A A
{EHR T R R i — IR

- dEEBEFIR0.261% S
- FEME25.07% ;

- BRI 8.29% ;

- KE%E6.0%

A R AR 5 1 AR B RE 2R T A i 2012
E11 H 29 HAIA ferBRFRERR AN T

HK$’000
AT T
Fair value of convertible bonds issued CEAT AR R SR 1 AT 396,772
Less: Liability component W BRI (319,682)
Equity component HE £ B 70 77,090

The convertible bonds were issued with fair value higher
than the principal amount and were accounted for as share-
based payment transactions. The excess of the fair value of
the convertible bonds over the consideration received of
HK$28,018,000 were recorded as a prepayment for services
and are amortised on a straight line basis over the term of
contract (Note 19). Amortisation expense of HK$5,604,000
has been recognised in the consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: HK$5,604,000
and included in other operating expenses).

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

A0 G5 5 T 4% e A AR 4 B R N (8
15 > S0 DAy 5 FERRE 1 A5 3K 5 ) A -
AT 82 5 A 2 114 A V- (LR 1 T g I ) A6 A 7
28,018,000 7C 7 5T Bk 24 Ik B5 19 TE AF 3K
TH > M7 4% AR AR R A A 0T oA B (R
FE19) o #8H BH U5 15 5,604,000 0 EL A
E20154E3 A31 HILEE M4 A ik 25 %
Y At A S O ERR 2014 4F ¢ M
5,604,000 JC) °
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The liability component of the bonds is stated at fair value.
The equity component is presented in equity as “convertible
bonds reserve”.

The movement of the liability component of the convertible
bonds for the year is set out below:

AR (A1)
IR I BT 1R AT 2 51 o HE 4k ¥R )
TR BERER 251 5 [ AT e 25 Aot o

AN TR B AR IR B AR 0 1 52 B SR8
T

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT T

Liability component at 1 April 4 H 1 B AR 331,456 316,419
Changes in fair value included FEARE A A FE 5 E)

in finance costs 62,830 27,976

Interest paid ELATFLE (13,533) (12,939)

Liability component at 31 March 3 H 31 BB EH S 380,753 331,456

The liability component of the convertible bonds is valued
by independent qualified valuers, AVISTA Valuation
Advisory Limited, who hold a recognised relevant
professional qualification and have recent experience in
valuation of convertible bonds.

The valuation of the liability component of the convertible
bonds was determined using the binominal option pricing
model. In valuing the Option, the external valuer has
assigned a probability for each scenario under the Option
and calculated the probability weighted fair value of the
liability component of the convertible bonds. In valuing
the Additional Interest portion, the amount is based on
the present value of the differences between the estimated
dividend received on an as-if converted basis and the annual
coupon interest of the convertible bonds over the remaining
outstanding period.

T R o B MR AR S A A (LR
SCEE A A S A AT PR A (E - A A
e T 19 A ] S A B L A A Sl T 4 i
TRLIRAEAT A (LX) AR B 4 B

A e AR S AR A0 A (R T BR T B A
AR E BT e o N IAREAS (R - 4P
A L Pl A A5 I B A A R G RHAE
AT B B AR 40 A B S5 HE 8 S (B o A B A
FE IR B AGERE > 5% &8RRG FE
W B (B (B B S e v ) B m] i 5 5
FABR TR R AT (5 300 149 A B o i A R 22 R
BUETE °

B () A RA A
2015 4F4FH)
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26 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 26 ARRES A
The more significant input used in the valuation of the ESIE i =K i X R R =N N B
liability component of the convertible bonds are as follows: FHRMEAEL T
2015 2014
Risk-free interest rate e L o 1) 0.56% 0.748%
Volatility i) 41.23% 24.13%
Borrowing rate B A 8.18% 8.25%
Dividend yield Ji B % 3.5% 6.0%
Probability of the Option AT RE RS 7T fiES
being exercised 70% 10%
There were no changes to the valuation techniques during A BE A (R4 1l Sl 4 i) o
the year.
If the probability of the Option being exercised increased (AT B RE 19 T e e 388 12 10% » oAt 48 8
by 10%, with other parameters remain unchanged, the fair MR R > B AR5 2 B 0 (R N 0
value of the liability component of the convertible bonds S 1ETm # 45 ¥ 7,000,000 7G (2014 4F - #
would increase by approximately HK$7,000,000 (2014: 9,000,000 7C) ©
HK$9,000,000).
During the year ended 31 March 2015, none of the bonds A ZE20154F3 A31 H IFAERE » MFMfg e -
were redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled Lok B E AN (2014 4F © 4m) o
(2014: nil).
27  DEFERRED INCOME TAX 27 EIEFRIEH
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities R GER TE o S IR IE R T A AT IR
is as follows:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Deferred tax assets IR AL E 70,692 63,775
Deferred tax liabilities AR SE A IE A (2,299) (2,126)
68,393 61,649
1 21 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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27  DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 27 EEFTEH ()

IRSEBL AR H AR B 4T

The gross movement on the deferred tax accounts is as

follows:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
As at 1 April w4H1H 61,649 58,079
Credited to income statement FEA AR R 7,063 5,456
Exchange differences i i) (319) (1,886)
As at 31 March W3 H31TH 68,393 61,649

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during

A NIERE B E S AR S B (A% R
TR B s )k L PR R RIS ) T T

the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred tax assets EEBIESE
Accelerated
accounting/ Provision for
(tax)  unrealised Other
depreciation profit in Other  temporary
allowances stock  Taxlosses provisions differences Total
mEgs/ HEW
(BE)RE RERET Hit
%M WER  BEEE  HbRE ORMES L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRffr B EEFR  BRAR BBz EEfR
At 1 April 2013 201344 11 H 9,075 23,399 8,519 15,422 6,263 62,678
Credited to At AN £
income statement 1,941 2,251 1,858 1,320 446 7,816
Exchange differences HE 56 3 (1,089) (392) - (351) (175) (2,007)
At 31 March 2014 201443 H31H 9,927 25,258 10,377 16,391 6,534 68,487
At1 April 2014 #20144E4 A1 H 9,927 25,258 10,377 16,391 6,534 68,487
(Charged)/credited to (B A,/ AN
income statement (433) (287) 579 4,256 4,569 8,084
Exchange differences HE 50,76 3 3) (237) - (113) (159) (11)
At 31 March 2015 201543 H31H 9,491 24,734 10,956 20,534 10,945 76,660

B () A RA A
2015 4F4FH)
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27  DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 27 EEFTEH ()

Deferred tax liabilities REFIEEE

Accelerated

tax/(accounting) Other
depreciation temporary
allowances differences Total
hnEBE, Ht
(B IEER TRER e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT
At 1 April 2013 W201344H1H 4,333 266 4,599
Charged to income statement FOBR A Ui = 2,351 9 2,360
Exchange differences [ifE 57, 7 (111) (10) (121)
At 31 March 2014 20144331 H 6,573 265 6,838
At 1 April 2014 JA20144FE4H1H 6,573 265 6,838
Charged to income statement FHER A et & 890 731 1,621
Exchange differences BEE 58, 22 7 (138) (54) (192)
At 31 March 2015 JA20154E3 H31 H 7,325 942 8,267
Out of the total unrecognised tax losses of HK$668,980,000 JIT 4 DL 1 &% R K B SR 2 SR T R B IE I
(2014: HK$671,702,000) carried forward, an amount of fH A AA B 5 668,980,000 JC (2014 4F i
HK$154,483,000 (2014: HK$172,486,000) can be carried #671,702,00070) > He k¥ 154,483,000
forward indefinitely. The remaining HK$514,497,000 JCQ0144F « %5 172,486,000 70) Al 4EFRIY
(2014: HK$499,216,000) will expire in the following years: gk, HARHEN 514,497,000 7T (2014 4F -

#5499 216,000 7C) HFE T 5 IR fE T

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT AT

In the first year 5514 66,826 56,679
In the second year B2 76,279 70,851
In the third year 534 66,892 87,240
In the fourth year A 95,672 61,444
In the fifth to tenth years inclusive 5554 25 104F (45 5 B W4E) 208,828 223,002
514,497 499,216

1 23 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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28

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 28 HERLRER
Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash generated i Py 45 B4 il Ja 1) Bl 7 8 5 ) P 45 B e W
from operations IR
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Profit before income tax R I A5 i i ) 140,508 226,458
Depreciation e 113,628 120,392
Amortisation of prepayment 1 YA AL AR
of lease premium 6,851 7,124
Loss on disposal of property, Y WA RSl 1R
plant and equipment 688 794
Provision of stocks 17 & el 19,540 295
Impairment of debtors JRE STk T 116 44
Write back of bad debts provision 135 [ AR YE (40) (197)
Impairment of property, W2k - W A I (E
plant and equipment 5,566 3,460
Expenses on convertible bonds AT Al RS S 5,604 5,604
Interest income BN (1,342) (1,123)
Interest expense FILE S 72,141 37,139
Dividend income JEE A (2,052) (3,175)
Share of loss/(profit) of an associate e A\ (18D s 5,302 (1,267)
Operating profit before working W < A T 119 7 i )
capital changes 366,510 395,548
Increase in stocks FERm (179,512) (47,909)
Increase in debtors, deposits JREMSCHI R ~ e S TR R IR B
and prepayments (38,276) (89,621)
Increase in creditors and accruals JREA B R 2 JRE 2 T 1 12,649 70,340
Cash generated from operations R Y P A B 161,371 328,358

B () A RA A
2015 4F4FH)
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29 COMMITMENTS 29 EiE
(@) Capital commitments of the Group for property, (@ FTEEBWE-  BBERRENERE
plant and equipment 5
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Contracted but not provided for ~ EV&RAIEARAE H #E 8,950 21,066
(b) Commitments under operating leases (where the by BEHETHREREE/EEREH
Group is the lessee) A)
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease 7R B AE A AT SR R B R
payments under non-cancellable operating leases as AR G AT AR T
follows:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Buildings &2
Not later than one year T4ER 633,709 633,404
Later than one year but not 1AERAH 5 4R
later than five years 600,653 567,485
Later than five years 540 1 10,790 11,919
1,245,152 1,212,808
The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses EMEA AR - A 4 R
and renewal rights. The operating lease rentals of FAERHRER © 25 T I 4 2@ A B AR
certain outlets are based on the higher of a minimum A T e B AR AR 75 A 4 s A 4
guaranteed rental or a sales level based rental. The (DA F e ) B o bR IS 4%
minimum guaranteed rental has been used to arrive at IR EFE -

the above commitments.

1 25 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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30

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party
or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or common significant influence.

Yee Hing Company Limited, directly and indirectly through
its subsidiary including Active Lights Company Limited,
held 1,195,100 shares of the Company as at 31 March
2015. 55% of the total issued ordinary shares of Yee Hing
Company Limited is held by Klayze Holdings Limited,
which is the trustee of a discretionary trust (the “Trust”).
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong and Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas are the
beneficiaries of the Trust and were therefore deemed to be
interested in 1,195,100 shares of the Company through the
Trust’s interest in Yee Hing Company Limited.

Save as disclosed in Notes 19 and 24, the following is a
summary of the significant related party transactions carried

out in the normal course of the Group's business:

(i)  Sales of goods and services to related companies

30

BEREALIRS

A7 R N 9 T R B R R R S —
BTE A Hh B SRR R R R ) — 7 AT i
EDN 2 VIPNS IS N S
M NE KSR 2 NI B A B

20154E3 A 31 H » FRELABRA & H 5K
[ 22 208 HL B 2 W) Active Lights Company
Limited ¥ A 4 24 71,195,100 B B 3 -
Klayze Holdings Limited PA{E & —THE 155
L (MEFE D) Z Z it NG A A R
] A EL BT 4 B 2 55% 1 £ o A
T MEBIVL A AR 2 Z s A o bk
53 A (5 o S 26 LA BR A ) 2 B 25 i 4
HALT],195,100 B HESS

B BHF 5E 19 e 24 BT i ik A Ab > T AR
P LA 2 2 [T AT 9 TR A2 5 R
B WAy SRR H SRS AT

() MBEREARHEEERRERE

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT T AT T
Building management fee income [n]— %A B\ 7]
from a related company WSO 2E 7 PRI 2,340 2,340

A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group entered into
agreement with Mengiwa Property Investment Limited
(“MPIL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Yee Hing, for
the provision of the following services for the period
from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2016:

(@)  contract administration with respect to contracts
entered into between MPIL and third parties
from time to time;

(b) property agency liaison and tenancy
management;

(c)  management of the property manager of Stelux
House; and

(d)  other miscellaneous administrative services.

The fee for the provision of the above services was
agreed at HK$195,000 per calendar month during the
duration of the agreement.

A ) A oo /A D B 2 SR 4 T
43 A B SE AR A BR AR ([ HEE )
WM 20134E4 A1 HE 201643 A 31
H AT HE DL IR RT 7 Wik

@) WIFEFEESE = AR LA R
TZERITE

(b)  WEAIAT A EEH

() EMELWMERLYEFTIL
IS4

d) HAATBURES -

IR Wh s 300 0 > Ik Lol AR 1)
A B2 A AR A #%195,0000C ©

B () A RA A
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 30 BEEALRS ()
(i) Purchases of goods and services from related (i) MARELATNBEERERY
companies
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Purchase of goods from a WA BE AN F R E & (F st a) 1,032 2,556
related company (note a)
Purchase of goods from an 16 B 2 ) M R B (ST D)
associate (note b) 45,662 21,794
Rental expense to related 1] A7 B3 B SO 48 S (BT o)
companies (note c) 15,400 13,356
62,094 37,706

Notes: i

(@)  During the year, certain subsidiaries of the Group @ R AT M ] i 58
purchased optical products from International Optical S Y4 L T 2 )[R i R G 7
Manufacturing Company Limited and its subsidiary AR F L A F (TTOMEE
(“IOM Group”), indirectly owned subsidiaries of M ) g4 s R E RO
Yee Hing, in accordance with the terms of written Z T ek Z MR DGR E A -
agreements for the Group’s retail and trading
operations.

(b) Purchases of watch movements from an associate (b) [i) W 5 N ) M L S gk By AR AE T HL R

are conducted in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The terms of transactions are determined
and agreed between the Group and the counterparty
and all balances due are repayable according to trade

ST o 205 2 e A S BB 5)
S0 B T e o TS ke
LN -

terms.

(c)  During the year, certain subsidiaries of the Group have (©  AFERN - AL T WE AR T
entered into tenancy agreements with the following A B AL AT S A Wk o ATH
related parties for office premises, warehouses, WA E - B BRI E K
showroom and car-parking spaces: fir :

Rental expense for the year

FEHEXH

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T

Mengiwa Property Investment ~ IFEY) 3£ & A R H
Limited 13,430 11,485
Other related parties HAA B A 1,970 1,871
15,400 13,356

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 30 BREEALIRE (4)
(iii) Year-end balances arising from service income, (i) MRAFIA ~ BE AN AHE T HEA
purchases of goods and rental expenses are disclosed AR A AL BRI B EE 1 9(c) BB 524 () 1M
in Note 19(c) and Note 24(a). P o
(iv) Key management compensation (ivy EEEEERM
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT T

Salaries and other short-term e M HAb IR B A

employee benefits 24,695 20,550
Other long-term benefits HoAth = 14 215 236
24,910 20,786
31  POST BALANCE SHEET DATE EVENTS 31 #HEB#®RER
On 16 April 2015, the Group acquired an additional 48% R20154E4 716 H » ALEEE CATENA
equity interest in CATENA SA for a consideration of EUR SA T3 A 48% M HE 45 > fRAE £ 1,660,000 X
1,660,000 and CATENA SA became the Group’s subsidiary. JC © FELLIEZE 1% » CATENA SA A4k

P B B 2 ] o

Up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial AL HERZ S AR S MBS R o AR R
statements, there is insufficient financial information RS B ) DA G A B P S L AL Y
available for the Group to identify and determine the fair CATENA SARYAFE - DLR 53 Bie i B AR
values of CATENA SA’s identifiable assets acquired, and 18 Je IR P2 I RIS 0 B S AR B e

liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed for the purpose
of allocation of purchase considerations and calculation of
goodwill.

B () A RA A
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32 BALANCE SHEET AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVE OF THE 32 AAEEAEBRREEEERR

COMPANY
Balance sheet of the Company ARAIEEABR
As at 31 March
R3A31H
2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BESE BT AT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FmE &
Investment in a subsidiary ) YAk e <y - -
Debtors, deposits and prepayments — MEIHEFK ~ 444 K TS 3KIE 14,907 20,511
14,907 20,511
Current assets M E
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE WA BB 2 ) R E 618,375 578,630
Debtors, deposits and prepayments — BEIRIRSK ~ 4% K B A HOH 188 142
Bank balances and cash SRATAE R B B 40 27
618,603 578,799
Total assets B E AR 633,510 599,310
EQUITY xR
Capital and reserves attributable to A\ AIMEf F5H A
the equity holders of the Company  FE{%REAS K fifi 5
Share capital A 104,647 104,647
Reserves frtfts @) 140,376 155,473
Total equity i kit 245,023 260,120

1 29 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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32 BALANCE SHEET AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVE OF THE 32 AREEAGBRREBEEHR )
COMPANY (Continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (Continued) RAEERER (A

As at 31 March

M3 A31H
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
LIABILITIES =V
Non-current liabilities FEmE AR’
Convertible bonds EE3ides 380,753 331,456
380,753 331,456
Current liabilities T A
Creditors and accruals JEAT R I w2 T 2,234 2,234
Amount due to a subsidiary JREAST BB 2 ) 3 IE 5,500 5,500
7,734 7,734
Total liabilities BE AR 388,487 339,190
Total equity and liabilities R4 & A AR 633,510 599,310
Joseph C.C. Wong Wallace Kwan Chi Kin
HAE AEER
Chairman and Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
T RATECAE TTIE 3 F R

FI 5 B 5 A

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2015 and was signed on its
behalf.

WHREIE2015F 6 A 25 HIMMENEE T AN EEAME -

B () A RA A
2015 4F4FH) 130



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

32 BALANCE SHEET AND MOVEMENT OF RESERVE OF THE 32
COMPANY (Continued)

AREERBREEEDR A

Note: [t 5T -
(@  Movement of reserve of the Company @ 2RRREEES
Convertible
Share bonds Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
;&N AR -
E BEHEE BF i
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEATT BT T BT BT
At 1 April 2013 R20134F4H1H 1,977 77,090 173,511 252,578
Loss for the year F MR - - (20,713) (20,713)
Dividends paid CATBE - - (76,392) (76,392)
At 31 March 2014 201443 H31H 1,977 77,090 76,406 155,473
At 1 April 2014 #20144E4 41 H 1,977 77,090 76,406 155,473
Profit for the year A A 35 A - - 44,552 44,552
Dividends paid EATREE - - (59,649) (59,649)
At 31 March 2015 201543 431 H 1,977 77,090 61,309 140,376

1 31 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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33  BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 33 EBEANRER
(A) Directors’ emoluments A EEEE
The remuneration of each director is set out below: RNFISERZMEST -
For the year ended 31 March 2015: BE 201543 31 H :
Emoluments paid
or receivable
in respect
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services of director’s
as a director, whether of the Company o its subsidiary undertaking: other services
ARIGENBAAENESSESRIEN - in connection
Remunerations with the
paidor  management
Basic receivable in of the
salaries,  Contributions respect of  affairs of the
allowances, to retirement accepting ~ Company or
and benefits benefit ~ Discretionary officeas it subsidiary
Name Fees in kind schemes bonus' director  understating Total
xHIER
ARTGHENE
Ee¥e- Bxfid ARRESH
RHR £ife PAEZR  RAHER
4 fis  ENNE  HRGE BERL ESEUEE  REORD .

HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS 000  HKS' 000
AR AR AR BEfT AR AR BEfT

Joseph C. C. Wong (i WA G 100 2944 104 6,502 - - 9,650
Lau Tak Bui, Vincent Bl 80 2533 9 5,175 - - 8,481
Kwan Chi Kin, Wallace RE 80 1,528 18 1,412 - - 3,038
Sakorn Kanjanapas HANL 80 - - - - - 80
Ma Xuezheng, Mary E - - - - - - -
Wong Yu Tsang, Alex BTH - - - - - - -
Kwong Yi Hang, Agnes #ati 135 - - - - - 135
Wu Chun Sang, Nelson ik 135 - - - - - 135
Wu Chi Man, Lawrence ik 135 - - - - - 135

745 7,005 215 13,689 - - 21,654
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33 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued) 33 EBwEANRER )
(A) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) A ESHME 4
For the year ended 31 March 2014 (Restated): #AE20144E3 A 31 H () -
Certain of the comparative information of directors’ e BT B0 W R I B B 2014 4F
emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2014 3 131 HH &R/ 2 F M & L g R E
previously disclosed in accordance with the H I LA S0 A w2 ml R 26 622 5
predecessor Companies Ordinance have been HYEK o

restated in order to comply with the new scope
and requirements by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622).

Emoluments paid
or receivable
in respect
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services of director’s
as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking; other services
LINTECU TN E R £ e R in connection
Remunerations with the
paidor  management
Basic receivable in of the
salaries,  Contributions respectof  affairs of the
allowances, toretirement accepting  Company or
and benefits benefit  Discretionary officeas its subsidiary
Name Fees inkind schemes bonus' director  understating Total
SUET
ALIHE
Aede EXfE AdfEEY
R Bk fgkeh  ER
4 We  EWAE (G MRRL EREINE  RERme B

HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS 000
Wl W LTy Wl Wl bl

Joseph C. C. Wong (i HAI G 100 2,808 105 12412 - - 15,425
Lau Tak Bui, Vincent Bl 80 2378 91 6,334 - - 8,683
Kwan Chi Kin, Wallace s 60 1,440 15 1,089 - - 2,604
Chu Kai \Wah, Anthony FEE 20 678 25 4136 - - 4859
Sakorn Kanjanapas HANL 80 - - - - - 80
Ma Xuezheng, Mary BE - - - - - - -
Wong Yu Tsang, Alex BTH - - - - - - -
Kwong Vi Hang, Agnes Bt 135 - - - - - 135
Wu Chun Sang, Nelson PRk 135 - - - - - 135
Wu Chi Man, Lawrence HE 135 - - - - - 135

745 7,304 236 23,971 - - 32,256
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33 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(A)

(B)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

i Discretionary bonus represents the amount paid
during the year.

i Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong is also the chief
executive officer of the Group.

During the year, none of the directors waived their
emoluments, except Ms. Ma Xuezheng, Mary and
Mr. Wong Yu Tsang, Alex waived emoluments of
HK$80,000 each.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 30, no other significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

33 EEwRARER )

(A)

(B)

EEME ()
[ WY TEALTE AF N E AT &7 -

i EANE e IR R A B AT B

e

RN > AT o] 2 RN 4 > BRIG
TAE LB AR S TR A A i
# 80,000 JLA ©

EXEXS  HRAIESRNEAFE

BRBHRE 30 PR 51 > FRA R A AR AR R
AR AR AT > Ao F)E AR AT B
HRIES > WG FF > AN
HERE I > AW RERFLE
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2015 4F4FH)

134



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FA RS ERaR B o

34  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 3 FEHBAT

BZE201543H31H » THEBARWT -

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

March 2015:
Particulars of Percentage of equity
Place of share capital issued  attributable to the Group
incorporation/ BRTRA SEMEESNEA L
operation Principal activities Number Value 2015 2014
AR IREK k& sSkEE
Investment 2 &
Stelux Holdings International Group British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 Us$1 100° 100
(BVI) Limited R B LR BERR (ST
Stelux Holdings Limited Hong Kong Investment holding 1,000 HK$1 100 100
EDLE K (M) ARAT ik B T
Stelux Investments and Properties  British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 US$1 100 100
(BVI) Limited KRR LR REER B
Stelux Watch Holdings Limited (in ~ Singapore Investment holding 35,617,861 S$1 100 100
members’ voluntary liquidation) ¥ RETER s
(B A o) 178
Thong Sia (BVI) Company Limited ~ British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 Us$1 100 100
b3 i B 187t
Property #13
City Chain Properties Limited Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$1 100 100
I ] R R A R il ESI9 LA
Fulani Investment Limited Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$1 100 100
ik ESd 4 LA
Optical 88 Properties Limited Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$1 100 100
R85 88 W1 A IR/ il ESd e W T
Oswald Property Management Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$100 100 100
Limited it UESIa #1007
Prime Master Limited Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$1 100 100
(under liquidation) il WERE et AP
REARAF (i)
Stelux Properties Agency Limited ~ Hong Kong Property agency and 2 HK$1 100 100
ot E I R A ] i management R IT
WA R
Stelux Properties Limited Hong Kong Property management 500 HK$100 100 100
AR RAR it B #1 W 100 7T
1 35 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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34  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34 FEMEBATE (4)
Particulars of Percentage of equity
Place of share capital issued  attributable to the Group
incorporation/ ERITRE SEMEEENEDL
operation Principal activities Number Value 2015 2014
AR FTEXH k& sSkaE
Retailing and trading
TERES
City Chain Company Limited Hong Kong Watch retailing 250,000 HK$100 100 100
i ] e A PR ik T R 100 T
City Chain (M) Sdn Bhd Malaysia Watch retailing 3,333,333 RM1 100 100
ARG 55 BT E 147
City Chain (Macau) Company Macau Watch retailing 2 MOP5,000 100 100
Limited T HEEE T
I RS e (BRPY) F A ) 5,000 7
City Chain Stores (S) Pte Limited ~ Singapore Watch retailing 1,800,000 S$1 100 100
Hrhnsg T Hrimsg ks
170
City Chain (Thailand) Company Thailand Watch retailing 200,000 Baht100 100 100
Limited R ST 100 %k
210,000 Baht100
100 %4k
Optical 88 Limited Hong Kong Optical products 30,700,000 HK$1 100 100
iR$5% 88 R T il B fi AP
Optical 88 (Macau) Limited Macau Optical products 2 MOP5,000 100 100
R8T 88 (M) ARAR T TR fh TAr
5,000 7T
Optical 88(S) Pte Limited Singapore Optical products 500,000 S$1 100 100
Hrinsg R Hhmsgws 1 7
Optical 88 (Thailand) Company ~ Thailand Optical products 245,000 Baht10 100 100
Limited R B 1055k
255,000° Baht10
1045k
Optical 88 Eyecare (M) Sdn Bhd ~ Malaysia Optical products 1,428,572 RM1 100 100
i NiiEH R M 14%
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34  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34 FEWEBARE (4)
Particulars of Percentage of equity
Place of share capital issued attributable to the Group
incorporation/ BRTRA EEMERENEDLL
operation Principal activities Number Value 2015 2014
MR IREK k& SREE
Retailing and trading (Continued)
ZEREZ (H)
Pronto Watch S.A. Switzerland Watch distribution 100 SFr1,000 100 100
Hit Sk 1,000 51
S
Solvil et Titus S.A. Switzerland Watch distribution 300 SFr1,000 100 100
Hit Sk 1,000 5 1
i
Stelux International Licensing Bahamas Trademark holding and 2 Us$1 100 100
Limited RS licensing 167
TRRFRA RS REAL S
Stelux Watch Limited Hong Kong Watch supply chain 1,000,000 HK$1 100 100
Tk A RA o management LD
Sk (A
Thong Sia Watch Company Limited Hong Kong Watch distribution 80,000 HK$10 100 100
TS PR 7 i B ) 10T
Thong Tai Watch Company Limited Hong Kong Watch distribution 2,000  HK$1,000 100 100
EREHARAT iy B ) 11,0007
Thong Sia Company (Singapore) Pte Singapore Watch distribution 2,000,000 S$1 100 100
Limited s st R s 1 o
Thong Sia Sdn Bhd Malaysia Watch distribution 1,000,000 RM1 97.6 97.6
AP Sk %%
Thong Tai (Taiwan) Company Hong Kong/Taiwan Watch distribution 1,000 HK$10 100 100
Limited it/ a8 S 3 10T
R (A1) ARAT
Thong Sia (Thailand) Limited Thailand Watch retailing and 20,000 Baht100 100 100
P30 distribution 100 2% 5%
ST Sy
Thong Sia Optics (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Optical distribution 5,000  HK$1,000 100 100
Company Limited Tits MR 57> 4 i1 1,000 7
HOLER (Fril) AR H
Universal Geneve S.A. Switzerland Watch supply chain 5,000 SFr1,000 100 100
Jit management and 1,000%1:
distribution HEEB
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34  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34 FEWEBAR )
Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation attributable to the Group
operation Principal activities Paid-up capital SEFEERNEDL
REMERY, IREH BRER 2015 2014
Retailing and trading
(Continued)
ZERES (B)
Baoshi (Guangdong) Company People’s Republic of China/ Retailing, tradingand ~ HK$181,890,000 100 100
Limited Mainland China (foreign- related optical i 181,890,000 7
B ) BOERRSEA AR invested commercial services
enterprise) MEEMTE B
BB ORRE (SN il e
E)
Baoshi (Shanghai) Company  People’s Republic of China/ Retailing, tradingand ~ RMB19,403,057 100 100
Limited Mainland China (foreign- related optical AR19,403,057 7
(L) IRGEA AR invested commercial services
enterprise) WEEMETE - B
B/ BORRE (SN giilol e
EF)
Stelux-Thong Sia (Beijing) People’s Republic of China/ Watch retailing, trading  US$18,700,000 100 100
Trading Limited Mainland China (foreign- and related services 18,700,000 %70
IR (L) BB AMRAR  invested commercial HETE  GH )
enterprise) HRBARRES
B/ R RE (SN
EEF)
Stelux-Thong Sia (Guangdong) People’s Republic of China/ Watch retailing, trading  HK$181,400,000 100 100
Trading Limited Mainland China (foreign- and related services  ## 181,400,000 7T
BOREM (R MEARATR  invested commercial HEEE - HH R
enterprise) HRBAIRES
B/ R RE (SN
EEF)
Stelux-Thong Sia (Shanghai)  People’s Republic of China/ Watch retailing, trading  US$16,000,000 100 100
Trading Limited Mainland China (foreign- and related services 16,000,000 &0
IR (i) R ARAT  invested commercial HHTE BN
enterprise) HRBAIES
BB RRE (SN
EEF)
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34

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

34 FEMBLQE (4)

Percentage of equity

Place of incorporation attributable to the Group
operation Principal activities Paid-up capital SERERERNES L
AR TEEH BREX 2015 2014
Retailing and trading
(Continued)
ZERES (&)
Baoshi (Beijing) Company People’s Republic of China/ Retailing, tradingand ~ HK$32,000,000 100 100
Limited Mainland China (foreign- related optical 832,000,000 7C
EDCE A (L) BEAMA R invested commercial services
enterprise) MeiEm%E - 5o
W/ TR KT (S B Uil ke
ES(e)
Baoging (Chongging) Trading  People’s Republic of China/ Watch retailing, trading  HK$20,300,000 100 100
Limited Mainland China (foreign- and related services  ## 20,300,000 7C
T (EE) MEARAR invested commercial HEsREE  BH R
enterprise) HRB RS
thid] /e K e (SRR T
ES(e)
Shibao (Chongqing) Trading  People’s Republic of China/ Retailing, tradingand ~ HK$18,000,000 100 100
Limited Mainland China (foreign- related optical 718,000,000 7T
P (B WA RAH invested commercial services
enterprise) REEMTE - B
R K (ST TR BB
ES(e)
a Directly held subsidiary a BHARGEA 1M A
b Non-redeemable preference shares b AT i Il 4 S i
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to improve transparency and
protect the interests of shareholders in general. The Board
of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is committed to
making sure that effective self-regulatory practices exist to
protect the interests of its shareholders. These include a
Board comprising experienced and high calibre members,
board committees, and effective and sound systems of
internal controls.

This Corporate Governance Report (“Report”) describes the
Company’s corporate governance practices with specific
reference to the Corporate Governance Code contained
in Appendix 14 (the “Corporate Governance Code”) of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
During the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the

EEERFERTA

A AR B B0 A R KSR SRR - AR
AE R B 785 B JBE A o A e R SRR i o
AR ERG(EFE)) BOOHEREHA
RO B RS E R DADR B R R A 4
WP RSO B R AE R A AR
T EFEZAGURERAMEENN
AR R AT

AAEE RS CHRE D Bl AN TN
WEEBFH > E PR 2 BE BT A
ST AT RN Wl RE 5 LA A (T BTk D)
B Bk 14 BT A 258 A S U (T 2248 3R <F
D) #FE 201543 431 H (I BUERE > A&
Iy F B SE A A SF RIS > A
Jit st A e =5 3B B Bk A o A sy I 2 BRI A

Company complied with the provisions of the Corporate TEARH S N IRA FEAE o
Governance Code except for certain deviations. These

deviations with considered reasons are set out in this Report.

DIRECTORS” AND EMPLOYEES’ SECURITIES EERESETESRS

TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies contained in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions.

The Company has also made specific enquiry of all its
directors to ascertain whether they have complied with
or whether there has been any non-compliance with the
required standard set out in the Model Code.

In addition, the Board has established written guidelines
on no less exacting terms than the Model Code for relevant
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) in respect of these employees’ dealings in the
securities of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Group by directing and supervising its
affairs. Every director is expected to discharge his or her
duties in good faith and up to the standard of prevailing
applicable laws and regulations, acting in the best interests
of the Group and the Company’s shareholders.

The Board embraces diversity with a policy of inclusiveness
based on meritocracy, irrespective of gender, ethnicity,
culture or generation. Appointments to the Board are based
on merit having regard to an appropriate balance of skills,
experience, independence and knowledge. As at 1 July
2015, the Board consists of eight members. Among them,
two are executive directors and six are non-executive
directors. Three out of the six non-executive directors
are independent and two of the non-executive directors
(including one independent non-executive director) are
female. The ages of our directors range from 37 to 65 years.
Several of the eight either are originally not native to Hong
Kong or reside outside of Hong Kong.

Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui resigned as an executive director of
the Company on 1 July 2015 due to retirement.

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
(“CEQ”) should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Under the current organisation
structure of the Group, Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong is both
Chairman and CEO of the Group. The Board is of the
opinion that vesting the roles of both Chairman and CEO in
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong has the benefit of ensuring consistent
leadership within the Group thus enabling more effective
and efficient strategic planning for the Group. The Board
also believes that the balance of power and authority is not
compromised and is adequately ensured by the composition
of the existing Board.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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The non-executive and independent non-executive directors
are highly experienced individuals with a broad range
of expertise and experience including in areas such as
accounting, finance, academia and healthcare consulting.
Together, they ensure that the Board maintains high standards
of financial and other mandatory reporting; providing
adequate checks and balances to safeguard the interests of
shareholders in general and the Group as a whole.

To assist the directors to discharge their duties, there are
established written procedures to enable the directors, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

The term of office of the Company’s non-executive directors,
including the independent non-executive directors, is 3
years, subject to retirement by rotation (pursuant to Bye-law
110(A) of the Company’s Bye-laws), whichever is the earlier.

Under Code Provision A.4.2, every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Not all
directors of the Company retire strictly under Code Provision
A.4.2. The Company’s Bye-Laws 110(A) stipulates that,
one-third of the directors of the Company who have been
longest serving in office since their last election, except the
Chairman or CEO, shall retire from office by rotation at each
annual general meeting (“AGM”).

Both the Board and management have clearly defined
responsibilities under various internal controls and check and
balance mechanisms. The Board is ultimately responsible
for establishing the overall strategic direction of the Group,
setting objectives and business development plans, monitoring
the performance of senior management and assuming
responsibility for corporate governance. Management is
responsible for implementing strategies and plans, and
regularly reports to the Strategy Committee and the Board
on the Group's performance and operations. Directors have
access to management for enquiries, explanations, briefings or
informal discussions on the Group’s operations.
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The Board held a total of five board meetings and passed
circular resolutions during the financial year. At the board
meetings, different issues and matters were discussed and
reviewed including, approval of the Group’s FY13/14 final
results and the FY14/15 interim results; reviewing financial
and operating performances of the Group; approval of new
and/or renewals of borrowing facilities; approval of new
and/or renewals of continuing connected transactions;
and conducting an annual review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal controls of the Company and
its subsidiaries for the purposes of Code Provision C.2.1
and C.2.2. The executive director and Group CFO; and
the Company Secretary attended all Board meetings to
report on matters such as corporate governance, statutory
compliance, accounting and finance. Details of the
directors’ attendance at the Board meetings during the
financial year are set out below. All businesses transacted
at the Board meetings are well-documented and the records
are maintained in accordance with applicable laws and

HRENAMBEFELRETERESS S
AR 2 B RERR o EEIRES
ek LR AR Z TR S
A AR B ] 12/13 BA AR B AR 2645 I 13/14
VP BCAT B P A S AT AR AR T A
R B MR R AR
W ISR AR B A G 5 S A RS
HIMGSCER C2 1R B C.2.216 » BIARN W) L H:
WA g 2 ) ) IR0 8 S 42 o B ) B A T AT B
Muwt o AT HCEE S S A R MRS A K&
NEIEMAE N A EE TR ih
FEEWG - BEER - G LB R AE
HRER o AR AT » & 3 B B
Tz HEEERIIWNT o REERET R
B 2 A& TER B Y SR AN RO Bk - I % 3
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regulations.

Total no. of No. of Directors
Date of Directors present
board meeting EEgeRETAY ESBA" HEESEAY
9 April 2014 201444 A9 H 9 8
26 June 2014 201446 26 H 9 8
27 November 2014 20144E11 H 27 H 9 8
19 January 2015 201541 H19H 9 7
20 March 2015 201543 420 H 9 8
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No. of board meetings
attended/held in FY14/15

Director R4 BREE
= HE BHZESSERHE
Executive Directors TRES
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong (Chairman and WA (T MATEUAERR)

Chief Executive Officer) 5/5
Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui (Chief Operating Officer) BITEMSEAE (I E s A )

(retired as a director of the Company (A 201547 J1 1 HABIK)

on 1 July 2015) 5/5
Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin (Chief Financial Officer) BARR BRSE A (o i RS M) 5/5
Non-executive Directors FITHES
Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas wANLEA 0/5
Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng e 5/5
Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang BT A 5/5
Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang (independent) WIBA S () 5/5
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man (independent) WS SCBUR () 5/5
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang (independent) WE 2 AT 1 L (Hr) 4/5
During the financial year, the Company held its AGM on 8 A BFBUAERE - AN AR 20144E8 H 8 H &
August 2014. No other general meetings were held during AT ISR A R o A AR S IS4 3O i S A T
the financial year. Details of the directors’ attendance at the HA AR & - HF M RREFEREG 2
AGM are set out below: MRS
8 August 2014 201458 A 8H
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong BRI e
Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui BITEM A
Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin B B E
Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang WP
Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang B A e
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man B SCHER
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang I 3 A 1k 1
The Board is supplied with relevant information by REREMHEETa®RB M FHAR
management pertaining to matters to be brought before the GhEFGRMEGIEEERGREFH
Board for decision as well as reports relating to operational A B B R DL B AT B A 4R [ R R
and financial performance of the Group before each regular WZHE - REMEFETERBETED 14
board meeting. At least 14 day’s notice of a regular board K2 ERE s REFARE
meeting is given to all directors giving them the opportunity W o RGN EREITE L3
to attend. Board papers are despatched to directors generally RHTIREE T8 > 6 08 5 0 o] EAE D) E ]
at least 3 days before the meeting and in any event as soon IO TR A B 2P > DiEfREF
as practicable, in all instances, ensuring that they have AR ) T ] 8 3] e S A R 2 R A AR
sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately FEHE o

prepared for the meeting.
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The proceedings of the Board at its meetings are generally
conducted by the Chairman of the Company who ensures that
sufficient time is allocated for discussion and consideration
of each item on the agenda and also equal opportunities are
given to directors to speak, express their views and share their
concerns. The Chairman held one meeting on 25 June 2015
with the non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) without the executive directors present.

Under Code Provision A.6.5, all directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The directors are
encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development. All directors received on average 3 hours
of training during the financial year through reading
various materials like “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information”.

Other reading materials or professional development
seminars attended by directors during the financial year:-

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong attended a seminar on the topic of
“Strategic Thinking & Change: Case Analysis” and received
in total around 6 hours of training during the financial year.

Ms. Ma Xuezheng received in total around 7 hours of
training during the financial year. Ms. Ma participated in the
following:—

(i)  New Companies Ordinance — Key Changes Affecting

Directors;

(i) Legal Update — Connected Transaction Rules (reading
materials);

(iii) Legal Update — Directors’ Duties (reading materials);

(iv) Legal Update — Update on HKEx Consultation
Conclusion on Risk Management and Internal
Control.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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Mr. Nelson Wu Chi Man received in total around 23 hours

of training during the financial year. Mr. Wu participated in
the following:-

(i)

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Annual Taxation Update 2014;

Mainland Tax Conference 2014;

Webinar on Navigating Challenges of Tax Audits in
Hong Kong;

I % B 5 A 5 15 9% 5 SRS L BT A R AR WA
(International Financial Reporting No. 15: Generating
revenue from contract with customers);

Annual Accounting Update 2013;

Annual Auditing Update 2013 “Challenges in the
auditing profession”;

Director duties under the new Companies Ordinance;

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance: Business
Review;

IR A 51 2R T AR T BBUAF BE TR 32 40 23 /Ny
WA P LR 2 —

(ii)

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Annual Taxation Update 2014 [ 4
BLBS #2014

Mainland Tax Conference 2014 [ (A3t
BiB &k 2014 5

Webinar on Navigating Challenges of
Tax Audits in Hong Kong[ A BiT; 2%
it PRECE TR ]

B P B S 5 15 98 5 BLRFE 2 [HTRY
AR EERA

Annual Accounting Update 2013 [ 4
FEEEIER 20130

Annual Auditing Update 2013
“Challenges in the auditing
profession” [ 4 7t B4 2013 - #Fiit
G4 dH

Director duties under the new
Companies Ordinance [ #2 Al&EH T
HHMN T

New Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance : Business Review [ /2 7

et - s m R | 5
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Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang attended a seminar on the topic of P 53 A 18 TR AR BB AT BE I S2 40 6 /NRE Y
“Finance for Directors” and received in total around 6 hours Rl E0FE R “Finance for Directors” [ # 2
of training during the financial year. ZEs | Wt o
4.  BOARD DIVERSITY 4. EZ8HEZ L
(1)  Policy on Board Diversity 1) EEEREZTEEFE
a.  We embrace diversity by being inclusive. a.  EREIRILE B2l
g -

b.  We believe in meritocracy irrespective of b. AL AMEA - Awm A
gender, ethnicity, culture, generation or filifk ~ fb ~ AR AL E bR o
geography.

c.  AREEAE > — 0 EE &I

c.  We believe that an optimal and balanced 1Y 3 = 6 B E R R BERE - A
board should comprise of individuals with BRATET 5 85 Az
an appropriate balance of different skills, [H] 788 JE P ) AN AL -

educational and industry background,
experience, independence and knowledge.

(2)  Objective and Benefits of Board Diversity 2 EEERESTIHNEERER

To remain competitive in a globalised world, board BEEERA A RS ERF S &
diversity is at the forefront of the Group’s agenda. We HERAZ LB AEET S 2 HE
believe in diversity and inclusiveness as these bring 3o REFMEZ T MR E >
to the boardroom a spectrum of perspectives and DRl o 0 o g B 4L o 4 T ) BB L
opinions, necessary as we navigate our businesses % o BARAREIE H B Y T35 BH R
through a more complex market place and as our SE5 LU R R AR % P R R EL
customers’ aspirations grow in sophistication. EREZ B 2 B L o

1 47 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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5. COMPANY SECRETARY 5. ATAWE
The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company AAFHARRZELANFTNEES > BRAE
and has day to day knowledge of the Group’s affairs. She AL B HEFH o A R R R AT
reports to the Chairman and CEO. The Board has access to BUAR I o S m RS 1) g iR AR
the advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure SR DATE (RO <7 38 F & 27 ST A 8
that board procedures and all applicable laws, rules and LR U R

regulations, are followed.

The Company Secretary attended the following professional 7 R LA AR B IECAT R DA R B
development seminars receiving around 19 hours of training JEMFETE > B4 19/ NRE 15
during the financial year:-

(i)  ESG Reporting and Corporate Sustainability (i)  ESG Reporting and Corporate
Sustainability [B5E » 4 & LBV
A SR )
(i) Employment Law Review of 2014 (i)  Employment Law Review of 2014
(2014 #3E1% ol g |
(ili) Directors’ and Officers’ Series Session Three : The Life (ili) Directors’ and Officers’ Series Session
Cycle of D&O Claims and Regulatory Investigations Three : The Life Cycle of D&O Claims

and Regulatory Investigations [ Z 5 &
FARE BN BRI = RS
ACE PN B 2 AR B R A 0 AR i

)
(iv)  The connected world — The implications of using data (iv The connected world-The
everywhere and in everything implications of using data everywhere
and in everything [ 7 — i F %
e
(v)  Consequential loss clauses — are they any use? (v)  Consequential loss clauses-are they
any use? [ BB IMR — A B ]
Vg ? |
(vi) Recent Intellectual Property developments in (vii Recent Intellectual Property
Singapore and their implications on your business. developments in Singapore and their

implications on your business [ #f il
R R PR AN SE B Y o
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the
preparation of the Group’s accounts and has delegated
this responsibility to the Group CFO. The Group CFO
and his team are responsible for preparing interim and
annual financial statements based on generally accepted
accounting principles in Hong Kong ensuring that the
financial statements present a fair and true view of the
results and the financial position of the Group and that
they comply with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations. The Group CFO maintains
regular communications with the external auditors. He also
plays a role in reviewing and making recommendations to
the Board on the Group’s financial risk management. During
the fiscal year, the Group CFO was also responsible for
overseeing the Group's investor relations activities.

A statement by the Group’s external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers about their reporting
responsibilities on the Group’s financial statements are set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 38.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company and its subsidiaries ability to continue as a
going concern.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers as
the external auditor of the Company and certain of its
subsidiaries at the respective 2014 annual general meetings
until the conclusion of the next annual general meetings.
During the year, HK$4,824,000 was paid or payable to
PricewaterhouseCoopers for the provision of audit services.
Details of nature for non-audit related services provided by
and the fee paid or payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers are
set out as below:

BB ET &

AN E T 201 4 4F SR AT R e 2 AT B S
SRl WL T NN D 2 e
IS E)Z AN O o AT AR i R
FEREEER B IE o R > A R 5 =R
JK HE & il 2 5 T 4R 4t 2 A IR S 1) S
e EATHE 5 4,824,000 JC © 2B EERKIE &
= T Bk 2 I A% SO B RS R
I ST sk R B 2 R AR

Description HK$
&N BT
Taxation compliance BB R 877,000
Advisory and other services JREL [ o HLAth AR 5 1,966,000

The Group also engaged other auditors in Hong Kong and
overseas for auditing and miscellaneous services and total
fees paid amounted to HK$1,172,000.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in the discharge of its duties, the Board
is supported by five board committees. Each committee has
its defined scope of duties and terms of reference and the
committee members are empowered to make decisions on
matters within the terms of reference of each committee.

(1) Strategy Committee

The Strategy Committee comprises of three executive
directors, namely, Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong (Chairman
of the Strategy Committee, Group Chairman and
CEO), Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui (Group Chief
Operating Officer, retirement effective from 1 July
2015) and Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin and two non-
executive directors, namely, Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng
and Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang. The Strategy Committee
meets regularly and its terms of reference includes
providing recommendations to the Board on changes

A A B S A s % T A1 22 T A A% A 2
PR AN TR W5 - B S A 2 ) 35
1,172,000 G ©

EszE"®

Py BhE e B AT  EEE G LI TR
AHMEFRZAG - K% BEAMENK
TR - 2 B e R B R AT A
2z B T A A 1 S L e RO

(1 XBZEEE

A 2012412 A17 H » AA RS IR
W& B e i = TEE S AL
AR B 20~ AREE L &
PR ~ BIEER el (R E
S 201547 A1 HIBR) K

B DA R W 4 AT ECE R R
HE At et AR AR AR - R B
7 SR AT e S LR i L 4
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to the Group’s organisational structure; formulation il 7T EBRBUEE » KOs B AL
of key performance indicators for the Group’s VI 48 e S 1% % i 5 S 1 SR
businesses, annual budgets; and to advise the Board FEHNEFEFERHER -

on strategic matters as thought fit and necessary for the
expansion and future development of the Group.

The Committee met nine times during the financial % B g R A B BUAE BE A B A R A
year and up to the date of this Report. HE 87 Lk Ek -
Attendance of directors at the Strategy Committee HEHR T HHRITH RN Z RS
Meetings held on: AR RO -
25 April 2014 201444 425 H
10 June 2014 20144F6 H10H
25 July 2014 201447 H 25 H
23 September 2014 201449 23 H
11 November 2014 20144F 11T H 11 H
16 December 2014 201441216 H
10 February 2015 201542 H10H
23 April 2015 201544 423 H
23 June 2015 201546 123 H
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong A e
Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui BIEM e
Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng S
Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang A
Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin B B e
1 51 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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2)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of three independent
non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Nelson Wu
Chun Sang (Chairman of the Audit Committee),
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man and Dr. Agnes
Kwong Yi Hang and two non-executive directors,
namely, Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng and Mr. Alex Wong
Yu Tsang.

The terms of reference of the Committee are aligned
with the recommendations set out in the Listing Rules
and the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code. The Committee provides advice
and recommendations to the Board and oversees all
matters relating to the external auditors, thus playing
an important role in monitoring and safeguarding the
independence of the external auditors.

The Committee met four times during the financial
year and up to the date of this Report together with
the external auditors in three meetings to discuss
matters, including, the Group’s audit service plan,
the review of accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and other financial reporting
matters; to ensure the completeness, accuracy and
fairness of the financial statements of the Company;
to discuss the effectiveness of the systems of internal
control throughout the Group including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function, and their training programmes and budget;
to review all significant business affairs managed by
the executive directors in particular on continuing
connected transactions and to review the Group’s
results for FY13/14 and FY14/15 and interim results for
FY14/15 before they were presented to the Board for
approval.

(2)

EREEE
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Attendance of directors at the Audit Committee HHPR N A SRITNE R R T
Meetings held on: R L
9 April 2014 201454 A9H
Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang AR
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man B R SR
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang P ERILSR
Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang A
23 June 2014 20146 A 23R
24 November 2014 201411 A24H
20 March 2015 2015 3H20R
23 June 2015 20156 H23H
Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang AR SR
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man AR SR
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang L S
Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng B
Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang WA
Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng appointed Mr. Alex Wong S ERAE L LR RE TR 20144E4 H 9 H
Yu Tsang as alternate director to act on her behalf in Rz ZAGGH  ZEETHEE
her absence at the Committee meeting held on 9 April MRATES  RHE -
2014.

(3) Remuneration Committee 3) FMZEEE
The Company’s Remuneration Committee comprises AN w0 F N 2 B & b A SCER
of Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man (Chairman of (HiNZ B & 30 ~ 8HFExRE -
the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Nelson Wu Chun AT (¥ 2 AR w8 S IR AT IBEE
Sang, Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang (all independent H) ~ BB+ (EATEES) Kk
non-executive directors of the Company, Ms. Mary ARG S A (A 4R [ T AT LA 71
Ma Xuezheng (non-executive director) and Mr. Joseph B e

C. C. Wong (Group Chairman and CEO).
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Code Provision B.1.2 deals with the terms of reference
of the remuneration committee. The Company has
adopted the terms of reference under Code Provision
B.1.2 except that the terms of reference do not
include reviewing and determining the remuneration
packages of senior management. The Company
believes that the remuneration packages of senior
management should be the responsibility of the
executive directors as they are in a better position to
appraise the performance of senior management. The
Remuneration Committee determines with delegated
responsibility the remuneration packages of its
individual executive directors. The basic salaries of its
executive directors are reviewed annually, and unless
there are exceptional circumstances, increases if any,
generally align with the average annual increment for
the Group’s office staff in Hong Kong.

The Committee met once during the financial year
and up to the date of this Report. At this meeting, the
Committee conducted annual reviews of the basic
salaries of its executive directors and determined the
annual bonus scheme for FY14/15 for its executive
directors.

Attendance of directors at the Remuneration
Committee Meeting held on:

23 June 2014

YRR SCER B.1 .2 f A A BRI & B
B BREREE o A4 F) O PR AR ST IR
SCER B2 M6k P SR B SR o A
LA A B AR T % E e AR BN B
PR IR R 2y o AN Rl AR A AT B
WO & R R AR BN B R BL
I > 78 e AR N LI T R
MATEGE R B - & B g iRR
Py EATECE AR AR o AT EL
B RAT T E T ER > bR
ARG DL > e (A7) — s A
AR I A O S T 2 S A R
HA]

A PR B AR FE R B A > &
Begsir—wadk - Nzgdkl
Z B e HATHGE 2 BRI
AL M AT B S 14/15 1
HUE AR BEAE AL R &

EHR T AMRTHENERGS
Ak L

2014%F 6 A23 H

Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man B R SRR
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong wAI e
Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang AR SR
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang R S
Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng SEAE Lt

B () A RA A
2015 4F4FH)
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(4) Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee comprises of Mr. Joseph
C. C. Wong (Chairman of the Nomination Committee,
Group Chairman and CEO), three independent non-
executive directors, namely, Mr. Nelson Wu Chun
Sang, Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man, Dr. Agnes
Kwong Yi Hang and a non-executive director, Mr.
Alex Wong Yu Tsang.
Code Provision A.5.3 deals with the terms of reference
of a nomination committee. The Company has
adopted the terms of reference under Code Provision
A.5.3. During the financial year, and up to the date
of this Report, the Committee met two times. At these
meetings, the Committee reviewed the structure, size
and composition of the Board and considered the
independence of Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang; having
served 9 years by the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting. The Committee nominated Dr. Agnes
Kwong Yi Hang for re-election as an independent
non-executive director at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting. In the nomination process, the
Committee proposes the most appropriate individual
with the right balance of skills, experience, and
industry background for the position based on merit
irrespective of gender, ethnicity, culture, generation or
geography.
Attendance of directors at the Nomination Committee
Meetings held on:
9 April 2014
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man
Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang
Dr. Kwong Yi Hang, Agnes
Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang
23 June 2015
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man
Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang
Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang
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(5)

Corporate Governance Committee

Stelux recognises that adopting proper systems, running
our businesses within a strong legal framework of rules
and procedures, underpinned by sound business ethics
are essential to safeguarding the economic performance
of the Group and our shareholders’ interests in a
sustainable manner. The Corporate Governance
Committee comprises of Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui
(Chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee
and Group Chief Operating Officer, resignation as
Chairman of the Committee effective on 1 July 2015)
and Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin (Chief Financial Officer,
appointment as Chairman of the Committee effective
from 1 July 2015), three independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang, Professor
Lawrence Wu Chi Man, Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang and
two non-executive directors, namely, Ms. Mary Ma
Xuezheng and Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang.

Code Provision D.3.1 deals with the terms of
reference of a corporate governance committee. The
Company has adopted the terms of reference under
Code Provision D.3.1. The Corporate Governance
Committee held one meeting during the financial
year. At this meeting, the Committee amongst other
things, reviewed the Company’s compliance with
the Code Provisions and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report. Quarterly sales turnover
updates are voluntarily issued by the Company
and a whistleblowing policy is in place. With the
implementation of the statutory disclosure regime for
inside information under the Securities and Futures
(Amendment) Ordinance 2012 on 1 January 2013,
systems are in place on reporting and dissemination of
inside information.

(5)

LR AU RIF M REE AR > R
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Attendance of directors at the Corporate Governance
Committee Meeting held on:

9 April 2014 and 20 March 2015
Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui

Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng

Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang

The above board committees report to the Board on
a regular basis. All businesses transacted at the board
committee meetings are recorded and minuted. The terms
of reference of four of the above board committees are
available on the Company’s website at www.stelux.com.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The internal controls and accounting systems of the Group
are designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets
are safeguarded against unauthorised use or disposition,
transactions are executed in accordance with management’s
authorisation and the accounting records are reliable for
preparing financial information used within the business or
for publication and reflecting accountability for assets and
liabilities.

The key responsibilities of the Group’s Compliance and
Internal Controls Department, include:

e to review cost control and performance efficiency of
all business units;

o to identify areas for improvement in the Group’s
system of internal controls and to propose necessary

recommendations to the Board; and

J to carry out internal audit work at business units.
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Under Code Provision C.2.1, the directors should at least
annually conduct a review of the effectiveness of the
Group's internal controls system reporting to the Company’s
shareholders in the Corporate Governance Report. The
review should cover all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions.

Under Code Provision C.2.2, the Board’s annual review
should, in particular, consider the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal controls and accounting systems of
the Company and its subsidiaries and a board meeting was
held on 20 March 2015 for such a review for the period
from 9 April 2014 up to and including 20 March 2015. The
Board reported that there were no changes in the nature
and extent of significant risks and there were no material
changes in the control environment during the period under
review. According to the opinion of the Board, the Company
and its subsidiaries have established sound internal control
systems so that our shareholders’ investment and the
Company’s assets are safeguarded. Moreover, in the opinion
of the Board, the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function was adequately resourced with staff
holding appropriate qualifications and experience and with
sufficient training and budget provided by the Company.

The effectiveness of the system of internal controls and the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function and their training programmes and budget will be
reviewed annually.
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10. INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group values frequent dialogue with existing and
prospective investors, and press meetings, roadshows, and
meetings with the investment community are held regularly.
We will continue to promote and enhance investor relations
so as to increase understanding of the Group’s business
models and the way we conduct our businesses.

11. SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS

(1) How shareholders can convene an extraordinary
general meeting

Shareholders may request to convene an extraordinary
general meeting in accordance with section 74 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981:

i. The directors of a company, notwithstanding
anything in its bye-laws shall, on the requisition
of members of the company holding at the
date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of such of the paid-up capital
of the company as at the date of the deposit
carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the company, or, in the case of a company
not having a share capital, members of the
company representing not less than one-tenth
of the total voting rights of all the members
having at the said date a right to vote at general
meetings of the company, forthwith proceed
duly to convene a special general meeting of the
company.

ii.  The requisition must state the purposes of
the meeting, and must be signed by the
requisitionists and deposited at the registered
office of the company, and may consist of
several documents in like form each signed by
one or more requisitionists.
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2)

iii.

If the directors do not within twenty-one days
from the date of the deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a meeting, but
any meeting so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the said
date.

requisitionists by reason of the failure of the
directors duly to convene a meeting shall be
repaid to the requisitionists by the company,
and any sum so repaid shall be retained by the
company out of any sums due or to become
due from the company by way of fees or other
remuneration in respect of their services to such
directors as were in default.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the

(2)

s # A kE 2Rk 21 Rins
ARAWKE s ZE2WHA - K
REZREBEF A —FHH
BERER AR 2R AT L
EEFEEN PN R EREXOPN =
NHEAE B an H O =8 A &
B o

iv. A meeting convened under this section by the iv.  TERLORGEIT HR2 5 25N A B
requisitionists shall be convened in the same 149 R 78 2 n] g By o 5 B
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which KRERTEX %k
meetings are to be convened by directors.

v.  Any reasonable expenses incurred by the v.  WHEERREEA KRG > AR

Hazs 2 A&
o hAAMEZHA - B
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board and sufficient contact details to enable these
enquiries to be properly directed

Je s AT DA 5 2 e 4 B e
HE R - B HhE A

Shareholders may send their enquiries to the Board by
addressing them to the Company Secretary in writing
to:

(i) the Company’s head office, 27/F, Stelux House, 698
Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong; or (i) by email to shareholdersenquiries@stelux.com.

(i) v JURE BT il KT R 698 SR BTG
PZE L 27 AN R AR R 5 5(i)
I % shareholdersenquiries@stelux.
com °
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12.

(3) Procedures and sufficient contact details for putting
forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders may, subject to (1) above, by way of
request in writing request a shareholders’ meeting
to be convened for the purpose of considering a
certain matter, addressing the request to the Company
Secretary at:

the Company’s head office, 27/F, Stelux House,
698 Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company attaches great importance to communication
with its shareholders and investors. To foster effective
communications, the Company provides extensive information
in its annual report, interim report and also publishes
information relating to the Group and its businesses on its
website: www.stelux.com.

The Company regards the AGM as a platform to provide an
important opportunity for direct communications between
the Board and the Company’s shareholders. All directors
and senior management will make an effort to attend.
External auditors will also attend the AGM. The chairman
of the Audit, Remuneration, Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committees were all present at the Company’s
AGM held in 2014. Shareholders are given at least 20 clear
business days or 21 days’ notice of the AGM (whichever
is the longer) and are encouraged to attend the AGM and
other shareholders’ meetings. The Company supports
the Corporate Governance Code principle to encourage
shareholders’ participation.

Shareholders may send any enquiries they have by
addressing them to the Company Secretary in writing to:

(i) the Company’s head office, 27/F, Stelux House, 698
Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong; (ii) or by email to shareholdersenquiries@stelux.com.
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13.

14.

CODE OF CONDUCT

To enhance the ethical standards of employees, the
Company has an employee handbook, setting out the
Group's requisite standards and an ethical code of conduct
for all employees of the Group. Employees at all levels are
expected to conduct themselves in an honest, diligent and
responsible manner.

CONCLUSION

The Company recognises that adopting good corporate
governance principles and practices are important for
the success of the Group and as such we will continue to
strengthen and improve the standard and quality of the
Group’s corporate governance.

14.
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R - EREARE ((BE HEREBHRE)D

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
(“ESG REPORT”)

Scope of reporting

The Group's vision is to “Beautify and enrich lives through our
products and services”. In setting out to achieve this, there are
certain core principles which underpin the way we work and
engage with others.

. We look to deliver sustainable results to our shareholders

o We engage our business partners and treat our employees in
a responsible, fair and honest manner

. We contribute and serve in the communities where we
operate our businesses

In a nutshell, we care about how we conduct our businesses and
the way we interact with others.

The Group has chosen to report on ESG issues for FY14/15 on a
voluntary but limited basis adopting Appendix 27 of the Listing
Rules as a standard. This ESG Report only focuses on certain
aspects of the Group’s watch and optical retail operations in Hong
Kong for FY14/15. This segment has been selected as Hong Kong
remains a major contributor to the Group.

The Board of directors (the “Board”) is ultimately responsible for
ESG reporting but the preparation of this ESG Report has been
delegated to the Company Secretary and her team.

The Board is of the opinion that two ESG subject areas, Operating
Practices and Community Involvement are relevant to the Group’s
businesses. Within these two subject areas, some aspects and KPIs
will be more important than others. We will only be reporting on
those aspects which we consider to be relevant and material to the
Group's objectives.
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WORKPLACE QUALITY
Aspect A1 Working Conditions

Policies on compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity and other benefits and welfare

The Group has established employment policies and
guidelines that are compliant with the Hong Kong
Employment laws.

These policies and guidelines are:-
Recruitment and Promotion

1. We are an equal opportunities employer. We promote
and adopt a policy of equal opportunities to eliminate
any discrimination in sex, family status and disability
in employment and the workplace. City Chain Hong
Kong, for example, employs persons with disabilities
as watch repairers.

2. We hire and promote based on merit.

3. We hire and promote those who share our values
and work ethics; those who demonstrate initiative,
responsibility and integrity.

Compensation

1. Remuneration and benefits are benchmarked against
prevailing local industry norms and commensurate

with experience and qualifications.

2. Dependent on staff category, KPIs are adopted as part
of staff packages to incentivise.

Dismissal

This is based on the Hong Kong Employment laws.
Working hours, rest periods, and other benefits and welfare
Working hours, rest periods, and other benefits and welfare
are in line with local industry practice and/or where

applicable commensurate with experience, qualification
and seniority.
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During FY14/15, there was no material non-compliance
with applicable legislation and/or regulations.

14/15 BABUAF > 3 4 7 75 42 38 I )
R,/ BB

KPI'A1.1 For the purposes of disclosure under KPI A1.1 and
KPI A1.2, the Group has divided its Hong Kong workforce
into 3 age groups; ages 33 or below, 34-49 and 50 or above.
Workforce refers to both office and store employees. The
average ages of our workforce by employment type in Hong
Kong during the FY14/15 is shown below:
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KPI'A1.2 The employee turnover rate by age group for our
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workforce in Hong Kong is shown below:
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Aspect A2 Health and Safety
Policies on Health and Safety

One of our foremost priorities is to provide employees with
a safe and conducive working environment.

1. Office employees are assigned individual work
stations unless due to the nature of work, this is
considered unnecessary.

2. Offices and stores are properly lit and ventilated,
kept clean and tidy with ample space between work
stations (applicable to offices only).

3. Offices and stores are smoke-free.

4. Office furniture and fittings are well maintained and
replaced where necessary.

5. Security measures are in place at our offices to restrict
entry and exit only to staff and permitted visitors.

6.  We follow the Government’s work guidelines on
typhoon and rainstorm warnings.

7. Free yearly influenza vaccinations are offered to staff
(and to their families at discounted rates).

8. Managerial staff and above are offered free basic body
check-ups every two years.

KPI A2.1 In FY14/15 there were no work-related fatalities.

KPI A2.2 There were 205 lost days (2014: 254 lost days) due
to 12 incidents (2014: 11 incidents) of work related injuries
involving 10 employees (2014: 9 employees).

KPI' A2.3 “Occupational Safety and Health” seminars are
provided to relevant employees according to the nature of
their work.
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Leaflets, videos and guidelines are made available on
the intranet for employees to understand the importance
of occupational safety and health and for department
heads to be made aware of the responsibilities they have
in monitoring the safety and health of employees in their
department.

Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance and regulations
are provided to specific staff, such as stock keepers and
logistic assistants.

Our offices at Stelux House undergo annual air quality
inspections under the IAQ Certification Scheme launched
by the HKSAR Government and have achieved Good Class
certification.
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Aspect A3 Development and Training A3 EE 3R RIE
Policies on Fmployee development and training 1 15 FEE R 15 A

As the owner of retail chains, “CITY CHAIN”, “OPTICAL 88"
and “eGG Optical Boutique”, we differentiate ourselves by
offering professional quality services and a good product
mix of house brands and international brands.

Our customers enjoy and have come to expect a personal
shopping experience when they visit our stores. As there is a
direct correlation between service standards and employee
development and training, we ensure that adequate
emphasis is given to training. Moreover, proper training and
development imparts necessary knowledge and skills upon
staff. This not only allows our staff to stay relevant but also
imbues self-confidence.
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The Group has policies concerning employee development
and training and these are set out below:—

1. Store staff receive both regular and ad hoc training.
2. New store staff undergo orientation.

3. Training is conducted by internal and external
trainers.

4. Training and development is given in relevant areas
like, product knowledge, visual merchandising,
customer servicing, correct sales techniques and new
laws and regulations that may impact on our business
operations.

5. Follow-up evaluation is carried out after training and
development to ensure effectiveness.

KPI' A3.1 In FY 14/15, over 70% of operations staff in all
three retail chains in Hong Kong received training and
development.

KPI A3.2 For those who attended training, each employee
received on average over 34 hours of training and
development.

ARSI O PR AR T B A i B R I e B
oy - —

1. JEEIB TE M RARESZ I o

2. HEHHR TAIRE o

3. HEINd AR R AR I BT o

4. BRSNS G 1) B N R B R > 9 A A

ik~ BRI S MRS - IR R S
Do 3 2E 5 RGBT REAT S BRI KL

5. MG EERARMEAT HOMERTAl AR LR ISAL -

BB SRR PR A3.1 14715 MPBUEE > Bl 2=
118 32 8 2 i A 70% TE I B T8 3% 2 1l % 8k
& o

B BUIIRTR A3.2 75 1 2 BLER 9 (1 7 s AR 271
He sz 34 /NRERE I S EE e

B () A RA A
2015 4F4FH)

168



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (“ESG REPORT”)

R - EREARE ((BE HEREBHRE)D

C. OPERATING PRACTICES
Aspect C1 Supply Chain Management

The Group’s house brands are exclusively available at
our stores and form a strategic component of our business
model.

Policies on supply chain management

1. The Group outsources the manufacturing process of
its house brand products endeavouring to partner
suppliers who share our principles to conduct
business in a fair, honest and responsible manner.

2. Our suppliers are contractually obliged to ensure that
they do not employ bonded or underaged labour.

3. Our suppliers are contractually obliged to supply
products that are free from toxic materials.

4. Our suppliers are encouraged to align their values
with the Group by agreeing to adopt certain Standards
of Engagement which form part of the contracts they
sign. These Standards include the following:—

(i)  No compulsion to work through force or
intimidation of any form.

(i) Employment to be based solely on the ability to
perform the job and without any discrimination
due to ethnicity, gender, age, disability or
marital status.

(iii) Fair wages and all other legally mandated
benefits should be paid.

(iv)  Provision of a safe and hygienic working
environment which complies with local laws or

practices.

(v) Integration of sustainability principles into
business decisions.

(vi)  Community involvement.

1 69 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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KPI C1.1 The majority of our suppliers are Hong
Kong companies or individuals with manufacturing
or assembling functions in Mainland China.
The remaining suppliers have manufacturing or
assembling functions in Europe and other Asian
countries.

KPI C1.2 Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers

(i) Suppliers are engaged based on their ability to
deliver products within Group specifications,
like price, quantity and delivery time.

(i) Suppliers are engaged based on a set of
standardised criteria, like, factory environment,
quality control, employee policies, compliance
with international standards like CE, RoHS and
REACH.

(iii)  Suppliers must adopt the Group’s standard
manufacturing contract.

Contracts are valid for 12 months only and renewals
are not automatic. Supplier appraisals are conducted
annually based on the practices in KPI C1.2.

Aspect C2 Product Responsibility

As a responsible product and service provider, we take all
customer complaints seriously.

1. We target to resolve customer complaints within 3 to
5 working days from the date we are notified or the
product is returned, whichever occurs later.

2. Complaints are addressed and resolved by telephone
or through the internet, wherever possible by our team
of customer service representatives.
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3. Serious complaints are escalated up to the operations
team.

KPI'C2.1 In FY14/15, the percentage of total products sold
or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health reasons is
zero.

KPI C2.2 In FY14/15, complaints received were within
industry norms. All complaints were handled by our
customer services departments through a system which
records the details of the complaint; monitors the handling
and progress of the complaint; the time taken on the
handling of the complaint and records the results of the
resolution. In general our customer service departments
reply within 3 working days of receiving the complaint and
the product (if any).

KPI. C2.2 Policies relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights

The Group’s intellectual property comprises principally of
our brands that are by and large registered in the regions
where we operate our businesses.

Our brands identify the Group and its businesses. As
such our brands are highly material to the success of
our businesses. Therefore, resources are allocated to the
maintenance and protection of our rights to these brands.

1. We value our intellectual property rights and
recognise their paramount importance to our
businesses.

2. We manage and protect the Group's intellectual
property rights through registration, maintenance and
enforcement measures.

3. We respect the intellectual property rights of others

(i) we will not use third party intellectual rights
without authorisation;

(ii)  our ODM suppliers warrant the originality of
their designs and indemnify us in event of a
breach.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

3. ERESGERRI i PR

RS SR EC2.1 1415 ABUF TS > BB
226 7 it A e R 22 4 Bt e S8l 17 [
W E A R

BASESTBGR R C2.2 141 S AR IE - ASE
BRI SRR - ISRk &
5O B HE > R BB AR - BLEC
P55 i B PO~ B R T IRE [ 3
UK PR AE R o — M E o B IR Ik
TERR S ity (W) 48 =R TAF H N B

BHEEARUIRIE C2.2 A Bl B 58 T AR i Ml e
RERBUR

A % 9 s R A A A S T i b i
REAM R B 2 A

FRAT B ff WA R AR B ] B HL 265 = DU
FAM A dh B SRS N B B - A
PR T 516 908 70 T 2 A e I O 2 55 it R 1Y
HEA] o

1. RIS - o
ST A SR -

20 FRAMIEMEGEM ~ AT e o i 1 it A B
T AR A B [ B R P E o

3. TR M A

(i) FMAGRQRESAE =T
I EERE

(i) FATH O DM L HE P {4 a8 5l st R
A > g A ZE IR AE B B

i -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (“ESG REPORT”)

RE - EREARARE ((BE  HEREBKRE )

KPI. C2.3 Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights

J The Group’s brand portfolio is managed centrally
from Hong Kong and where necessary external service
providers are instructed.

J Procedures are in place to docket renewals.

. Subscription to a worldwide trademark watching
service alerts us to third party applications that are
similar to the Group’s core brands.

J Keeping a record in Hong Kong of important
copyrightable work created by Group employees or
commissioned external parties.

KPI C2.4 The quality assurance process for house brand
watches, including, component parts is well defined and
structured.

J Evaluation and standardisation of the acceptance of
products (both the structure and functions).

. Monitoring suppliers’ quality inspection process to
check if instructions given are followed.

] Inspection of completed watch in accordance with
relevant industry standards.

As for house brand eyeglasses, the quality assurance process
is similar to that for watches above.

J Evaluation and standardisation of the acceptance of
products.
J Inspections of the complete product in accordance

with relevant industry and brand standards.
Description of recall procedures
] Contact customer who has purchased the product.
J Arrange for returning the product to us.

J Removal of the product in question from shelves (if
displayed) and return them to the relevant supplier.
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KPI C2.5 The Group’s Policy on consumer data protection
explains the meaning of personal data, and the general
principles relating to its collection, use, retention and
disposal. The Group follows the six general principles
relating to data protection as set down by the Hong Kong
Privacy Commission.

The Group's Policy is set out so that employees are aware of
their rights and obligations. Customers are informed through
Privacy Policy Statements.

The Group’s Policies

1. Personal Data should be treated as confidential and
the Group's policies on the “Handling of Confidential
Information” where applicable also applies.

2. Employees have to comply with local data protection
laws, including the six general principles on data
protection.

3. The Group will only collect personal data on a lawful,
fair and open basis.

4. The Group takes the confidentiality and handling
of personal data very seriously and employees who
breach this Policy or the Group’s related guidelines
may face disciplinary action.

Employees who handle personal data, in particular our front
line staff undergo training. Guidelines and workflow systems
are implemented and must be strictly followed. Staff are
evaluated after training to ensure they understand and are
able to implement these guidelines and systems.

Moreover, a certification system where relevant managers
certify that staff under their supervision are compliant with
this Policy is in place.
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Aspect C3 Anti-corruption

Our operations in Hong Kong have established anti-
corruption policies and all employees are expected to
discharge their duties with integrity and to follow relevant
local laws. Our anti-corruption policies are set out in our
Employee Handbook and Operations Manuals.

KPI' C3.1 During the reporting period, there were no legal
cases regarding corrupt practices brought against our
companies or employees (in the course of their employment)
in Hong Kong.

KPI C3.2 Through the work of the ICAC and the existence
of a sound legal system, our Hong Kong staff are aware of
the standards imposed on them by prevailing anti-corruption
laws. This is reinforced by the adoption of clear guidelines
concerning the accepting and giving of advantages.

The Group has implemented a whistle blowing policy which
is disseminated through various means within its businesses
in Hong Kong, including through the Company intranet.

Whistleblowing reporting procedure

1. Employees report verbally or in writing (anonymous
reporting is accepted but not encouraged) to the
Head of Group Compliance and Internal Controls
with full details and supporting evidence of suspected
misconduct or malpractice.

2. The Company conducts an internal investigation.
Where criminality is suspected, a report is made to the
relevant authorities.
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COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Aspect D1. Community Investment

Our Policies

In respect of Community Investment, Stelux’ mission is
to strive to be a part of our communities, to serve and
contribute by promoting corporate social responsibility. Our
motto is to “Connect through Love”, and, through this we

hope to:-

1.  show love, to give hope and to support the
disadvantaged;

2. encourage compassion and empathy in our
employees;

3. foster a sense of community within Stelux; and
4. empower through education.

KPI D1.1 As we engage with our community, Stelux’
principal areas of contribution are:—

1. interaction and integration with the wider community,
like the underprivileged and those with disabilities;
and

2. education.

KPI' D1.2 During the year, we continued to interact with the
local community in many different ways.

In FY14/15, around 7% of our office employees in Hong
Kong were involved in some form of charitable work,
whether during or outside office hours.
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In Hong Kong, Stelux’ charitable volunteer team continued to “Connect Through Love” through various activities with
charities like Hong Fook Church Bradbury Community Health Development Centre, St. Barnabas’ Society and Home,
Evangel Children’s Home, Youth Outreach, Hong Chi Association and Orbis which target low-income families, the elderly
and homeless, orphans and children from broken families, young night drifters, those with intellectual disabilities and sight

saving respectively.

Activities included visitations to low-income families; sponsoring an all-night outreaching team to pick up youngsters
off the streets and a 24 hour youth center for young night drifters; participation in “Hong Chi Climbathon — Hong Chi
Charity Stair Run 2014”; the “2015 Hong Chi Association New Territories Flag Day”; buying office floral displays
arranged by Hong Chi trainees on a weekly basis; and helping to raise donations for “ORBIS World Sight Day 2014”.
Other sponsorships included free tutorial classes for underprivileged students; gift packages of basic groceries, fresh
fruits, vegetables and home appliances for low-income families; and the provision of eyeglasses and eye examinations for
underprivileged children. The total sum contributed to charities was around HK$250,000.

2015%

oD
TMEEESR
SRR

-

004-500-118351-009

T L E R TIRIFE T [Connect Through Love o FRAM B% i & FE4 4 11 3 3 AL
R AL MEEOGY R WERELR  ME2 K ERGRELEEER
B A 1E o DA L2835 M A0 P BOh W BRI R E 5 R MK 5 NG BBRE S RE ) /M
Ko W LAl B AR B L RHE -

FAHLLL 255 M AR R 2 TG ) > QIR BRI A R BE 5 B B VR I WA S M
Toh B 75 45 AN TR B A L R B AR L - BB T ER WA b % MR Rk
20141 ; 762015 ER G A 1w & HETER > RS ER G2 8 UEZIFAELE
TRRE% 5 Belop BT B LI AR 0 2014 | SRR TAE o HAt 8 BhIE H 45 5 2 IR 22 2 it 4
F I RREEIE 5 PRI A REESL B EEA AR & ~ B EE /KSR B E 5 DA S B A G m AR R 55
FERIRTS o 285 16 B BH 3 & 254 HK$250,000 »

Optical 88 Limited

B () A RA A
2015 4F4FH) 176



177

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (“ESG REPORT”)

R - EREARE ((BE HEREBHRE)D

During the year, Thong Sia Hong Kong, the sole
distributor for “SEIKO” watches and clocks sponsored
several sports events, including “Sowers Action
Challenging 12 Hours 2014” by Sowers Action,
“UNICEF Charity Run 2014” by UNICEF, “Sun Life
Stanley International Dragon Boat Championships
2014” by Stanley Dragon Boat Association, “Hong
Kong International Dragon Boat Races 2014” by
Hong Kong China Dragon Boat Association and Hong
Kong Tourism Board, “16th Hong Kong Dragon Boat
Championships” by Hong Kong China Dragon Boat
Association, “Summer Vigor Mini Dragon Boat Race
2014” by Sai Kung Rural Committee and Hong Kong
Amateur Dragon Boat Association Ltd., “The Salvation

Army Orienteering 2014” by The Salvation Army, “AVS Charity Run Sports Fun Day” by Agency for Volunteer Service,
“Oxfam Trailwalker 2014” by Oxfam Hong Kong, “AYP Rogaine6 2015” by The Hong Kong Award for Young People and

“MSF Orienteering Competition 2015” by Médecins Sans Frontieres.

BEARBLHIEE

MSF Orienteering Competition

Furthermore, Thong Sia Hong Kong supports the
conservation work of WWF-Hong Kong as a Corporate m ‘nh

BT
_BT Outward Bounde® Adventure Race 2014

Member. Thong Sia Hong Kong has also sponsored many
charitable events including “Race for Water 2015” by
A Drop of Life Ltd., “Pink Walk for Breast Health 2014”
by the Hong Kong Breast Cancer Foundation, “Walk For
Nature 2014” by WWF, “2015 JCKSC New Year Pairs
Trophy” by Kowloon Watch Company x Seiko and “Stride

for a Cure 2014” by Hong Kong Cancer Fund.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (“ESG REPORT”)
RE - HERELHRE (RE - £GREBHRE D

City Chain Singapore and Optical 88 Singapore designated 9 September 2014 as “Social Responsibility Day” spending a
day with children from challenging backgrounds and aged between two to thirteen years placed at a local shelter home.
Games were played and gifts were presented. Additionally, free eye screening and prescription frames and lenses were
provided.

Further, as part of “Project We Care”, Optical
88 Singapore also participated in this exemplary
community driven initiative to benefit local low income
residents, providing complimentary eye screening and
knowledge of eye care health.

In conjunction with the Mid-Autumn festival, City
Chain Malaysia and Optical 88 Malaysia visited a local
charity for destitute and homeless women, contributing
groceries and moon cakes and helping to spring clean
the centre.
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AWARDS
#2187

CARING COMPANY
AR REIR

Opscai 88 Limans
EEREEmE an s

- .

In recognition for the Group’s services

and support to the wider local CARINEE —— CARINQ

community, Stelux and its subsidiaries, | —= S || = medllobclebafititn reymsaac 1o

City Chain Hong Kong, Optical 88 Hong | =~ w i = . el

Kong, and Thong Sia Watch, the Hong T | A = i ‘ﬂ;"

Kong distributor for “SEIKO” watches g =ga BT ) L -

and clocks were again respectively _C_ALNQ_ _

awarded Caring Company Awards . T s e
by the Hong Kong Council of Social S jﬂ;‘“’ .
Service. § EEe p‘ L ,.J:;j‘_fﬁ

B M FL A 2 w1 A o e ] RG ~ FisER
$E.88 LA KK TS5 ik 1Y) 7 v A6 4 T A I S
ST U ol S0 A s A i RS W e
Y 7 S R BRI AR -y I T A 4 (o 3

JE KA AR LAY IR B iR S R R ’
{7

Outstanding QTS Merchant Award 2015
2015 BEREREELEERFE

City Chain Hong Kong and “SEIKO” won the “Outstanding QTS Merchant Merit
Award 2015” respectively and C? won the “Outstanding QTS Merchant Bronze
Award 2015” presented by the Hong Kong Tourism Board.

A I TR B o (A T ) 20 1l SR 7 i i o e R M 2015 BB ik
5 A5 PR 7 5 (B S 8% | K% C Square S A ik e 9% 8 SR AR R [ 201 5 BB
A S A4 R 78 SR

Outstanding 0TS Merchast
Werit Auard
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Mystery Shoppers Programme - Outstanding Performance
Achievements (Service Industry Leader)

HHEEE - 2F [ REREETEH 2014

Solvil et Titus was awarded “2014 Service Retailers of the
Year” in the Watch and Jewellery category organised by
Hong Kong Retail Management Association.

A v 2 I 7 7 A 2 A B M SRR [ MR R R R ) o
HERREE [ 24F [ R B 26 70 2014 | — S8k L PR B E AL A |
BEIK -

City Chain Primo was awarded the “Service Category Leader
Award” in the Watch and Jewellery category organised by
Hong Kong Retail Management Association.

A INF ] JR Primo A 7 v 20 65 4 J0 o i S0 [ A e 2wt
) | oo R G kS BRI AR [ AR s SE A | 48 o

Outstanding QTS-Accredited Merchant for 10 Consecutive Year

2015 BERERE10FEFEEFTFET

Optical 88 Hong Kong has been recognised as a Quality Shop by Hong Kong Tourism

Board for 10 consecutive years.

i MR 855 8. 8 1 5 s ik i 5 Ji2 Ry B 201 5 MR R MRS 1 04 R BB e P J 32 k.

ertificate of Achievement

Mystery Shoppers Programme

1H

@ertificate of Achicuement

(asloa fnsty

City Chain Company Limited (Stelux Group)
- Solvil et Titus

(PR TS

Job Market Employer of Choice Award 2014 - City Chain

ST K#E2014

ity Chain Company Limited City Chain Hong Kong won the “Job Market Employer of Choice Awards 2014” presented

A L2

by the Job Market.
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TVB Most Popular TV Commercial Awards 2015
2015 TVB R ZELEREE KK

Solvil et Titus’ television commercial “Penguin” won the “Most Popular
TV Commercial” award in the TVB Most Popular TV Commercial Awards
2015.

AN F R R TEALE S [ 86/ | 7£2015 TVB &2 00 B 5 K88
AR T B 2 O B ) 8% o

Solvil et Titus” television commercials “Penguin” and “That Year” both
won the “Professional Selection Award” in the TVB Most Popular TV
Commercial Awards 2015.

AN E SR B RS [ R | & [IB—45 ] £ 2015 TVB FeZ #id
AL R B vh 54 [ 2ERpaese | o

7th ROI Festival
F+tEERKRE

Our Solvil et Titus commercial video, “Time Tree” and “Penguin” won the Silver Award in the
category of Advertising Agency — Creative Service (Internet Online Video) at the 7th ROI Festival.

AN R B IR A [ IR RIS | B [ 38 | 7E 26 L e e B B rp 580 [ Rl A — A RIREs — |5
AR AH — GREE |

2014 HK4As Kam Fan Awards
2014 SREE K€

Our Solvil et Titus “Penguin” commercial video was awarded the “Film Kam
Fan Award” and “Best & Gold Award — Film/Radio & Audio Craft — Chinese
Copy” at the HK4As Kam Fan Awards 2014.

FAM B0 I R B [ ARG ) R 2014 S WUE 5 88 h 508 5201 — i 8% |
Fe [ T 88— AR R 0 5 T2 — P SCRI R — I R g ]
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Smiling Enterprise 2015
2015 SRR AR A5

Gold Trusted Brand 2014
FERESEE2014

“SEIKO” was named “Gold Trusted Brand” for the watches category in Hong Kong in the
Reader’s Digest Asia’s Trusted Brands 2014 survey. The Reader’s Digest Trusted Brands
Survey has a well-established reputation as the premier consumer based and international
measure of brand preference. Thong Sia Hong Kong has been presented with this award
consecutively for many years.

[RG T )t WA R S ) L A 8 R 201 4 SR 2 o SR8 Vs G R AL T 15 28 o PR < B ) o
F AR B AR E A RAFAME T > Fy B 20N 28 R S PR AR - A T DA 2 A
HELAEIH o

Optical 88 Hong Kong was awarded the “Smiling Enterprise Awards 2015”
organised by Mystery Shopping Provider Association (MSPA).

it AR BE 88 74 5] % 4 4k A7 Bk L 5 MRS W e L8 [ 2015 PR A SRS A8 | iR 2% o

TRUSTEDN
BRAND

N
GoLD

Hong Kong
Awarded to
Seikeo
For the Category b

maicp
0L 18 Cafsdowk

TR (F) ABRA
2015 4F4FH) 182



AWARDS
#2187

2014 YHZK Global Business 1000
2014 2REF 1000

Another award garnered by Thong Sia Hong Kong for the “SEIKO” brand was the “YHZK Global Business
1000” presented by Yazhou Zhoukan, the only Chinese language international affairs newsweekly in the
world.

T [ T i R G R — [ P v SRR 220 T o 20 1)) AR (2014 22 BRFER 1000 ) K AE -

Maze Awards 2014

The “SEIKO” brand of Thong Sia Hong Kong won the Bronze Award in “Maze Awards
2014”. The Maze Awards is a brand new award honoring the most innovative, creative
and stunning campaign staged at bus shelters and on the “Icons of Hong Kong” tramcars.
Maze Awards are open to all advertising professionals from advertisers, media and creative
agencies to vote. Gold, Silver and Bronze trophies are awarded to outstanding campaigns
at the awards presentation.

WA HE RS L | SARAE [Maze Awards 2014 | SERASRME o 55 —4EBLHEAY Maze #ETE > 1T
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Registered Office
Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street
Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda

Principal Office

27th Floor, Stelux House
698 Prince Edward Road East
San Po Kong

Kowloon

Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
Citibank, N. A.

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Share Registrar

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
26 Burnaby Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Room 1712-1716

17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Strategy Committee
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong (Chairman of Committee)

Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui (retirement effective from 1 July 2015)

Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin
Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng
Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang

EEQHiE Y
Canon’ Court, 22 Victoria Street
Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda
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KT K 698 5%
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AT
SR HUK B B A S T

ROBFERE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
26 Burnaby Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda
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Audit Committee

Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang (Chairman of Committee)
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man

Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng

Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang

Remuneration Committee

Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man (Chairman of Committee)
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong

Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang

Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng

Nomination Committee

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong (Chairman of Committee)
Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang

Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man

Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang

Corporate Governance Committee

Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui (Chairman of Committee until his
retirement on 1 July 2015)

Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin (Chairman of Committee)

Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang

Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man

Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Ms. Mary Ma Xuezheng

Mr. Alex Wong Yu Tsang

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

AEER

*

*

RETAIL
2€

CITY CHAIN*
TiF g

Hong Kong i &=
itk (93)

Mainland China
FEIREE (97)

Macau

W (10)

Thailand
Z= [ (80)

Singapore

BN (29)

Malaysia
FSAEPY A (59)

OPTICAL
R85

OPTICAL 88*
IR G588*

II

Hong Kong
it (88)
Mainland China
hBKEE (43)
Macau
WM (1)
Thailand
R (43)
Singapore

A (16)

Malaysia
FE2RPEEE (28)

Hong Kong
i (20)
Mainland China
g K KE (30)

Number of shops as at 30 June 2015. Includes all concept shops.
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STELUX HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
BEXAEX(ER)ERAR

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
HEEERE

Hong Kong
T

Switzerland

WHOLESALE / TRADING
i E5

WATCH
Sgk

Hong Kong
il

Mainland China
r g K b

Taiwan
=k
Thailand
R

Singapore

I

Malaysia
TEAR P

Switzerland

Fii

OPTICAL
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Hong Kong
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COMPANY DIRECTORY
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MAINLAND CHINA AND HONG KONG FEIKERER

Equity Investment, Property Investment, Retail, Trading, IEABE - W - TE - By M R itE
Wholesale and Supply Chain Management P

e Stelux Holdings International Ltd EDOLHEE (B A RA R

J Stelux Holdings Ltd
J Stelux Properties Ltd
o Optical 88 Ltd

o City Chain Co Ltd

ES
JEFE (EE) ARAF

il

B A R A A

R $5% 88 A PR

I [H] oG Sk 6% A PR W)

e Stelux Watch Ltd EsE A BRA A
27/F., Stelux House, AU JUHE T
698 Prince Edward Road East, KFHEHR 698 5%
San Po Kong, Kowloon, HONG KONG BRI 27 B

3/F., Kader Building
22 Kai Cheung Road, Kowloon Bay
Kowloon, HONG KONG

e Thong Sia Optics (Hong Kong) Company Limited

A JLRE RO 22 9%
BRI R =4

MOEEE (i) A PR )

Unit 502-06, Stelux House, 1 JLREHT i
698 Prince Edward Road East, KFHEHR 698 5%

San Po Kong, Kowloon, HONG KONG

Lg% 0 502-06

J Thong Sia Watch Company Limited T8 YRS AT BR A W)
21/F., Stelux House U JUBEHT T i
698 Prince Edward Road East KTFEHR 698 9%
San Po Kong, Kowloon, HONG KONG [ S/AE LR

e Thong Tai Watch Company Limited AR ERA PR ]
21/F., Stelux House B it JUHE B i
698 Prince Edward Road East KR 698 97
San Po Kong, Kowloon, HONG KONG FOLRgEE 0 21 #

o Stelux-Thong Sia (Shanghai) Trading Limited
3/F, Building 1, Industrial Park, 951 Hutai Road,
Shanghai, PRC

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2015

B (i) A PR )
R L T L IRLE R 951 5%

7 S 1 A 3



COMPANY DIRECTORY
AFERRG

Baoshi (Shanghai) Company Limited
3/F, Building 1, Industrial Park,
951 Hutai Road, Shanghai, PRC

Stelux-Thong Sia (Guangdong) Trading Limited
Rooms 1808-1816

Guangbai Xin Yi Building

18-28 Xihu Road, Yue Xiu District
Guangzhou, PRC

Baoshi (Guangdong) Company Limited
Rooms 1808-1816 Guangbai Xin Yi Building
18-28 Xihu Road, Yue Xiu District,
Guangzhou, PRC

Stelux-Thong Sia (Beijing) Trading Limited
Rooms 411 and 426, 4/F, Wang Fu Shi Ji Building
No. 55 Dong Anmen Street, Beijing, PRC

Baoshi (Beijing) Company Limited
Rooms 706-707, Jintaiguoyi Building
103 Chaoyang North Road,
Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC

Shibao (Chongqing) Trading Limited
Room D, 23/F, No.50 Zou Rong Road
Yuzhong District, Chongqing, PRC

Baoqing (Chongqing) Trading Limited
Room D, 23/F, No.50 Zou Rong Road
Yuzhong District, Chonggqing, PRC

TAIWAN

Wholesale Trading

Thong Tai (Taiwan) Company Limited
9/F., No. 102

Song Lung Road

Taipei (110)

TAIWAN

o HH (L) REHRAF
Fp R i T U IR E K 951 5%
oS [ [ 1 S 3 M

o EDRIEIN JEH) I A FRA
P IR P T A I A 2 18-28 B
JE A R 1808-1816 %

o EH UEH) BOLIREA PR AT
P IR JEE P T A I A 2 18-28 B
JE A R 1808-1816

o ERIELK (L) B ™A RA A
R b BT RO [ R e PR A 55 9%
TIFHACEIE 411, 426 F

o EWEM (L) IREEA RA T
AT IR s b 103 58
G A 45 KE 706-707 =

o HE (EE) MEAMRAF
BRI i P AR B 50 5%
23 DZE

o HE(FHE) MEAMRAHA
BB T P AR 2 I 50 9%
23BDE

o
9 5 3

o EHE(BE) ARAF
B A L TiE RN 102 9o it
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MACAU

Retail
o City Chain (Macau) Co Ltd

o Optical 88 (Macau) Ltd
Rua de S. Domingos,

n° 21-A, em Macau

MALAYSIA

Retail and Wholesale Trading
o City Chain (M) Sdn Bhd

o Optical 88 Eyecare (M) Sdn Bhd
G8, Jalan Puteri 7/13A
Bandar Puteri
47100 Puchong
Selangor Darul Ehsan
MALAYSIA

J Thong Sia Sdn Bhd (87055-A)
CP 27, Suite 2601-04, 26th Floor, Central Plaza
34, Jalan Sultan Ismail
50250 Kuala Lumpur
MALAYSIA

J Thong Sia Optical (M) Sdn Bhd
CP27, Suite 2601-04
26th Floor, Central Plaza
34 Jalan Sultan Ismail
50250 Kuala Lumpur
MALAYSIA

THAILAND

Retail and Wholesale Trading
o City Chain (Thailand) Co Ltd

. Optical 88 (Thailand) Co Ltd

e Thong Sia (Thailand) Ltd
347, 349 Muang Thong Thani
Bondstreet Road
Bangpood Subdistrict
Pakkred District
Nonthaburi 11120
THAILAND

1 89 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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Rua de S. Domingos,

n° 21-A, em Macau
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City Chain (M) Sdn Bhd

Optical 88 Eyecare (M) Sdn Bhd
G8, Jalan Puteri 7/13A

Bandar Puteri

47100 Puchong

Selangor Darul Ehsan
MALAYSIA

Thong Sia Sdn Bhd (87055-A)

CP 27, Suite 2601-04, 26th Floor, Central Plaza
34, Jalan Sultan Ismail

50250 Kuala Lumpur

MALAYSIA

Thong Sia Optical (M) Sdn Bhd
CP27, Suite 2601-04

26th Floor, Central Plaza

34 Jalan Sultan Ismail

50250 Kuala Lumpur
MALAYSIA

T NHIRE 5 T

City Chain (Thailand) Co Ltd
Optical 88 (Thailand) Co Ltd

Thong Sia (Thailand) Ltd

347, 349 Muang Thong Thani
Bondstreet Road,

Bangpood Subdistrict
Pakkred District

Nonthaburi 11120
THAILAND
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SINGAPORE

Retail and Wholesale Trading
o Stelux Watch Holdings Ltd
(in member’s voluntary liquidation)

o City Chain Stores (S) Pte Ltd

o Optical 88 (S) Pte Ltd
138 Joo Seng Road, #06-01
Singapore 368361
SINGAPORE

. Thong Sia Co (S) Pte Ltd

e Thong Sia Optical (S) Pte Ltd
50 Kallang Avenue, #06-03
Singapore 339505
SINGAPORE

SWITZERLAND

Watch Supply Chain Management and Trading

o Universal Geneve S.A.
. Solvil et Titus S.A.

o Pronto Watch S.A.
38, chemin du Grand Puits
Case Postale 128
1217 Meyrin 2
SWITZERLAND

° Catena S.A.
les Vernets 2,
2035 Corcelles NE
SWITZERLAND

N

ES VSR SO E
*  Stelux Watch Holdings Ltd
(B E S )

° City Chain Stores (S) Pte Ltd

J Optical 88 (S) Pte Ltd
138 Joo Seng Road, #06-01
Singapore 368361
SINGAPORE

° Thong Sia Co (S) Pte Ltd

e Thong Sia Optical (S) Pte Ltd
50 Kallang Avenue, #06-03
Singapore 339505
SINGAPORE

Wt

S G A R R I B 5 SN

o Universal Geneve S.A.
o Solvil et Titus S.A.

. Pronto Watch S.A.
38, chemin du Grand Puits
Case Postale 128
1217 Meyrin 2
SWITZERLAND

i Catena S.A.
les Vernets 2,
2035 Corcelles NE
SWITZERLAND
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR
g =

Latest time for lodging transfers of Shares for
registration in order to qualify for
attending and voting at the
Annual General Meeting
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 12 August 2015

Latest date and time for return of proxy
form for the Annual General Meeting
not less than 48 hours before the time of the Annual General
Meeting

Closure of the register of members of the
Company for determining the identity of
Shareholders who are entitled to attend
and vote at the Annual General Meeting
Thursday, 13 August 2015 to
Monday, 17 August 2015 (both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting
11:30 a.m. on Monday, 17 August 2015

Latest time for lodging transfers of the
Shares for registration in order to
qualify for the proposed final dividend
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 21 August 2015

Closure of the register of members of
the Company for determining the
identity of Shareholders who are
entitled to the proposed final dividend
Monday, 24 August 2015 to
Wednesday, 26 August 2015 (both days inclusive)

Payment of the proposed final dividend
Thursday, 10 September 2015

Email Contacts
Investor Relations: ir@stelux.com
Shareholder’s Enquiries: shareholdersenquiries@stelux.com

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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